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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

For the year under review, the Group recorded a loss of
approximately HK$56,857,000 as compared to a loss of
approximately HK$43,089,000 last year. Despite that the global
economy was having a positive sign of recovery, the confidence of
investors in the international market was still very fragile and volatile.
As the investors tended to be more prudent, the Group’s turnover
and revenue had received significant downward pressure.

Also, the Group has made some investments in Hong Kong listed
stocks. For the reporting period, the Group has recorded a negative
fair value change of HK$62,889,000 in the available-for-sale equity
investment reserve for the whole investment portfolio out of which a
negative fair value change of HK$63,120,000 was recorded for a
single stock holding of China Agri-Products Exchange Limited (stock
code: 149).

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year under review, the Group is principally engaged in
brokerage and dealing of securities, futures and options contracts,
margin financing, loan financing, financial advisory, investment
holding, brokerage and dealing of bullion and forex contracts,
provision of management and consultancy services and provision of
pawn loans. The Group has been increasing the investment in
Mainland China and recently its pawn loan business based in Beijing
and Shanghai has commenced with positive contribution. Having
said that, the financial activities have been dragged down by market
turbulence and weak confidence of investors leading to lower than
expected business turnover. Coupled with the fact that the initial
public offerings business in Hong Kong has been inactive and there
is a significant downfall of bullion price, the market has become risky
and thus affected most of the Group’s core business. In light of the
difficulty in market situation, the Group has slowed down some other
investment, money lending business and performed some synergies
to reduce the operating cost.

Securities

The securities segment comprises broking and dealing of securities,
futures and options contracts, the provision of margin financing,
advisory on corporate finance, asset management, and results of
investment holding and proprietary trading of securities. With fierce
competition from brokerage industry, disappointing initial public
offerings activities in the Hong Kong market, increasing competition
from the banking sector and investor confidence, the revenue from
securities segment was severely impacted and reduced from
approximately HK$63,838,000 to approximately HK$38,512,000.
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Bullion

The bullion segment comprises broking and dealing of bullion
contracts principally for clients. With the extremely volatile
commodities market, the investors in the bullion market turned to be
more prudent and as a result, the trading volume of bullion contracts
for clients was significantly reduced in the year. In volatile market,
the Group always squared off most trading position derived from
clients as quickly as possible to mitigate the risk or maximise the
return. Despite that the Group has deployed highly automated
system and trading professionals, in occasion where market is
irrational and fluctuated widely, loss could still be borne due to the
extremely high volatility and time delay to hedge the risk position.
The bullion segment recorded a loss of approximately HK$18,086,000
for the year under review (2012: loss of approximately
HK$28,045,000), where the slightly better result was primarily due to
the fact that the Group has taken on less risky positions and reduced
the commission rebate for introducing brokers.

Forex

The forex segment comprises broking and dealing of forex contracts
principally for clients, which recorded a loss of approximately
HK$9,415,000 (2012: loss of approximately HK$11,679,000) for the
year under review. In volatile market, the Group always squared off
most trading position derived from clients as quickly as possible to
mitigate the risk or maximise the return. Despite that the Group has
deployed highly automated system and trading professionals, in
occasion where market is irrational and fluctuated widely, loss could
still be borne due to the extremely high volatility and time delay to
hedge the risk position. The reduced loss is primarily due to the fact
that the Group has taken on less risky positions and there was a
lower forex trading volume due to the volatile market condition.

Money Lending

The money lending segment comprises provision of loans and
advances to clients. It has received strong demand since its inception
and the interest revenue amounted to HK$42,740,000 for the year
ended 30 April 2013 (2012 interest revenue of approximately
HK$60,156,000). The Group was more prudent in respect of new loan
provisions due to slight increasely in risk in the marketplace and the
continued credit tightening in Mainland China remained.

Pawn Loan

In respect of continuous tightening credit in Mainland China, the
pawn shops, based in Mainland China, have commenced to capture
the business opportunities. The demand is huge but the Group is
progressively developing the business segment by balancing the risk
and credit quality. The revenue was approximately HK$10,461,000
for the year ended 30 April 2013 (2012: nil).
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PROSPECTS

Despite the weak investor confidence in the global economy, the
outlook for global recovery has become more affirmative.
Nevertheless, the financial market will remain volatile in the short to
medium term, in particular, Hong Kong is still confronting the
Mainland China economic reform and intention of the United States
to reduce debt purchasing. Also, the threat of interest rate increment
will have strong influence over the various investment instruments,
thereby adding uncertainty to the financial market. In anticipation of
the difficulty ahead, the Group will endeavor to increase its
investment in Mainland China to diversify the risk, and to expand its
securities business to professional investors segment and work with
other service providers to fully utilise its platform. Also, the Group
shall continue to streamline the operations to reduce the cost in
order to strive for better business performance.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

During the year under review, 90,000,000 shares have been issued
under the placing on 6 July 2012; 1,200 shares, 8,800 shares and
64,400 shares have been issued upon exercise of subscription rights
attached to the warrants on 12 June 2012, 16 August 2012 and 27
August 2012 respectively; and 1,907,018,640 shares have been
issued on 26 April 2013 by way of rights issue at the subscription
price of HK$0.095 per rights share on the basis of three rights shares
for every one share held on the record date. As at 30 April 2013, the
total number of the issued ordinary shares of the Company was
2,542,691,520 shares with the par value of HK$0.001 each and total
equity attributable to shareholders was approximately
HK$1,199,713,000 (2012: approximately HK$1,125,522,000).

During the year under review, the subscription rights attaching to all
the 5,196,176,000 units of bonus warrants (“Warrants”) (warrant
code: 1257), at the subscription price of HK$1.5 per share entitling
the warrant holders to subscribe for a maximum of 103,923,520
shares of HK$0.001 each, have expired on 21 August 2012.

AT

BERAEBEHEREERZEL  ERREER
BRI R BISEARE - A SEHISN PG
MARRE - FRIZBADZ I PBEALEENRTE
REBERLOBEEMRZE - 15 - MBEEKE
ERRETAENEATE X R/SRTIHEAR
THPER - BERKNHEES - ~AKEHEN
MR EAM 2 RE - Mo BER - L KE
TRFAEBZHREREEXREE NAE MR
BHREREIE S TFTRBUTOMA - o K
SEBEEBHEY  BREERRAFREL
ZEBRA -

BERER

REFEEE  AATRZE—_F+AXBRE
fic & % 78 % 1790,000,000f% f& 19 - MR ==&
——HXA+=ZA - ZE——-FNA+REEZ=
T——FNAZ+tBARBREEH R EE
1T M 1% 217 1,200 % ~ 8,800 i% K 64,400 % fi%
7 WEBENRLREPEEAE —RRHOEE=
% A% IR 19 2 B DARR BB B & AR AR AR A% 15 0.095
BITETERZ AR RZE—=ZF0A=-+X
H2£771,907,018,640 % f& 17 » R —ZT— =4 WA
=+H ARFEREME0ETERITYE
AR A EUR2,542,691,520 0% - AR B S 42
B4 £1,199,713,000 (= & — = F : 4
1,125,522,000787T) °

REIEEEE » 5,196,176,000 17 Bf, T 41 T 52 B& #E &
([RRAERE ) (RIHEEARGR 1 1257) 358 AR
NREESR15EITRE &R 103,923,520% &
fEEE0.001 BTk D 2 RRIEZEFTH REED
WZEBE——F N NA-+—HBE®-

06 simsen International Corporation Limited  X4TEIE (ER) ERA



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

DI i 2k B Sy B

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group had total cash and cash equivalents amounting to
approximately HK$570,119,000 (2012: approximately
HK$215,272,000), which already exclude approximately
HK$172,049,000 (2012: approximately HK$149,429,000) of client
funds that were kept in separate designated bank accounts, as at 30
April 2013.

The Group's gearing ratio, which is measured on the basis of the
Group's total interest bearing debts net of own cash reserves over
the Company's shareholders’ equity, did not exist as at 30 April 2013
(2012: nil) as the Group had net surplus cash as at the reporting date.

The Group's banking facilities amounting to HK$40,000,000, none of
which were utilised and outstanding at the end of the reporting
period. Included in these banking facilities, an overdraft facility
amounting to HK$10,000,000 (2012: HK$10,000,000) is secured by
certain of the Group’s bank deposits amounting to approximately
HK$5,000,000 (2012: approximately HK$10,000,000). The remaining
facility amounting to HK$30,000,000 (2012: HK$30,000,000)
represents a margin facility and the availability of this facility is
conditional upon the execution of charges over securities by a
subsidiary of the Company. The Group’s banking facilities are
secured by a corporate guarantee executed by the Company.

SIGNIFICANT TRANSACTIONS
During the year under review, the Group had the following significant
transactions:

(1) On7June 2012, the Company entered into a placing agreement
in relation to the placing of up to 109,119,696 new shares of
the Company (“Placing Shares”) at a price of HK$0.156 per
Placing Share. A total of 90,000,000 Placing Shares were
successfully placed by the placing agent on 6 July 2012. Details
of the placing were set out in the announcements of the
Company dated 7 June 2012, 6 July 2012 and 9 July 2012.

(2)  0On 9 July 2012, Profit Keen Holdings Limited (“Profit Keen") (a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) as the purchaser,
Ms. Wu Chia Lien as the vendor and Ms. Cui Li Jie and Mr. Xu
Yan as the vendor’s guarantors entered into a sale and
purchase agreement, on the terms and subject to the
conditions of which the purchaser has agreed to acquire all of
the issued shares of Concord Capital Investment Limited
(“Concord Capital”). The transaction was completed on 25
September 2012.

RBEERUMBEER
RZE—=FNUA=+H xEEFRE KR
Z(E1E B 458 #570,119,0008 T ( — B — — 4 :
#9215,272,0007%87C) * EBR D AFEAEERT
BEEZEFEES#1172,049,000/8 T( —F——4 :
#9149,429,0007 7T ) ©
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Concord Capital has become a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Company after the completion of the transaction. The principal
asset of Concord Capital is certain direct and indirect beneficial
interests in Beijing Rong Cheng United Financial Consulting
Company Limited (“Beijing Rong Cheng") whose principal
businesses are management and operation of pawn loan
businesses of Beijing Wanrong Pawning Company Limited
("Beijing PawnCo") and Shanghai Xingrong Pawning Company
Limited (“Shanghai PawnCo"). The respective management
and operation contracts for Beijing PawnCo and Shanghai
PawnCo were entered on 15 May 2012 and amended on 5
September 2012 while the equity pledge agreement for Beijing
PawnCo was entered on 10 September 2012 and that for
Shanghai PawnCo was amended on 5 September 2012.

Details of the transaction were set out in the announcements
of the Company dated 9 July 2012, 11 July 2012, 5 September
2012 and 25 September 2012 and the circular of the Company
dated 7 September 2012.

0On 23 August 2012, the Company entered into the underwriting
agreement with Super Century Investments Limited and
Kingston Securities Limited in respect of the proposed rights
issue in the proportion of two rights shares for every one
consolidated share held on the record date at the subscription
price of HK$0.48 per rights share with the bonus issue of four
bonus shares for every one rights share. The underwriting
agreement was terminated on 4 October 2012 and so the rights
issue could not proceed.

On 10 October 2012, Beijing Wanrong, whose results are to be
combined into the accounts of the Group as a wholly-owned
subsidiary, entered into the two loan agreements with Li
Shangling. Pursuant to the loan agreements, Beijing Wanrong
has agreed to grant secured loans in the amount of
RMB4,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$4,880,000)
under each of such agreements to Li Shangling, details of
which were set out in the announcement of the Company
dated 11 October 2012.
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On 12 October 2012, Wit Sky Limited (a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company) as the purchaser entered into a
sale and purchase agreement with Ms. Wu Yu Shan as the
vendor pursuant to which the purchaser agreed to purchase
and the vendor agreed to sell 4,900 ordinary shares of nominal
value of HK$1 each in the issued share capital of AST 3G
LIMITED (“AST 3G") and the shareholders loan of approximately
HK$5.85 million owing by AST 3G to the vendor at the
consideration of HK$6,552,000 subject to the terms and
conditions of the agreement. Details of which were set out in
the announcement of the Company dated 12 October 2012.

On 19 October 2012, Simsen Capital Finance Limited (“Simsen
Capital Finance”) (an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company) as the lender entered into the supplemental
loan agreement with Lucky Start Holdings Limited as the
borrower and its guarantor, pursuant to which the parties
thereto have conditionally agreed to extend the repayment
date of the loan to 17 January 2013. Details of which were set
out in the announcement of the Company dated 22 October
2012.

On 29 October 2012, Beijing Wanrong entered into the loan
agreement with Beijing-day Long Automobile Sales & Service
Co., Ltd.* ("Beijing-day Long"). Pursuant to the loan
agreement, Beijing Wanrong has agreed to grant a secured
loan in the amount of RMB10,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$12,300,000) to Beijing-day Long. Details of
which were set out in the announcement of the Company
dated 30 October 2012.

On 7 December 2012, Sunwin Investment Holding Limited (an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) as the
purchaser and Ms. Cui Gui Na and Mr. Yang Cheng Quan as the
vendors entered into the sale and purchase agreement, on the
terms and subject to the conditions of which the purchaser has
agreed to acquire from the vendors the entire share capital of
Beijing Yuedetong Financial Consulting Company Limited*
("Beijing Yuedetong”) at the consideration of HK$20,956,000.
Beijing Yuedetong is a financial consulting company and its
principal business is the provision of medium and short
financing services. Details of which were set out in the
announcements of the Company dated 7 December 2012 and
10 April 2013.
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0On 13 December 2012, Beijing Wanrong has entered into a loan
agreement with Mr. Zhang Junjie (“Mr. Zhang") (the “Third
Loan Agreement”). Pursuant to the Third Loan Agreement,
Beijing Wanrong has agreed to grant a secured loan in the
amount of RMB1,400,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$1,736,000) to Mr. Zhang. Details of which were set out in
the announcement of the Company dated 31 December 2012.

On 24 December 2012, Profit Keen as the purchaser and Ms.
Zhou Jing Wen, Ms. Zhou Bao Ying, Mr. Ma Chun Chan, Mr. Li
Hai and Ms. Chen Hui Jie as vendors entered into the sale and
purchase agreement (“Sale and Purchase Agreement”),
pursuant to which Profit Keen agreed to purchase the entire
issued share capital of Beijing Dong Fang Hui Investment
Consulting Co., Ltd* (AL R FTER EH A BR A R]) (‘Beijing
Dong Fang Hui") at the aggregate consideration of
HK$314,362,500. Since each of Ms. Zhou Jing Wen and Ms.
Zhou Bao Ying is a connected person of the Company and one
of more of the applicable percentage ratios (as defined in
Listing Rules) exceeds 100%, the acquisition constituted a
connected transaction under Chapter 14A and a very
substantial acquisition under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules.
On 4 March 2013, the purchaser and the vendors entered into
a supplemental agreement to amend certain terms of the Sale
and Purchase Agreement. Details of which were set out in the
announcements of the Company dated 24 December 2012, 4
March 2013 and 20 June 2013 and the circular of the Company
dated 12 March 2013. Completion of this transaction took place
on 20 June 2013.

On 27 February 2013, Beijing Wanrong has entered into a loan
agreement with Mr. Tian Wen Chao (“Mr. Tian") (the “Second
Loan Agreement”). Pursuant to the Second Loan Agreement,
Beijing Wanrong has agreed to grant a secured loan in the
amount of RMB1,900,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$2,365,500) to Mr. Tian. Details of which were set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 28 February 2013.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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(12)  On 11 March 2013 and 16 April 2013 King Stone Energy Group
Limited (stock code: 663) ("King Stone”) served on the
Company a notice of redemption of the King Stone convertible
notes held by the Group with a principal amount of
HK$50,000,000 and HK$100,000,000 respectively. After the
redemptions, the outstanding principal amount of the King
Stone convertible notes held by the Group is HK$139,205,000.
Details of which are set out in the announcement of the
Company dated 11 March 2013 and 16 April 2013 respectively.

(13)  On 27 April 2013, the Company as lender entered into a loan
agreement with the borrower, pursuant to which the lender
has agreed to provide the revolving loan facility of up to US$10
million to the borrower pursuant to the terms of the loan
agreement. Details of which were set out in the announcement
of the Company dated 27 April 2013.

(14) On 30 April 2013, the Company acquired for 51,000,000 Hao
Tian Resources Group Limited (stock code: 474) ("HT") shares
at the consideration of approximately HK$21.42 million
(excluding transaction costs) (equivalent to approximately
HK$0.42 per HT share). Details of which were set out in the
announcements of the Company dated 30 April 2013.

CHARGES ON GROUP ASSETS

As at 30 April 2013, the obligations under finance leases amounted
to approximately HK$204,000 (2012: approximately HK$345,000) were
secured by the leased assets acquired under the finance leases.

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 30 April 2013, the Group employed a total of about 87
employees, as compared to 147 employees in 2012. The Group'’s
staff recruitment and promotion are primarily based on individuals’
merits, relevant experiences, development potentials for the
positions offered and performance. Staff remuneration and benefit
policies, which are formulated by reference to the market, are
competitive and performance based.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
The Group had no material contingent liabilities as at 30 April 2013.
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EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING
PERIOD

(M
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On 1 May 2013, Simsen Capital Finance as the lender entered
into the loan agreement with the borrower, pursuant to which
it has agreed to provide the loan of HK$82 million to the
borrower subject to the terms and conditions of the loan
agreement. Details of which were set out in the announcement
of the Company dated 1 May 2013.

On 1 May 2013, Key Gains Investments Limited (“Key Gains”) (a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) as the subscriber,
entered into the subscription agreement with Million Wealth
Capital Investment Limited (“Million Wealth") as the issuer
and Pure Profit Holdings Limited as the guarantor of Million
Wealth, pursuant to which Key Gains has conditionally agreed
to subscribe for and Million Wealth has conditionally agreed to
issue the Million Wealth senior notes in the principal amounts
of HK$80 million at the subscription price of HK$80 million.
Details of which were set out in the announcement of the
Company dated 1 May 2013.

On 3 May 2013, the Company acquired for an additional
100,000,000 HT shares at the total consideration of
approximately HK$43 million (excluding transaction costs)
(equivalent to approximately HK$0.43 per HT share). Details of
which were set out in the announcements of the Company
dated 3 May 2013.

On 8 September 2011, Simsen Capital Finance, as lender
entered into a loan agreement with Profit Port Investments
Limited ("Profit Port”) as borrower and the ultimate beneficial
owner of Profit Port as guarantor in relation to the provision of
a loan of HK$100,000,000 (“Profit Port Loan Agreement”).
0On 12 April 2012, the parties to the Profit Port Loan Agreement
agreed to extend the repayment date of the loan to 10 August
2012, which is subject to agreement between the parties
thereto for a further extension of 120 days. On 9 May 2013, the
parties to the Profit Port Loan Agreement conditionally agreed
to extend the repayment date of the Profit Port Loan
Agreement to 9 May 2014, subject to Profit Port having repaid
all the accrued interests of approximately HK$10.95 million of
the loan up to 9 May 2013. Details of which were set out in the
announcements of the Company dated 8 September 2011, 12
April 2012 and 9 May 2013.
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On 13 June 2013, King Stone served on the Company a notice
of redemption of the King Stone convertible notes held by the
Group with a principal amount of HK$100,000,000. After the
redemption, the outstanding principal amount of the King
Stone convertible notes held by the Group is HK$39,205,000.
Details of which are set out in the announcement of the
Company dated 13 June 2013.

On 21 June 2013, Beijing Dong Fang Hui, an indirectly wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a loan
agreement with Mr. Gong Hongwei (“Mr. Gong"). Pursuant to
the loan agreement, Beijing Dong Fang Hui has agreed to grant
a guaranteed loan in the amount of RMB50,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$63,000,000) to Mr. Gong. Details of which
were set out in the announcement of the Company dated 21
June 2013.

On 27 June 2013, Beijing Dong Fang Hui entered into a loan
agreement with Mr. Guan Shijun (“Mr. Guan”). Pursuant to the
loan agreement, Beijing Dong Fang Hui has agreed to grant a
guaranteed loan in the amount of RMB50,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$63,000,000) to Mr. Guan. Details of which
were set out in the announcement of the Company dated 27
June 2013.

On 8 July 2013, Beijing Dong Fang Hui entered into a loan
agreement with Ms. Guo Yuexin (“Ms. Guo”). Pursuant to the
loan agreement, Beijing Dong Fang Hui has agreed to grant a
guaranteed loan in the amount of RMB46,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$57,960,000) to Ms. Guo. Details of which
were set out in the announcement of the Company dated 8
July 2013.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance within a sensible framework with an emphasis
on the principles of transparency, accountability and independence.
The Board believes that good corporate governance is essential to
the success of the Group and the enhancement of shareholders’
value.

During the year ended 30 April 2013, the Company was in full
compliance with the Code Provisions set out in Appendix 14 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the
"CG Code"), except for the deviation from Code Provision A.6.7 of
the CG Code which stipulates that all independent non-executive
Directors and non-executive Directors should attend general
meetings and develop a balanced understanding of the views of
shareholders. Due to their personal commitments, all independent
non-executive Directors, including Mr. Li Haifeng, the former non-
independent executive Director, were unable to attend special
general meetings of the Company held on 24 September 2012, 25
March 2013 and 28 March 2013 respectively and the annual general
meeting dated 31 October 2012 during the tenure of their positions.

Pursuant to Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules, every board of directors
of a listed issuer must include at least three independent non-
executive directors. The Company was not in compliance with Rule
3.10(1) since the resignation of Mr. Li Haifeng as an independent
non-executive Director, a member of each the audit and nomination
and corporate governance committees of the Company and the
chairman of the remuneration committee of the Company, with
effect from 9 April 2013 after which the number of independent non-
executive Directors of the Company was reduced to two. In this
regard, the Company immediately informed the Stock Exchange and
made proper disclosure in its announcements containing the
relevant details and reasons for the Company's failure to meet the
requirements. On 8 July 2013, the Company appointed Mr. Chen Wai
Chung Edmund as an independent non-executive Director and the
requirement under the Listing Rules has been complied with
thereafter.
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The key corporate governance principles and practices of the
Company on how the comply with the CG Code are summarised as
follows:

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for overseeing the management of the
Company’s business and affairs with the objective of enhancing
shareholders’ value, including setting and approving the Group’s
strategic direction and other important matters such as interim and
annual results, dividends, annual financial budgets, business and
operation plans etc., while delegating day-to-day operations of the
Group to the management. Besides, each member of the Board is
expected to make a full and active contribution to the Board's affairs
and to ensure that the Board acts in the best interest of the
Company and its shareholders as a whole.

The management and control of the business of the Company are
vested in the Board. It is the duty of the Board to establish policies,
strategies and plans, and to provide leadership in the attainment of
the objective of creating value to shareholders.

The functions of the Board are carried out either directly or through
Board committees and some of which have been delegated to the
management of the Company, including (i) formulating the internal
control systems of the Company and assisting in the operational
strategies of the Company, (ii) finance and accounting functions,
including keeping proper books and records, (i) compliance with
various rules and regulations including but not limited to the Listing
Rules, (iv) implementing the policies and processes approved by the
Board and (v) implementing the policies, processes and procedures
for the management and development of the Company's employees.
The delegation of authority includes responsibility for ensuring that
the Board is provided with sufficient information and explanation on
a timely basis as regards to the Company’s businesses, and in
particular, with respect to the Company’s performance, financial
condition, operating results and prospects and to enable it to make
an informed assessment for matters put before the Board for
approval.
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Mr. Zhu Chengwu, an independent non-executive Director, was
appointed for an initial term of two years commencing on 23 April
2010, Mr. Yeung Siu Keung, an independent non-executive Director,
was appointed for an initial term of two years commencing on 19
December 2012 and Mr. Chen Wai Chung Edmund, an independent
non-executive Director was appointed for an initial term of two years
commencing on 8 July 2013. All of their appointments are renewable
automatically for successive term of one year commencing from the
next day after the expiry of the then current term of appointment
unless terminated by the independent non-executives not less than
three months’ notice in writing.

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS'’ LIABILITIES
INSURANCE

Appropriate insurance cover for directors’ and officers’ liabilities in
respect of legal actions against the Directors and officers of the
Company and its subsidiaries arising out of corporate activities of the
Group has been arranged by the Company.

BOARD COMPOSITION

The composition of the Board reflects the necessary balance of skills
and experience desirable for effective leadership of the Company
and independence in decision making.

The Board currently comprises five Directors in total, with two
executive Directors and three independent non-executive Directors.
The Directors at the date of this report were as follows:

Executive Directors
Fu Jiwen
Zhou Baoying

Independent non-executive Directors
Zhu Chengwu

Yeung Siu Keung

Chen Wai Chung Edmund
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The Company currently has four Board committees. The table below
provides details of these committees on which each Board member
serves.

ZK//}\EJ E ﬁﬁ?&ﬁ@f%%é%ﬁ o Tﬁ*ﬁ'ﬁ%%%
FERBHAREEEGRE ZHE -

Board Committee

EEZRET

Nomination
and
Corporate
Operational Audit Remuneration Governance
Committee = Committee Committee = Committee
RERDEE
Director = EEZES EREEE FMEES EREES
Fu Jiwen BE M M

Zhou Baoying AEx M
Zhu Chengwu KAER C M C
Yeung Siu Keung P M M M
Chen Wai Chung Edmund PBRETR M C M

Notes:

C Chairman of the relevant Board committees
M Member of the relevant Board committees

None of the members of the Board has any relationship (including
financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationship(s))
with each other.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

During the year under review, the Board at all times met the
requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at
least three independent non-executive Directors with at least one
independent non-executive Director possessing appropriate
professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial
management expertise.
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Pursuant to Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules, every board of directors
of a listed issuer must include at least three independent non-
executive directors. The Company was not in compliance with Rule
3.10(1) since the resignation of Mr. Li Haifeng as an independent
non-executive Director, a member of each the audit and nomination
and corporate governance committees of the Company and the
chairman of the remuneration committee of the Company, with
effect from 9 April 2013 after which the number of independent non-
executive Directors of the Company was reduced to two. In this
regard, the Company immediately informed the Stock Exchange and
made proper disclosure in its announcements containing the
relevant details and reasons for the Company's failure to meet the
requirements. On 8 July 2013, the Company appointed Mr. Chen Wai
Chung Edmund as an independent non-executive Director and the
requirement under the Listing Rules has been complied with
thereafter.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
independent non-executive Director of his independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board has assessed
independence of the three independent non-executive Directors and
concluded that all the independent non-executive Directors are
independent within the definition of the Listing Rules.

APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL OF
DIRECTORS

The Board as a whole, with the assistance of the Nomination
Committee and the Corporate Governance Committee which was
established on 28 March 2012, is responsible for reviewing the Board
composition, developing and formulating the relevant procedures for
nomination and appointment of Directors, monitoring the
appointment and succession planning of Directors and assessing the
independence of independent non-executive Directors.

The Board reviews its own structure, size and composition regularly
to ensure that it has a balance of expertise, skills and experience
appropriate to the requirements of the business of the Company.

Where vacancies on the Board exist, the Board will carry out the
selection process by making reference to the skills, experience,
professional knowledge, personal integrity and time commitments of
the proposed candidates, the Company’s needs and other relevant
statutory requirements and regulations.

The Company’s bye-laws (the “Bye-laws”) provide that all Directors
are subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years
and any new Director appointed by the Board to fill a causal vacancy
shall be subject to re-election by shareholders at the first general
meeting after appointment.
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The Bye-laws also allow the removal of a Director by an ordinary
resolution.

The Board recommended the re-appointment of the Directors
standing for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting
of the Company.

The Company's circular to be despatched to shareholders of the
Company will contain detailed information of the Directors standing
for re-election.

TRAINING FOR DIRECTORS

Each newly appointed Director has received comprehensive, formal
and tailored induction on the first occasion of his appointment, so as
to ensure that he has appropriate understanding of the business and
operations of the Group and that he is fully aware of his
responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant
laws and regulations.

There are also arrangements in place for providing continuing
briefing and professional development to Directors at the Company's
expenses whenever necessary.

The Company provides regular updates relating to the Group’s
business and the legislative and regulatory environments in which
the Group conducts its business to the Directors.

The Directors are committed to comply with the Code Provision A.6.5
of the CG Code which came into effect on 1 April 2012 on Directors’
training. All Directors have participated in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills and
provide a record of training they received for the year ended 30 April
2013 and up to the date of publication of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE AND TIME
COMMITMENTS

During the year ended 30 April 2013, the Board met 5 times mainly
for considering and approving, among other things, the audited final
results for the year ended 30 April 2012, the unaudited results for the
six months ended 31 October 2012, placing of new shares under
general mandate, acquisition of target company as major and
connected transaction, acquisition of target company as a very
substantial and connect transaction and rights issue etc.
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The individual attendance record of each Director at the meetings of
the Board, audit committee (“Audit Committee”), remuneration
committee (‘Remuneration Committee”), operational committee
("Operational Committee”) and nomination and corporate
governance committee (“Nomination and Corporate Governance
Committee”) and general meetings during the year ended 30 April
2013 is set out below:

BE_Z—=-FOA=THILFE FEFLE
Exg ERZBg((ERERE)) FMZE
2((HFMEEE]) 2EZBe((¥EZXEE))
UAERARECEEAZES ((REREEERE
BEgdBERkRAg 2@ERRENT

Attendance/Number of Meetings

HER/BERY
Nomination
and
Corporate
Governance
Audit Remuneration  Committee
Board  Committee Committee Meeting  Operational General
Name of Directors Meeting Meeting Meeting (Note 1)  Committee Meeting
RERLE
ENZEES FMZzEEE  EHRZEE
Espg gz=geR of g2 gm(E) EEZEE BRRAE
Executive Directors HITEZE
Fu Jiwen BEY 5/5 N/A T g N/A TiE N/A i 2/2 3/3
Zhou Baoying (appointed on FER(N=F-=F
22 July 2013) +AZ+-HEZT) N/A T8 N/A NER N/A T iEF N/A T N/A T N/A NEF
Ji Xiao Bo (resigned on LER(R-2-=F
6 February 2013) ZARBEHE) 1/5 N/A N iE N/A FiE N/A i 2/2 0/3
Independent non-executive BUFHTES
Directors
Yeung SiuKeung (appointedon BB (R -F——4F
19 December 2012) +ZA+hBEZME) 3/3 11 N/A T g N/A g N/A i B N/A FiE
Chen Wai Chung Edmund BER(KR-_F—=F
(appointed on 8 July 2013) T A\BEZT) N/A 7N F N/A i F N/A N F N/A 7N F N/A 7N F N/A N F
Zhu Chengwu KAER 5/5 2/2 11 11 N/A i 0/3
Li Haifeng (resigned on 9 April 2013) Z B (R = —=4F
A NBEHE) 5/5 2/2 11 7 N/A NEA 0/3
Choi Man Chau, Michael UM
(resigned on 19 December 2012)  (RN=Z——%F
TZATNAEEE) 22 11 1" " NATER 03
Number of meetings held EE N 5 2 1 1 2 3

In place of physical meetings, the Board and Board committees also
circulate written resolutions for approval by the relevant members of
the Board and Board committees except for matters where a
substantial shareholder or a Director has a conflict of interest which
the Board has determined to be material in compliance with Code
Provision A.1.7.

The Board having considered the attendance records of the Directors
is satisfied that each Director spends sufficient time performing his
responsibilities.
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PRACTICES AND CONDUCT OF MEETINGS
Meeting schedules and draft agenda of each meeting are made
available to Directors in advance.

Notices of regular Board meetings are served to all Directors at least
14 days before the meetings. For other Board and committee
meetings, reasonable notice is generally given.

Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and reliable
information are generally sent to all Directors at least 3 days before
each Board meeting or committee meeting to keep the Directors
informed of the latest developments and financial position of the
Company and to enable them to make informed decisions. The
Board and each Director also have separate and independent access
to the management and company secretary whenever necessary.

The company secretary is responsible for taking and keeping minutes
of all Board meetings and committee meetings. Draft and final
versions of minutes of Board meetings are normally sent to Directors
for their comments and records respectively, within a reasonable
time after the Board meeting is held.

According to the current Board practice, any material transaction,
which involves a conflict of interests for a substantial shareholder or
a Director, will be considered and dealt with by the Board at a duly
convened Board meeting. The Bye-laws also contain provisions
requiring Directors to abstain from voting and not to be counted in
the quorum at meetings for approving transactions in which such
Directors or any of their associates have a material interest.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Company currently have four committees, namely, the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee, Operational Committee and
Nomination and Corporate Governance Committee for overseeing
particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. The Board committees
are provided with sufficient resources to discharge their duties and,
upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent professional
advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expenses.

Mandates of all Board committees are available on the Stock
Exchange's website and the Company’s website at
WWW.Simsen.com.
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Remuneration Committee
The Remuneration Committee comprises three members, all of
which are independent non-executive Directors, as follows:

Zhu Chengwu
Yeung Siu Keung
Chen Wai Chung Edmund

The primary objectives of the Remuneration Committee include
making recommendations on and approving the Company’s policy
and structure for all the remuneration packages of the Directors and
senior management. The Remuneration Committee is also
responsible for establishing formal and transparent procedures for
developing remuneration policy and structure to ensure that no
Director or any of his/her associates will participate in his/her own
remuneration, which remuneration will be determined by reference
to the performance of the individual and the Company as well as
market practice and conditions. The Remuneration Committee, with
delegated responsibility, is responsible for annually reviewing the
existing remuneration policy including the remuneration packages of
individual executive Directors and senior management whereas the
Board as a whole is responsible for determining the remuneration of
non-executive Directors with recommendations from the
Remuneration Committee, if any.

During the year ended 30 April 2013, the Remuneration Committee
held one meeting to review and approve the existing remuneration
policy and structure of the Company.

Audit Committee

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to review the
Company’s annual reports and accounts, interim reports and results
announcements and to provide advices and comments to the
Directors. The members meet regularly with external auditors and
the Company’s senior management for the review and supervision
of the Company’s financial reporting and internal control procedures.
The Audit Committee is also responsible for monitoring integrity of
the financial statements of the Company and the Company’s annual
reports and accounts and interim reports, and to review significant
financial reporting judgements contained therein. As required by
Code Provision C.3.7 of the Code, details of arrangements for
employees to raise concerns about improprieties in financial
reporting, internal control and other matters have been included in
the Company's policy since 1 April 2012.
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Mr. Choi Man Chau, Michael, the former independent non-executive
Director and a member of the Audit Committee, who resigned on 19
December 2012 was a partner of HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
("HLB") and retired on 1 April 2006. HLB has resigned as the auditor
of the Company on 30 April 2013 and Zenith CPA Limited has been
appointed to fill the vacancy. Save for the abovementioned, none of
the members of the Audit Committee is a former partner of the
Company’s existing external auditors.

During the year under review, the Audit Committee held two
meetings to review the financial statements and reports and
consider any significant or usual items and discuss with external
auditors before submission to the Board, review the relationship with
the external auditors by reference to the work performed by the
auditors, their fees and terms of engagement and review the
adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s financial reporting
system, internal control system and risk management system and
associated procedures.

In addition, the members of the Audit Committee also have meetings
with the management and relevant staff of the Company on several
occasions and also have meeting with the independent professional
accountant firm appointed by the Company relating to the internal
control review matters during the year. Therefore, the Audit
Committee actively participated in the internal control review
matters including the selection of professional accountant firm and
provide opinion to improve and strengthen the internal control
system, where necessary.

The Company's annual results for the year ended 30 April 2013 have
been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

There was no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Ccommittee on the selection and appointment of the external auditors
during the year under review.
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Operational Committee

The Board had also established an Operational Committee, with
specific mandate which is responsible for making policy and
discussing issues relating to the Company’s day-to-day management
and business.

The roles and functions of the Operational Committee are as follows:

24

to consider and approve share registration and issue of share
certificates for shares allotment approved by the Board of
Directors;

to consider and approve share transfer and issue share
certificates for the transfer journal submitted by the share
registrars of the Company;

to consider and approve banking arrangement entered into by
the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries in their ordinary
course of business including opening of bank accounts, giving
of guarantee or security in respect of indebtedness of any of
the Company’s subsidiaries and procurement of general
banking facilities or mortgage facilities;

to consider and approve the transactions of the following
nature and to execute the related agreement, deed or
document of the Company:

(1) transaction which is in the ordinary course of business of
the Group and under normal commercial terms;

(2) transaction which do not constitute a notifiable
transaction or connected transaction under the Listing
Rules;

to make the necessary arrangement and execute the
documents in relation to the share options approved to grant
by the Directors of the Company and other administration
subject to the terms of the share option scheme adopted by
the Company and the Listing Rules:

(1)  to issue offer letter(s) to the eligible person(s) (the
“Eligible Person(s)");

(2)  to grant options to the Eligible Person(s) upon receipt of
due acceptance(s) of the offer of the Company;
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(3) toissue option certificate(s) to the Eligible Person(s) for
the options granted;

(4)  to notify the Stock Exchange and the Board of the details
of the grant and exercise of options,

(5) to issue and allot shares of the Company to option
holder(s) upon receipt of the notice of exercise of option,
related supporting documents and exercise price; and

(6)  to make adjustment to the number of option shares and/
or option prices whenever the relevant events as
specified in any employee share option scheme occur.

f. to affix the common seal of the Company onto whatever
documents as may be necessary in order to validly and legally
execute the matters aforesaid.

Nomination and Corporate Governance Committee
The Nomination and Corporate Governance Committee is
responsible for annually reviewing the existing nomination policy and
the corporate governance functions. During the year under review,
the Nomination and Corporate Governance Committee held one
meeting to review the existing policy.

The roles and functions of the Nomination and Corporate
Governance Committee are as follows:

a.  to review the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually
and make recommendations on any proposed changes to the
Board to complement the Company'’s corporate strategy;

b.  to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to the Board
on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships;

Cc.  to assess the independence of independent non-executive
directors;

d.  to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
re-appointment of directors and succession planning for
directors, in particular the chairman and the chief executive;

e.  todo any such things to enable the committee to discharge its
powers and functions conferred on it by the Board;

@ FMERHZBEREAAEBALTELRE

Pt E

@ B REE R R
RATEERE

6)  EREBRETEBN - BEREREXXMT
FITEER - MBRERAAETR
RREARDRIRD ¢ K

©  fHE LR TR B AR B FTERR
HEEN AEBRERNDHE
K/ SR REERS o

f. REBERFRXHMEARRNEAEE
BERTLMEE -

REREXERESES
RANGCEERZESAEEFRINABRAR
KREEERREE -NEBFE  RELREEE
AREERETRER  MRAREERE -

RERCEEARZEG BB RBAENT :

a. EVEBFRINEFSIRE  ABKMAK
(B¥EREE - MR R&R) » Wt ER AR
BARFELEREMASHERSHELZ
gPmEFETRMEES

b. MEABABMAEZRE AUPERELD
FESZARSBUAESSRMIHER

Cc. AHMEBMIFMITESRZEUIE:

d HEEAEFEEEEREF AT
(CEREFRITRER) FERAEES
Rz

e. ETEMNFESZEGTRTHEESSR
Tz e

Annual Report 2012/2013 « —B——/ “ZE— =445 25



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

<ie FigEIE

f. to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations to the
Board,

g.  toreview and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management;

h.  toreview and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

i to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
directors; and

J. to review the Company’s compliance with the code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board, with the support of the Group'’s finance department led
by the financial controller, is responsible for keeping proper
accounting records and the preparation of the financial statements
of the Company and the Group. In preparing the financial statements,
the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards have been adopted
and the financial statements comply with accounting standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Appropriate accounting policies have also been applied consistently.

The Board acknowledges their responsibility to prepare financial
statements for each financial year which give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Group and in presenting the interim and
annual financial statements, and announcements to shareholders.

The reporting responsibilities of Directors and external auditors are
further set out in the Independent Auditors’ Report in this annual
report.

For the year ended 30 April 2013, the Board, through the Audit
committee, reviewed the adequacy of the resources and
qualification of staffing of accounting and financial reporting function
and considered that staffing is adequate and competent in their roles
and responsibilities.
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INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board acknowledges that an effective internal control system
which is designed to monitor and response appropriately to
significant risk, to safeguard assets, to provide reasonable assurance
from fraud and errors and to ensure compliance of applicable law
and regulations is essential for effective and efficient operations of a
company.

Furthermore, the internal control system is designed to manage
rather than eliminate the risk of failure and can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or 10ss.

The Group has in place an effective internal control system which
encompasses sound control environment, appropriate segregation
of duties, well-defined policies and procedures, close monitoring and
is reviewed and enhanced by the management at regular intervals.

The Board has regularly engaged independent professional firms to
conduct evaluation on the effectiveness of the internal control
system of the Group and, in particular, the newly acquired licensing
business segment was reviewed. Based on the report on the findings
which include recommendations for further improvement, the Board
is satisfied that the Group has operated an effective internal control
system during the year under review. The Board confirmed that
there was no significant weakness and areas for improvement have
been identified and appropriate measures taken.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its code of conduct
regarding Directors’ securities transaction. Having made specific
enquiry with all Directors, the Board has confirmed compliance with
the required standard set out in the Model Code throughout the year
ended 30 April 2013.

AUDITORS' REMUNERATION

For the year ended 30 April 2013, fees paid to the external auditors
of the Company for audit service and for other non audit services
were HK$1,290,000 and HK$790,000 respectively.

VOTING BY POLL
Pursuant to Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, any vote of
shareholders at a general meeting must be taken by poll.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Yiu Yi Ting (“Ms. Yiu") was engaged through an external service
provider. She has been the company secretary since 11 November
2011. The company secretary reports to the chief operating officer
and is responsible for advising the Board on corporate governance
matters and ensuring board procedures are followed. Ms. Yiu
completed not less than 15 hours of relevant professional training.

The appointment and dismissal of the company secretary are subject
to the Board approval in accordance with the Bye-laws. Whilst the
company secretary reports to the chief operating officer on the
Group's company secretarial and corporate governance matters, all
members of the Board have access to the advice and services of the
company secretary.

BUSINESS STRATEGIES AND OBJECTIVES

The Group's objectives are to preserve and grow its position as a key
player in the financial services market whilst continuing to look for
opportunities and diversifying into new lines of business with
tremendous growth potential. Through harnessing different business
strategies at different stages of economies, the Group strives to
achieve the sustained long term growth of the Group and to produce
good returns to the Company'’s shareholders.

The current business strategy is disclosed in the section “Prospects”
of the Management Discussion and Analysis of this annual report.

SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS
The Group uses several formal channels to ensure fair disclosure
and comprehensive and transparent reporting of its performance
and activities. These include interim and annual reports,
announcements and circulars.

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for
communication between the shareholders and the Board. The Group
encourages its shareholders to attend annual general meeting to
ensure a high level of accountability and keep informed of the
Group’s strategy and goals. The Chairman of the Board and the
chairman of all the committees, or in their absence, other members
of the respective committees, are available to answer any questions
from the shareholders.
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Shareholders can convene a special general meeting by the
members of the Company holding at the date of the deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth (10%) of the paid-up capital of the
Company as at the date of the deposit carrying the right of voting at
general meetings of the Company. The requisitionists must submit
their requisition in writing in which it should state the objects of the
meeting and duly signed by the requisitionists, mailed and deposited
at Rooms 1908-10, The Center, 99 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong
for attention of the company secretary of the Company; and may
consist of several documents in like form, each signed by one or
more requisitionists. Such requisition will be verified with the
Company’s share registrar and upon its confirmation that the
requisition is proper and in order, the company secretary will ask the
board of directors to convene a special general meeting by serving
sufficient notice in accordance with the statutory requirements to all
registered shareholders, provided that the requisitionists have
deposited a sum of money reasonably sufficient to meet the
Company's expenses involved in convening a special general
meeting. On the contrary, if the requisition has been verified as not
in order, the requisitionists will be advised of this outcome and
accordingly, a special general meeting will not be convened as
requested. Such meeting shall be held within two (2) months after
the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days of such
deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the
requisitionists themselves may do so in accordance with the
provisions of section 74(3) of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda. A
meeting convened under this section by the requisitionists shall be
convened in the same manner, as nearly as possible, as that in
which meetings are to be convened by Directors in accordance to
the bye-laws of the Company and the Listing Rules. Any reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionists by reason of the failure of
the Directors duly to convene a meeting shall be repaid to the
requisitionists by the Company.
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Proposals at shareholders’ meetings can be put forward by the
members of the Company holding at the date of the submission of
the proposals not less than one-tenth (10%) of such of the paid-up
capital of the company as at the date of the submission carries the
right of voting at general meetings of the company. The submission
of the proposals must be made within three (3) business days after a
notice of the shareholders’ meeting have been served to all
registered shareholders by the Board. The proposals must be written
and must state the objects of the proposals, and must be signed by
the proposers, and mailed and deposited at Rooms 1908-10, The
Center, 99 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong for attention of the
company secretary of the Company; and may consist of several
documents in like form, each signed by one or more proposers. The
proposals will be verified with the Company’s share registrar and
upon its confirmation that the proposals are proper and in order, the
company secretary will ask the Board to update the resolutions by
serving sufficient notice in accordance with the statutory
requirements to all registered shareholders, provided that the
proposers have deposited a sum of money reasonably sufficient to
meet the Company’s expenses involved in publishing supplementary
circular and updating related resolutions. On the contrary, if the
requisition has been verified as not in order, the proposer will be
advised of this outcome and accordingly, no resolution will be
updated as requested.

Shareholders should direct their enquiries about their shareholdings
to the Company’s branch share registrar, Tricor Tengis Limited. Other
shareholders’ enquiries can be directed to the head office and
principal place of business of the Company as set out in the
Corporation Information section of this annual report for the
attention of company secretary.

Details of the shareholders' rights and communication policy are also
available on the Company’s website at www.simsen.com.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company maintains a website at www.simsen.com where
information and updates on the Company’s business developments
and operations, list of directors, and their role and function,
constitutional documents, terms of reference of the Board and its
committees, procedures for nomination of directors for election,
shareholders’ rights and communication policy, corporate
governance practices, announcements, circulars and reports
released to the Stock Exchange and other information are posted.
Information on the Company's website will be updated from time to
time.

There was no significant change in the Company’s constitutional
documents during the year ended 30 April 2013.

On behalf of the Board

Simsen International Corporation Limited
Fu Jiwen

Executive Director

Hong Kong, 26 July 2013
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The Directors present their report and the audited financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 30 April 2013.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details
of principal activities of the principal subsidiaries are set out in note
42 to the financial statements. There were no significant changes in
the nature of the Group’s principal activities during the year and up
to the date of this report.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group's loss for the year ended 30 April 2013 and the state of
affairs of the Company and of the Group at that date are set out in
the financial statements on pages 50 to 158.

The Board does not recommend the payment of any final dividend
for the year ended 30 April 2013 (2012: Nil).

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results, and assets, liabilities and
non- controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years,
as extracted from the audited financial statements and reclassified
as appropriate, is set out on pages 159 to 160. The summary does
not form part of the audited financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in note 13 to the financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital and share
options during the year are set out in notes 32 and 33 to the financial
Statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-Laws or
the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries’ purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year
ended 30 April 2013.
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RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and of the
Group are set out in note 34 to the financial statements and in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 54 and 55,
respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 30 April 2013, the Company has no reserves available for
distribution (2012: HK$24,361,000), in accordance with the provisions
of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS

During the year under review, the aggregate amount of turnover
attributable to the Group’s five largest customers represented 45%
of the Group'’s total turnover and turnover to the largest customer
included therein amounted to 21%.

None of the Directors of the Company or any of their associates or
any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any
beneficial interest in the Group’s largest customers.

DIRECTORS
The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were as follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Fu Jiwen

Ms. Zhou Baoying (appointed on 22 July 2013)
Mr. Ji Xiao Bo (resigned on 6 February 2013)

Independent Non-Executive Directors:

Mr. Zhu Chengwu

Mr. Yeung Siu Keung (appointed on 19 December 2012)

Mr. Chen Wai Chung Edmund (appointed on 8 July 2013)

Mr. Choi Man Chau Michael (resigned on 19 December 2012)
Mr. Li Haifeng (resigned on 9 April 2013)

All of the Directors including independent non-executive Directors
are appointed for a specific term and all of the Directors subject to
retirement at the first general meeting of the Company after their
appointment, and thereafter subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at the annual general meeting in accordance with the Bye-
Laws.
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In accordance with bye-law no. 87(1) and (2) of the Bye-Laws, Mr.
Zhu Chengwu shall retire from office as Directors by rotation and,
being eligible, offer himself for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

In accordance with bye-law no. 86(2B) of the Bye-Laws, Mr. Chen
Wai Chung Edmund, Mr. Yeung Siu Keung and Ms. Zhou Baoying
shall retire from office as Director and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES

Executive Directors

Ms. Zhou Baoying (“Ms. Zhou"), aged 28, holds a Bachelor Degree
in Business Administration from Beijing Institute of Business. She is
currently an investment general manager of Beijing PawnCo and a
director and the legal representative of Shanghai PawnCo. Beijing
PawnCo and Shanghai PawnCo are the members of the Group. Ms.
Zhou did not hold other directorships in any listed public companies
in the last three years. Saved for the abovementioned, Ms. Zhou
does not have any position with other members of the Group.

Ms. Zhou entered into an appointment letter with the Company on
22 July 2013 for an initial term of one year commencing from 22 July
2013, which is automatically renewable for successive terms of one
year upon the expiry of the said term. She is subject to retirement at
the first general meeting after her appointment and thereafter
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years and
in accordance with the Bye-Laws of the Company. Ms. Zhou is
entitled to a director’s fee of HK$120,000 per annum, which is
determined with reference to the prevailing market rate and her
duties and responsibilities in the Company. Ms. Zhou's director’s fee
is subject to review by the Board and the Remuneration Committee
from time to time. Ms. Zhou does not have any relationships with
any Directors, senior management, substantial shareholders (as
defined in the Listing Rules) or controlling shareholders (as defined in
the Listing Rules) of the Company. She does not have any interest in
the shares of the Company within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”).
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Mr. Fu Jiwen (“Mr. Fu"), aged 32, has been appointed as an
executive Director and the member of the Operational Committee
since February 2011. He has also been appointed as a member of
Nomination and Corporate Governance Committee since March
2012. Mr. Fu holds a bachelor degree of Law from Chongging
University in the PRC and a master degree in International
Management from University of Reading in the United Kingdom. He
is a qualified lawyer in the PRC and is now working as a foreigner
lawyer in Ng & Shum Solicitors & Notaries.

Mr. Fu did not hold any directorship in other listed public companies
in Hong Kong during the past three years. He is a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company. Save as disclosed above, he does not
hold any other positions with the Group.

Mr. Fu entered into an appointment letter with the Company on 22
February 2011 for an initial term of two years commencing on 22
February 2011, which is automatically renewable for successive
terms of one year upon the expiry of the said term. He is subject to
retirement at the first general meeting after his appointment and
thereafter subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years in accordance with the Bye-Laws. Mr. Fu is entitled to a
director’'s remuneration of HK$1,080,000 per annum, which is
determined by the Board with reference to the recommendation
from the Remuneration Committee, the duties and responsibilities of
Mr. Fu and the prevailing market conditions.

Mr. Fu does not have any relationship with any Directors, senior
management, substantial shareholders (as defined in the Listing
Rules) or controlling shareholders (as defined in the Listing Rules) of
the Company. He does not have any interest in the shares of the
Company within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Yeung Siu Keung (“Mr. Yeung"), aged 30, holds a Bachelor
Degree of Commerce in Accounting from Hong Kong Shue Yan
University. Mr. Yeung is a Certified Public Accountant of Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Yeung has over 4 years
of solid experiences in the field of accounting and finance from his
past work experiences. Save as disclosed above, Mr. Yeung did not
hold any directorship in other listed public companies in the past
three years and does not hold any other positions with the Group.
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Mr. Yeung entered into an appointment letter with the Company on
19 December 2012 for an initial term of one year commencing on 19
December 2012 which is automatically renewable for successive
terms of one year upon the expiry of the said term. He is subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years and in
accordance with the Bye-Laws. Mr. Yeung is entitled to a director’s
remuneration of HK$120,000 per annum, which is determined by the
Board with reference to the recommendation from the Remuneration
Committee, the duties and responsibilities of Mr. Yeung and the
prevailing market conditions.

Mr. Yeung does not have any relationship with any Directors, senior
management, substantial shareholders (as defined in the Listing
Rules) or controlling shareholders (as defined in the Listing Rules) of
the Company. He does not have any interest in the shares of the
Company within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO.

Mr. Chen Wai Chung Edmund (“Mr. Chen”), aged 40, is a
Certified Public Accountant of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He has over 15 years of solid experiences in business
management, auditing, accounting and internal control. Mr. Chen did
not hold other directorships in any listed public companies in Hong
Kong or overseas in the last three years or any position with the
Company or other members of the Group. Mr. Chen entered into an
appointment letter with the Company on 8 July 2013 for an initial
term of one year commencing from 8 July 2013, which is
automatically renewable for successive terms of one year upon the
expiry of the said term. He is subject to retirement at the first general
meeting after his appointment and thereafter subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every three years and in accordance with
the Bye-Laws of the Company. Mr. Chen is entitled to a director’s
remuneration of HK$120,000 per annum, which is determined with
reference to the prevailing market rate and his duties and
responsibilities in the Company. Mr. Chen's director’s fee is subject
to review by the Board and the Remuneration Committee of the
Company from time to time.

Mr. Chen does not have any relationships with any Directors, senior
management, substantial shareholders (as defined in the Listing
Rules) or controlling shareholders (as defined in the Listing Rules) of
the Company. He does not have any interest in the shares of the
Company within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO.
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Mr. Zhu Chengwu (“Mr. Zzhu"), aged 43, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 23 April 2010. He is also the
chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of the
Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr. Zhu holds a bachelor
degree in Finance from the Lanzhou University of Finance and
Economics (B M & £ Bz). Mr. Zhu acquired the intermediate-level
accountant certificate jointly issued by the Ministry of Finance and
the Ministry of Personnel of the PRC in 2000. Since May 2006, Mr.
Zhu has been the founder and managing director of Shanghai Zzhong
Hong Wan Lian Investment Management Co. Ltd. ( /89 s 8B E
& ¥ A PR A 7). He has been appointed as an independent non-
executive director of United Energy Group Limited, a company the
shares of which are listed on the Stock Exchange, since December
2005. Mr. Zhu was the director and had assumed the role of chief
financial officer of Shenzhen Techo Telecom Co., Ltd. (RIINTT A KL E
ZRDBRR A7), a PRC company the shares of which are listed on
the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, during the period from 2002 to 2004.
Mr. Zhu was the chief financial officer of Everbright Securities
Company Limited during the period from January 2005 to February
2006.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Zhu did not hold any directorship in
other listed public companies in the past three years and does not
hold any other positions with the Group.

Mr. Zhu entered into an appointment letter with the Company on 23
April 2010 for an initial term of two years commences on 23 April
2010 which is automatically renewable for successive terms of one
year upon the expiry of the said term. He is subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years and in accordance with the
Bye-Laws. Mr. Zhu is entitled to a director’'s remuneration of
HK$210,000 per annum, which is determined by the Board with
reference to the recommendation from the Remuneration
Committee, the duties and responsibilities of Mr. Zhu and the
prevailing market conditions.

Mr. Zhu does not have any relationship with any Directors, senior
management, substantial Shareholders (as defined in the Listing
Rules) or controlling Shareholders (as defined in the Listing Rules) of
the Company. He does not have any interest in the shares of the
Company within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTION

On 9 July 2012, Profit Keen as purchaser entered into a sales &
purchase agreement with Ms. Wu Chia Lien as vendor and Ms. Cui Li
Jie and Mr. Xu Yan as guarantors for the vendor for acquisition of all
of the issued share capital of the Target Company, which its group
engages in pawn loan business in Mainland China. Pursuant to the
sales & purchase agreement, the vendor irrevocably and
unconditionally guarantees to the purchaser that the audited net
profits before tax and minority interests and any extraordinary or
exceptional items of the pawn loan business of the Target group as
shown in its audited consolidated financial statement to be prepared
in accordance with PRC generally accepted accounting standards,
for each of the two twelve months periods following the date of the
completion will not be less than: (a) RMB4,967,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$6,059,740), if the verified paid-up capital of Beijing
PawnCo as at Completion is RMB13,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$15,860,000); or (b) RMB10,367,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$12,647,740), if the verified paid-up capital of
Beijing PawnCo as at Completion is RMB40,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$48,800,000), (the “Guaranteed Profit").

Profit Keen is entitled (but not obliged) to procure the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Target Group be prepared
and reported on by the auditors (in accordance with PRC generally
accepted accounting standards) for any or all of the Relevant Periods
at any time prior to the date falling four months after the expiry of
any relevant period (i.e. from 25 September 2012 to 24 September
2013 and from 25 September 2013 to 24 September 2014, and the
auditors shall issue a certificate (the “Guarantee Certificate”) to
certify the amount of the audited profit for such relevant period(s).
The Guarantee Certificate shall, in the absence of manifest error, be
final and conclusive of the matters stated therein and binding on the
vendor, the Vendor's guarantors and the purchaser. The Company
will publish an announcement as such as soon as practicable.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting, have service(s) contracts with
the Company which are not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A new share option scheme of the Company (“Share Option
Scheme”) in replacement of the existing share option scheme was
approved and adopted by the Shareholders of the Company at its
annual general meeting held on 9 September 2011 (“Adoption Date”).
A summary of the Share Option Scheme is summarized below:

(1) Purpose
The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the
Company to grant options to the Eligible Participants as
incentives or rewards for their contribution to the Group.

(2) Participants
(i any employee (whether full time or part time, including
any executive Director but excluding any non-executive
Director) of the Company, any subsidiary of the Company
or any Invested Entity;,

(i) any non-executive Director (including independent non-
executive director) of the Company, any subsidiary of the
Company or any Invested Entity;

(i) any supplier of goods or services to any member of the
Group or Invested Entity;

(iv) any customer of the Group or any Invested Entity;

(v) any person or entity that provides research, development
or other technological support to the Group or any
Invested Entity;,

(viy any shareholder of any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity or any holder of any securities issued by
any member of the Group or any Invested Entity; and

(vii) any other group or classes of participants from time to
time determined by the Directors as having contributed
or may contribute by way of joint venture and business
alliance to the development and growth of the Group.
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(3)

(4)

40

Total number of Shares available for issue

Scheme Mandate Limit — Subject to the paragraph below, the
total number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and
any other schemes of the Company must not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the Shares in issue as of 9 September 2011.

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other
schemes of the Company must not exceed 30% of the Shares
in issue from time to time.

The total number of Shares available for issue under the Share
Option Scheme was 2,727,992,400, being 10% of the issued
share capital of the Company on the Adoption Date. Since the
Adoption Date and up to the date of this report (the
“Intervening Period”), due to the consolidation of every fifty
issued existing shares into one issued consolidated share, the
issue of 90,000,000 shares under placing on 6 July 2012, the
issue of 8,800 shares and 64,400 shares upon exercise of
subscription rights attached to the warrants on 16 August 2012
and 27 August 2012 respectively and on 26 April 2013, issue of
1,907,018,640 rights shares at the subscription price of
HK$0.095 per rights share on the basis of three rights shares
for every one share held on the record date, the number of the
issued Shares was significantly decreased from 27,279,924,000
Shares as at the Adoption Date to 2,542,691,520 Shares as at
the date of this report. Refreshment of the Scheme Mandate
Limit will be put forward to the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company for approval.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of options (whether exercised or outstanding) in any
12-month period granted to each participant shall not exceed
1% of the Shares in issue from time to time. However, subject
to separate approval by the shareholders of the Company in
general meeting with such Eligible Participant abstaining from
voting and provided that the Company shall issue a circular to
Shareholders before such approval is sought, the Company
may grant a participant options which would exceed the
aforesaid limit.

@3)

(4)
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(5) Option period

The Option Period of an option may not end later than 10 years

after the Offer Date of that option.

(6) Minimum period for which an option must be held

before it is vested

There is no minimum period for which an option must be held
before it can be exercised. The period during which an option
may be exercised will be determined by the Board in its
absolute discretion, save that no option may be exercised

more than 10 years after it has been granted.

(7) Payment on acceptance of the option

Upon acceptance of the option, the Grantee shall pay HK$1.00
to the Company by way of consideration for the grant within
such time as may be specified in the Offer (which shall not be

later than 21 days from the Offer Date).

(8) Basis of determining the subscription price

The subscription price shall be determined by the Board in its
absolute discretion at the time of grant of the relevant option

but must be at least the highest of:

(i)  the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange's daily quotation sheet on the offer date which

must be a business day; and

(i) the average closing price of the Shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet for the five

business days immediately preceding the offer date
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(9) Effects of re-organisation of capital structure

In the event of any alteration in the capital structure of the
Company whilst any Option remains exercisable or the Share
Option Scheme remains in effect, and such event arises from a
capitalization of profits or reserves, rights issue, consolidation,
sub-division or reduction of the share capital of the Company,
then, in any such case the Company shall instruct the
independent financial adviser to certify in writing the
adjustment, if any, that ought in their opinion fairly and
reasonably to be made either generally or as regards any
particular Grantee, to:

(@ the number or nominal amount of Shares to which the
New Share Option Scheme or any Option(s) relates
(insofar as it is/they are unexercised); and/or

(b)  the subscription price of any Option; and/or

(c) (unless the relevant Grantee elects to waive such
adjustment) the number of Shares comprised in an
Option or which remain comprised in an Option; and/or

(d)  the method of exercise of any Option; and/or
(e)  the maximum number of Shares,

and an adjustment as so certified by the independent financial
adviser shall be made, provided that:

(@ any such adjustment shall give the Grantee the same
proportion of the issued share capital of the Company for
which such Grantee would have been entitled to
subscribe had he exercised all the Options held by him
immediately prior to such adjustment; and

(b)  no such adjustment shall be made the effect of which
would be to enable a Share to be issued at less than its
nominal value.

(10) The remaining life of the Share Option Scheme

42

The Share Option Scheme will remain valid for a period of 10
years commencing from 9 September 2011 and will expire on 8
September 2021.

No share option has been granted or exercised during the year
ended 30 April 2013 under the Share Option Scheme.

(9)

(10)
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 41 to the financial statements, no Director
had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any contract of
significance to the business of the Group to which the Company or
any of its subsidiaries was a party during the year ended 30 April
2013.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES
As at 30 April 2013, none of the Directors nor chief executives of the
Company and their respective associates has any interest or short
position in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO) which were notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests and short positions which they were taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) or which were
recorded in the register kept by the Company under section 352 of
the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’' RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted
to any Director or their respective spouse or children under 18 years
of age, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to
any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire such rights in
any other body corporate.
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INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS
UNDER THE SFO

As at 30 April 2013, the following persons (other than a Director or
chief executive of the Company) had interests or short positions in
the shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO:

Interests and/or Short Positions in Shares and
Underlying Shares of the Company

BERBEFRS T 2T ERRER

R-B—=EMA=+8 FHA+(EERA
RARBIHA BRI RARF 2B 15 RAH
B 45 o 5 1R 8 B 3 T R M2 336 1B R
AR BB BARAR -

REDRROREBRG ZERER, KRR

Number of issued ordinary shares of HK$0.001 each in

the Company

ARAEREE0.001 Bz ERITEBRER

Number of  Approximate

Long position/ ordinary percentage of
Notes Capacity  short position shares held  shareholding
Name of shareholder BRRHE/ B8 (i3 5% He/ %R FHZEREE BABREIN
Super Century Investments ETREBRAA 1 Beneficial owner Long position 564,323,972 22.19%
Limited EREBA e
Mr. Ji Xiao Bo ("Mr. Ji") LEREE 1 Interest of Long position 564,323,972 22.19%
([RBxE]) controlled e
corporation
SR E VNG 33
Mr. Peng Xiaodong (‘Mr. Peng")  &iEm kA 1 Interest of Long position 564,323,972 22.19%
(233 controlled 17E
corporation
SRR R
Best Harvest Asia Limited EBEMERAF 2,3 Beneficial owner Long position 168,000,000 6.61%
("Best Harvest") ([EB)) g ZUN e
Pacific Plywood Holdings Limited ~ KA =E #12% 2,3 Interest of Long position 168,000,000 6.61%
("Pacific Plywood") AR controlled e
([RPHEE]) corporation
SRR ER
Allied Summit Inc. Allied Summit Inc. 3 Beneficial owner Long position 168,000,000 6.61%
("Allied Summit") ([Allied Summit]) ERBAEA e
Mr. Su Wei Biao (‘M. Su’) HeEREE 3 Interest of Long position 168,000,000 6.61%
([BEE]) controlled 1A
corporation

BRI
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Number of issued ordinary shares of HK$0.001 each in

the Company
AARBREE0.001 Bz B#TEERYA

Number of  Approximate

Long position/ ordinary percentage of
Notes Capacity  short position shares held  shareholding
Name of shareholder BRRHE/ 28 (i 5% He/ %R FRHEZEREE BABRESN
Mrs. Chu Yuet Wah FRELL 4 Interest of Long position 1,057,680,077 41.60%
controlled e
corporation

Active Dynamic Limited Active Dynamic 4
Limited

Kingston Financial Group Limited ~ 47|44 g EE 4
BRAT

Kingston Capital Asia Limited Kingston Capital Asia 4

Limited

Galaxy Sky Investments Limited ~ Galaxy Sky 4
Investments
Limited

Kingston Securities Limited eNEESFERRA 4

REHRAER

Interest of Long position 1,057,680,077 41.60%
controlled e
corporation

REHRAES

Interest of Long position 1,057,680,077 41.60%
controlled e
corporation

KB R AR

Interest of Long position 1,057,680,077 41.60%
controlled e
corporation

REHI R AR

Interest of Long position 1,057,680,077 41.60%
controlled e
corporation

REHREER

Interest of Long position 1,057,680,077 41.60%
controlled e
corporation

REH RS
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Notes:

1. Super Century was interested in 564,323,972 ordinary shares of the
Company. Super Century was owned as to 60% by Mr. Peng and 40%
by Mr. Ji. Therefore, Mr. Peng and Mr. Ji were deemed to be interested
in the ordinary shares and the warrants of the Company owned by
Super Century.

2. Best Harvest is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Pacific Plywood which is
interested in 168,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company.

3. Allied Summit, which is beneficially owned as to 80% by Mr. Su is
interested in the shareholding of 58.27% of Pacific Plywood. Therefore,
Pacific Plywood, Allied Summit and Mr. Su were deemed to be
interested in the ordinary shares of the Company owned by Best
Harvest.

4. Kingston Securities Limited (“Kingston Securities”) as an underwriter
pursuant to the underwriting agreement has agreed to fully underwrite
1,483,775,661 underwritten shares. On 26 April 2013, the Rights Issue
became unconditional which Kingston Securities eventually underwrote
1,057,679,857 shares of the Company while it is benefically interested
in 220 shares of the Company. Mrs. Chu Yuet Wah is the ultimate
beneficial owner of Active Dynamic Limited which owns as to 40.24%
of Kingston Financial Group Limited. The 100% shareholdings of
Kingston Capital Asia Limited, is owned by Kingston Financial Group
Limited, which, wholly owns Galaxy Sky Investments Limited (“Galaxy
Sky"). Kingston Securities Limited is a wholly owned subsidiary of
Galaxy Sky. Therefore, its ultimate controlling shareholder of Kingston
Securities as mentioned above are deemed to be interested in the
shares owned by Kingston Securities.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 April 2013, no other person (other
than a Director or chief executive of the Company) had interests or
short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
as recorded in the register kept by the Company under Section 336
of the SFO.

DISCLOSURES PURSUANT TO RULE 13.22 OF THE
LISTING RULES

In accordance with the disclosure requirements of Rule 13.22 of the
Listing Rules, details in respect of financial assistance given to
affiliated companies are set out in note 17 to the financial
Statements.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
A report on the principal corporate governance practices adopted by
the Company is set out on pages 14 to 31 of this report.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s
total issued share capital was held by the public as at the date of this
report.

EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING
PERIOD

Details of the significant events after the reporting period of the
Group are set out in note 46 to the financial statements.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established in accordance with the
requirements of Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules, for the purposes of
reviewing and providing supervision over the Group's financial
reporting process and internal control systems, and compliance with
the relevant rules and regulations. The Audit Committee currently
comprises three independent non-executive Directors, Messrs. Zhu
Chengwu (as chairman), Yeung Siu Keung and Chen Wai Chung
Edmund. The Audit Committee has reviewed the audited financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 30 April 2013.

AUDITORS

The financial statements for the year were audited by Zenith CPA
Limited whose term of office will expire upon the forthcoming annual
general meeting. In March 2012, the practice of Messrs. HLB
Hodgson Impey Cheng as partnership was recognised as HLB
Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited which has resigned as auditors of the
Company on 30 April 2013. The Audit Committee has recommended
to the Board that Zenith CPA Limited be nominated for
re-appointment as the auditors of the Company at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Simsen International Corporation Limited
Fu Jiwen

Executive Director

Hong Kong, 26 July 2013

* For identification only
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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To the shareholders of
Simsen International Corporation Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Simsen
International Corporation Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out on pages 50 to 158, which
comprise the consolidated and company statements of financial
position as at 30 April 2013, and the consolidated income statement,
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. Our report is made solely to
you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Y88 A B e o

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as
at 30 April 2013, and of the Group's loss and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Zenith CPA Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Cheng Po Yuen

Practicing Certificate Number: P04887
Hong Kong

26 July 2013
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

BRI

Year ended 30 April 2013 &HE—T—=FMA=+HIIFEZ

2013 2012
—E—-= —E——fF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B aE FET FH&T
REVENUE A 5 95,558 137,998
Other income and gains or losses, net H g A R e sk @18 558 5 816 1,946
Brokerage and commission expenses LR EeRX (15,957) (29,487)
Administrative and other operating TR R B b 2
expenses (114,628) (124,243)
Fair value loss on convertible notes EEABBRATETA
designated as at fair value through BRI A3 ERE
profit or loss 2 ANFEEE 18 (3,833) (13,222)
(Loss)/gain on disposal of items of HEWE  BEREZEIER
property, plant and equipment 2 (E518),/Wa (1,770) 4,724
Loss on disposal of available-for-sale HERHIPE 2 RAKRE
equity investments 2 B8 = (1,557)
Provision for impairment of loans and B R EBIRSORERHE
accounts receivable, net FEE 20 (15,298) (18,444)
Finance costs BEEMR 7 (71) (119)
LOSS BEFORE TAX MBS 18 6 (55,183) (42,404)
Income tax expense Frig®if 10 (1,674) (685)
LOSS FOR THE YEAR FEEHE (56,857) (43,089)
Attributable to: AT & R -
Owners of the Company KAEEB A 1 (56,901) (43,044)
Non-controlling interests FEIERR AR SR i 44 (45)
(56,857) (43,089)
LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO AARERERERKR
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE EihEREE (Restated)
COMPANY 12 (#e&E7)
Basic and diluted EARNEE HK(7.82) HK(9.54)
cents &1l cents A1l
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
B 2 W A

Year ended 30 April 2013 EHEZE - —=FMA =+ HILFEZ

2013 2012
—E—= —E—F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B aE F#&T FH&T
LOSS FOR THE YEAR FEBA (56,857) (43,089)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE Hth2mE (Bx) W=
(EXPENSE)/INCOME
Available-for-sale equity investments: AHEE 2 RTIEE
Changes in fair value NEES) 19 (62,889) 73,540
Reclassification adjustment for loss RPN G ot
included in the consolidated EEEL 2
income statement B EAR 19 = (340)
(62,889) 73,200
Exchange differences on translation of BMEBINEB CERZEE
foreign operations 4,238 (13)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE (EXPENSE)/ FEEMEZE (X)) WEH
INCOME FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX (HRRBiE) (58,651) 73,187
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE (EXPENSE)/ FEZE (X)W
INCOME FOR THE YEAR ekl (115,508) 30,098
Attributable to: AT &7
Owners of the Company ViN/NEIEZE N 1 (115,546) 30,143
Non-controlling interests VARG AR SR i 38 (45)
(115,508) 30,098
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

B IR DL R

30 April 2013 = —=FMA=+H

2013 2012
—E—= —E——-fF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B sE FHExT FHT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - R NEEE 13 5,692 11,602
Goodwill [EES 14 21,442 1,498
Other long term assets HmREIEE 15 4,275 4,103
Intangible assets mEE 16 2,350 2,350
Convertible notes designated as at fair FBEARAFEF ABRE
value through profit or loss AR &5 18 93,230 247,063
Available-for-sale equity investments A HE 2 IRRIRE 19 78,555 120,000
Loans and accounts receivable B R EWERTK 20 576 -
Deposit paid for acquisition of a WiE—MRB A e
subsidiary ZE® - 900
Total non-current assets EMENEELE 206,120 387,516
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Loans and accounts receivable B EBERK 20 348,854 606,504
Prepayments, deposits and other FEfRETE - 5T4 REMELR
receivables BRFX 21 110,408 9,293
Equity investments at fair value through 2 QA A ABZEY
profit or loss BARGE 22 1,599 843
Bank trust account balances RITEFERP &R 23 172,049 149,429
Pledged bank deposits AEIPRITIER 24 5,000 10,000
Cash and cash equivalents BeMReFEER 24 570,119 215,272
Total current assets MEVEEEE 1,208,029 991,341
CURRENT LIABILITIES A=K
Accounts payable JETEE SR 25 185,100 220,123
Other payables and accruals HEMEAERERRETER 26 25,516 23,633
Finance leases payable FEAT B A TR 28 121 141
Tax payable R ERIE 694 685
Due to a non-controlling shareholder K—REIRB AT —%
of a subsidiary FERR PR R 2 ;B 29 - 5,850
Total current liabilities MENE EERE 211,431 250,432
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFE 996,598 740,909
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EERERRBERE
LIABILITIES 1,202,718 1,128,425
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

St RN

30 April 2013 = —=FPA=+H

2013 2012
—E—-= —E——4F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B sE FExT FHET
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FREBEE
Finance leases payable FEfT R E AT 28 83 204
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIEAE 30 80 80
Provision for long service payments REARTS S B 31 577 1,564
Provision for reinstatement 1BIERE 2,265 1,100
Total non-current liabilities ERBEEERE 3,005 2,948
Net assets BERE 1,199,713 1,125,477
EQUITY £
Equity attributable to owners of KRREHEB AE L ERE
the Company
Issued capital BT 32 2,543 546
Reserves B 34(a) 1,197,170 1,124,976
1,199,713 1,125,522
Non-controlling interests FEVERR AR R A = (45)
Total equity M EEE 1,199,713 1,125,477

The consolidated financial statements on pages 50 to 158 were
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 26
July 2013 and are signed on its behalf by:

Fu Jiwen
BRI
Director
EFE

FOEIBAZEAMBHRREN-F—=F+H
“HARKESEHAERFETE  YHTINES

REEE

Zhou Baoying
BAEx
Director
EE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
AT REAR SE W) R

Year ended 30 April 202 BE—ZE——FMA=1+HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company
RAREE AES
Available-
for-sale
Share investment ~ Currency Non-
Issued premium  Contributed  revaluation  translation Retained controlling Total
capital account Surplus** reserve reserve profits Total interests equity
AfHEZ
REERE  JMERE R
BERE  ROEEE  HARHB B e REEA g REER  EasE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
FiEr Fhx Fhr T Fir Fhr Fhr Fi#r T
At1May 2011 W=E——%1A-B 10,830 186,689 - - - 88,459 285978 - 285,978
Loss for the year FEEE - - - - - (43,044) (43,044) (45) (43,089)
Other comprehensive income/(expense) — FEE2ERE/(H%)
for the year:
Changes in fair value of MEHEZRAREZ
avallable-for-sale equity investments ALEEY - - - 73,200 - - 73,200 - 73,200
Exchange differences on translation BENEBIERER
of foreign operations - - - - (13 - (13) - (13
Total comprehensive income/(expense)  FE2ENE/(Bx) &8
for the year - - - 73,200 (13 (43,044) 30,143 (45) 30,098
ISSue of new shares by way of placing ~ BBEER{THRG
(note 32(b) (FzE32000) 2,160 37,800 - - - - 39,960 - 39,960
Issue of new shares by way of rights BRERBTHRR
issue (note 32(c)) (F3E320) 259,809 519,617 - - - - 779,426 - 779,426
Transaction costs attributable toissue  EIHEREERHHA
of new shares - (9,985 - - - - (9,985) - (9,985
Transfer of credit arising from the ERRRAEAE TRE
capital reduction in relation to the BIRMES
Capital Reorganisation (B3 32000 % ()
(note 32(d)i) and (v)) (272,253) - 272,253 - - - - - -
At 30 April 2012 WZZ-—EMA=1H 546 734,121% 272,253* 73,200 (13 4545% 1125522 (45) 1125477
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
AT REAR SR W)k

Year ended 30 April 2013 E —ZE—=FMA=+HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

KRAEEAES
Available-
for-sale Retained
Share investment Currency profits/ Non-
Issued premium  Contributed  revaluation translation (accumulated controlling Total
capital account surplus**  reserve reserve loss) Total interests equity
AHEES
REEf MERE  REER/ 2R
BRORE  RHEER 0N 1] e (RHER) &3t RRER BREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
TR TER T#R FiEn TR T#R FEn TiEn TER
At 1May 2012 W-E--%1A-A 546 734121 272,253 73,200 (13) 45415 1,125,522 (45) 1,125,477
Loss for the year FEFE - - - - - (56901)  (56,901) 4 (56,857)
Other comprehensive Income/(expense) Rt 2EMRE/ (%) :
for the year:
Changes in fair value of available-for- ARitEzRARE L
sale equity investments ATHEES = = - (62,889) = - (62,889) = (62,889)
Exchange differences on translation REBNEB R ER
of foreign operations - - - - 4,244 - 4,244 (6) 4,238
Total comprehensive income/(expense)  £E2EMWE/(Fx) L8
for the year - - - (62,889) 4,244 (56,901)  (115,546) 38 (115,508)
Acquisition of non-controlling B SRR R R
interests - - - - - (709) (709) 7 (702)
Issuie of new shares by way of placing BREERTIRN
(note 3219) (MiE3210) 90 13,950 - - - - 14,040 - 14,040
IsSue of new shares by way of rights BBERETHES
issue (note 32(g) (W5E32(9) 1,907 179,260 = = = = 181,167 = 181,167
Issue of new shares by way of warrants BT RREERTHRG
exercise (note 32(e)) (W 320)) - 12 - - - - 12 - 12
Transaction costs attributable to issue BIHRAEERBHRE
of new shares = (4,873) - - - - (4,873) - (4,873)
At 30 April 2013 R=E-=FNA=1A 2,543 922,570* 272,253+ 10,311* 4,231% (12,195)¢ 1,199,713 - 119713

* The consolidated reserves of approximately HK$1,197,170,000 (2012:  *
HK$1,124,976,000) in the consolidated statement of financial position

comprise these reserve accounts.

*x Under the Companies Act of Bermuda, the Company’s contributed =
surplus is distributable to shareholders under certain circumstances.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

A AT e

Year ended 30 April 2013 HEZE =T —=F WA=

+RIEFE

2013 2012
—E—= —E——_fF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B aE FH&T FH&TT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RETHHERE
ACTIVITIES
Loss before tax BRI RTS8 (55,183) (42,404)
Adjustments for: R -
Finance costs BEEM 7 71 19
Interest income FE A 5 (178) (34)
Fair value loss on convertible notes BEREAFERA
designated as at fair value through Bk TR ER
profit or loss 2 NF{EEE 3,833 13,222
Loss on disposal of available-for-sale HEHEE 2R/
equity investments wE 7 BE = 1,557
Write-off of loans and accounts 88 B 30 R P M AR K
receivable 6 30 -
Depreciation e 6 5,900 6,323
Write-back of provision for long service — RHIRTS & B &R R F5E
payments, net 6 (875) (1,431)
Loss/(gain) on disposal of items of LEYE - BB REE
property, plant and equipment BB Z BB (Wa) 1,770 (4,724)
Provision for impairment of loans and B R ERERFRE
accounts receivable, net BT 15,298 18,444
(29,334) (8,928)
Decrease/(increase) in loans and BN ERERETORLD
accounts receivable (3 1) 269,758 (454,822)
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments, TR ~ BT M EAM
deposits and other receivables FEYRR R (38 )R (100,745) 7,437
(Increase)/decrease in equity investments 12 A F(EEF ABZEY
at fair value through profit or loss REAIRE (32 n),/ 5 (756) 1,806
(Increase)/decrease in bank trust account $R/T{ZEEER P &4
balances (3h0), 8k (22,620) 96,408
Decrease in accounts payable JE A~ BR FURL (35,023) (71,826)
Increase in other payables and accruals — E fih fE T BR 5% K JEET
£ g 3,300 12,984
(Decrease)/increase in provision for 1&1E 54 CFl L) /1L
reinstatement (514) 363
Decrease in provision for long service REIRTS S BER
payments (112) -
Cash generated from/(used in) operations &4 %5EESLE (FrA) R4 83,954 (416,578)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

BBl Rk

Year ended 30 April 2013 B ZE = —=F A=+ HILFE

2013 2012
—E—= —E—F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B aE F#&T FH&T
Cash generated from/(used in) operations 484 EH~ (AR S 83,954 (416,578)
Interest received BF B 178 34
Interest paid EfFIE - @)
Tax paid BERNHIA (2,149) -
Net cash flows from/(used in) operating — &&ZBES,(FTA) 2
activities REMEFH 81,983 (416,551)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING BRETEZEERE
ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from redemption of B[O AT IR P15 BUE
convertible notes 18 150,000 -
Decrease in pledged time deposits BIEMFERFIUR LD 5,000 505
Proceeds from disposal of items of HEME - WEREE
property, plant and equipment 15 H Fﬁ?%%’ﬂ 4 8,005
Acquisition of subsidiaries BB A 35 (45,600) -
Purchase of available-for-sale equity NE A th%ZH§$&§
investments (21,444) (61,800)
Purchases of items of property, plant NEWME - WEMKEER
and equipment (1,718) (3,857)
(Increase)/decrease in other long term HabREAEE (35m), m
assets (172) 2,125
Proceeds from disposal of HEHTEE ZRA
available-for-sale equity investments WESRIA = 13,443
Purchase of convertible notes //JE—W‘HXmTF 18 = (260,285)
Deposit paid for acquisition of WiE—MEME A
a subsidiary BNz & 35 - (900)
Net cash flows from/(used in) investing  #®&EZBES(FTR) 2
activities WEMEFE 86,070 (302,764)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

A AT e

Year ended 30 April 2013 BZE = —=F A=+ HIFE

2013 2012
—E—= —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FH&TT
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING METH2RERE
ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of shares BT PS8 195,319 819,386
Acquisition of non-controlling interests Ui BE R4 A I SR A 2 (6,552) -
Share issue expenses A& EITR (4,873) (9,985)
Capital element of finance lease rental BERNES 2 BRI
payments (141) (190)
Interest paid BEAFE (71) (112)
Advance from a non-controlling — A B A 7 — R IFER
shareholder of a subsidiary AR 2 25K = 5,850
Net cash flows from financing activities BNESEEIEA RS
mE SR 183,682 814,949
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH ReRESEHEER
EQUIVALENTS EnREEE 351,735 95,634
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning REVIZRe MRE
of year :TEIE B 215,272 119,651
Effect of foreign exchange rate fEREE BT
changes, net 3,112 (13)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RERZEERES
AT END OF YEAR £@EEH 570,119 215,272
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

LB N

30 April 2013 = —=FPA=+H

2013 2012
—E-= —F——F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5T FERT FETT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries REB AR Z’E 17 41,511 41,510
Convertible notes designated as at fair $eF B AT ES ABRE
value through profit or loss PR )t 18 - 119,599
Available-for-sale equity investments A HE 2 RARE 19 78,555 120,000
Total non-current assets ERBEELE 120,066 281,109
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Due from subsidiaries A NG 17 640,437 804,161
Prepayments, deposits and other TENFIE - FTe REAM
receivables TEUBE TR 21 101,494 4,194
Cash and cash equivalents BekReEEER 24 353,609 93,144
Total current assets MBEELE 1,095,540 901,499
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Due to subsidiaries NG E e 17 26,056 81,875
Other payables and accruals HiEAERRESER 26 4,157 3,290
Total current liabilities mEBELRTE 30,213 85,165
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 1,065,327 816,334
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EEAERARBERS
LIABILITIES 1,185,393 1,097,443
NON-CURRENT LIABILITY FRBEME
Provision for reinstatement {B1E R 187 15
Net assets BEFE 1,185,206 1,097,428
EQUITY s
Issued capital BEITIRA 32 2,543 546
Reserves & 34(b) 1,182,663 1,096,882
Total equity M iARE 1,185,206 1,097,428
Fu Jiwen Zhou Baoying
fEEE BAExR
Director Director
D EF
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SV 5 A Wik

30 April 2013 = —=FMA=+H

2.1

60

CORPORATE INFORMATION
The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in
Bermuda. The head office and principal place of operations of
the Company is situated at Rooms 1908-10, 19/F, The Center,
99 Queen'’s Road Central, Hong Kong.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Details of principal activities of the principal subsidiaries of the
Company are set out in note 42 to the consolidated financial
Statements.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") (which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs") and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong, and the disclosure requirements of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, except for certain
financial instruments and equity investments, which have been
measured at fair value. These consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$") and all
values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when
otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 30 April 2013.
The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for
the same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are
consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the date on
which the Group obtains control, and continue to be
consolidated until the date that such control ceases. All intra-
group balances, transactions, unrealised gains and losses
resulting from intra-group transactions and dividends are
eliminated on consolidation in full.

Total comprehensive income within a subsidiary is attributed
to the non-controlling interest even if it results in a deficit
balance.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a
loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

2.1
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SV 5 A ik

30 April 2013 = —=FPA=+H

2.1

2.2

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii)
the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (ii)
the fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any resulting
surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of
components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRSs for the
first time for the current year’s consolidated financial
statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 1 First-time
Adoption of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards — Severe
Hyperinflation and Removal of Fixed
Dates for First-time Adopters

HKFRS 1 Amendments

HKFRS 7 Amendments  Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial
Instruments: Disclosures — Transfers

of Financial Assets

Amendments to HKAS 12 Income
Taxes — Deferred Tax: Recovery of
Underlying Assets

HKAS 12 Amendments

The adoption of the revised HKFRSs has had no significant
financial effect on these consolidated financial statements.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in
these consolidated financial statements.

62

HKFRS 1 Amendments

HKFRS 7 Amendments

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 10

HKFRS 11

HKFRS 12

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11

and HKFRS 12
Amendments

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12
and HKAS 27 (2011)
Amendments

HKFRS 13

HKAS 1 Amendments

HKAS 19 (2011)
HKAS 27 (2011)
HKAS 28 (2011)
HKAS 32 Amendments

HK(IFRIC) — Int 20

Annual Improvements
2009-2011 Cycle

Amendments to HKFRS 1 First-time
Adoption of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards Government
Loans?

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial
Instruments: Disclosures
— Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities?

Financial Instruments*

Consolidated Financial Statements?
Joint Arrangements?

Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities?

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11
and HKFRS 12 — Transition
Guidance?

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12
and HKAS 27 (2011) — Investment
Entities?

Fair Value Measurement?

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation
of Financial Statements
— Presentation of Items of Other
Ccomprehensive Income’

Employee Benefits?

Separate Financial Statements?

Investments in Associates and Joint
Ventures?

Amendments to HKAS 32 Financial
Instruments: Presentation
— Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities®

Stripping Costs in the Production
Phase of a Surface Mine?

Amendments to a number of HKFRSS
issued in June 20122

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013
B Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015
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2.3

2.4

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the
impact of these new and revised HKFRSs upon initial
application but is not yet in a position to state whether these
new and revised HKFRSs would have a significant impact on its
results of operations and financial position.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity whose financial and operating policies
the Company controls, directly or indirectly, so as to obtain
benefit from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company's
income statement to the extent of dividends received and
receivable. The Company’s investments in subsidiaries are
stated at cost less any impairment losses.

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition
date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. For each business combination, the
Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests
in the acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle
their holders to a proportionate share of net assets in the event
of liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate share of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components of non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-
related costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and
designation in accordance with the contractual terms,
economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the
acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded
derivatives in host contracts by the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, previously
held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair
value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

64

POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)
Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability that is a financial
instrument and within the scope of HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments. Recognition and Measurement is measured at fair
value with changes in fair value either recognised in profit or
loss or as a change to other comprehensive income. If the
contingent consideration is not within the scope of HKAS 39, it
is measured in accordance with the appropriate HKFRS.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for
within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of
the Group’s previously held equity interests in the acquiree
over the identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities
assumed. If the sum of this consideration and other items is
lower than the fair value of the net assets acquired, the
difference is, after reassessment, recognised in profit or loss
as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be
impaired. The Group performs its annual impairment test of
goodwill as at 30 April. For the purpose of impairment testing,
goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the
acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group's cash-
generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group
are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating
units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating
units) is less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is
recognised. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not
reversed in a subsequent period.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FESFBREE ()

POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)
Where goodwill has been allocated to of a cash-generating unit
(or group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation
within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the
operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the
operation when determining the gain or loss on the disposal.
Goodwill disposed in these circumstances is measured based
on the relative value of the disposed operation and the portion
of the cash-generating unit retained.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than financial
assets and goodwill), the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the
asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair value
less costs to sell, and is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are
largely independent of those from other assets or groups of
assets, in which case the recoverable amount is determined
for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the
income statement in the period in which it arises in those
expense categories consistent with the function of the
impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as
to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.
If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is
estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset
other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change
in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of
that asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying
amount that would have been determined (net of any
depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an
impairment loss is credited to the income statement in the
period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment
loss is accounted for in accordance with the relevant
accounting policy for that revalued asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FEESTHEBE(E)
POLICIES (continued)
Related parties BREAL
A party is considered to be related to the Group if: ETANERT  ZABEREAEREEZE
B AL
(@) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s (@ EAHBZBATHZBAL IR
family and that person mazB AL
(i) has control or joint control over the Group; ()  ¥AREBEEA T B R 6
7
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or (il HEAEBBERFEN X
(i) is a member of the key management personnel of iy AXrEEILEEIERFZ
the Group or of a parent of the Group; FTEEBAR
or %
(b) the party is an entity where any of the following b)) BARFETIEABERZERS

conditions applies:

(i)  the entity and the Group are members of the same () #ZEBHEASEEBER-—SEHZ
group; [B4=WNGI
(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the (il —HEBAES—HERBZEHE
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow AR EE AR (K —HE
subsidiary of the other entity); Y8R MBARSER
MEBAR)
(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the (i) ZEROAEEAR—F=7H
same third party; pd= NN
(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the vy —HERRE-FBEZEE
other entity is an associate of the third entity; NAE MBS —EEBRE=F
B ZHE DT
(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the ) ZERBAASKESNEAEEHS
benefit of employees of either the Group or an MEs BREBRAR L
entity related to the Group; BRIREFIETE
(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a (vi) ZEBX@TEZRIATESSK
person identified in (a); and HEREZES R
(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence (vii) WEEZATHZERES
over the entity or is a member of the key HENNBZER(KZE
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent EEZ! BCEEEEAE -

of the entity).
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FESFBREE ()

POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost
of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing
the asset to its working condition and location for its intended
use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to the income statement in
the period in which it is incurred. In situations where the
recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as
a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful
lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off
the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its
residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal
annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Leasehold land and buildings 4% or over the lease terms,
under medium term leases whichever is shorter
Leasehold improvements 25% or over the lease terms,
whichever is shorter
Furniture, equipment and 25% t0 33%

motor vehicles

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at
each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in the income statement in the year the
asset is derecognised is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
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POLICIES (continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business combination is the fair value at the date of acquisition.
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either
finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are
subsequently amortised over the useful economic life and
assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that
the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period
and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a
finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year
end.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for
impairment annually either individually or at the cash-
generating unit level. Such intangible assets are not amortised.
The useful life of an intangible asset with an indefinite life is
reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite life
assessment continues to be supportable. If not, the change in
the useful life assessment from indefinite to finite is accounted
for on a prospective basis.

Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets to the Group, other than legal title, are
accounted for as finance leases. At the inception of a finance
lease, the cost of the leased asset is capitalised at the present
value of the minimum lease payments and recorded together
with the obligation, excluding the interest element, to reflect
the purchase and financing. Assets held under capitalised
finance leases, including prepaid land lease payments under
finance leases, are included in property, plant and equipment,
and depreciated over the shorter of the lease terms and the
estimated useful lives of the assets. The finance costs of such
leases are charged to the income statement so as to provide a
constant periodic rate of charge over the lease terms.

Assets acquired through hire purchase contracts of a financing
nature are accounted for as finance leases, but are depreciated
over their estimated useful lives.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for
as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals
payable under operating leases net of any incentives received
from the lessor are charged to the income statement on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

24 FESHBEME ()

POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are
initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms. When the lease
payments cannot be allocated reliably between the land and
buildings elements, the entire lease payments are included in
the cost of the land and buildings as a finance lease in
property, plant and equipment.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets within the scope of HKAS 39 are classified as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivable, and available-for-sale financial investments. The
Group determines the classification of its financial assets at
initial recognition. When financial assets are recognised
initially, they are measured at fair value plus transaction costs,
except in the case of financial assets recorded at fair value
through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include
financial assets held for trading and financial assets designated
upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are
acquired for the purpose of sale in the near term. Derivatives,
including separated embedded derivatives, are also classified
as held for trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments as defined by HKAS 39.
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POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried
in the statement of financial position at fair value with net
changes in fair value recognised in the income statement.
These net fair value changes do not include any dividends or
interest earned on these financial assets, which are recognised
in accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue
recognition” below.

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition at fair value
through profit or loss are designated at the date of initial
recognition and only if the criteria under HKAS 39 are satisfied.

The Group evaluates its financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (held for trading) to assess whether the intent to
sell them in the near term is still appropriate. When, in rare
circumstances, the Group is unable to trade these financial
assets due to inactive markets and management’s intent to sell
them in the foreseeable future significantly changes, the Group
may elect to reclassify them. The reclassification from financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss to loans and
receivables, available-for-sale financial assets or held-to-
maturity investments depends on the nature of the assets. This
evaluation does not affect any financial assets designated at
fair value through profit or loss using the fair value option at
designation, as these financial instruments cannot be
reclassified after initial recognition.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. After initial measurement, such assets are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method less any allowance for impairment.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in administrative
and other operating expenses in income statement. The loss
arising from impairment is recognised in income statement.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments
Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative
financial assets in listed and unlisted equity investments and
debt securities. Equity investments classified as available for
sale are those which are neither classified as held for trading
nor designated at fair value through profit or loss. Debt
securities in this category are those which are intended to be
held for an indefinite period of time and which may be sold in
response to needs for liquidity or in response to changes in
market conditions.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial investments
are subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealised gains
or losses recognised as other comprehensive income in the
available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve until the
investment is derecognised, at which time the cumulative gain
or loss is recognised in the income statement or until the
investment is determined to be impaired, when the cumulative
gain or loss is reclassified from the available-for-sale
investment revaluation reserve to the income statement.
Interest and dividends earned whilst holding the available-for-
sale financial investments are reported as interest income and
dividend income, respectively, and are recognised in the
income statement as other income and gains or losses, net in
accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition”
below.

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments cannot be
reliably measured because (a) the variability in the range of
reasonable fair value estimates is significant for that
investment or (b) the probabilities of the various estimates
within the range cannot be reasonably assessed and used in
estimating fair value, such investments are stated at cost less
any impairment losses.
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POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention to sell its
available-for-sale financial assets in the near term are still
appropriate. When, in rare circumstances, the Group is unable
to trade these financial assets due to inactive markets and
management'’s intent to do so significantly changes in the
foreseeable future, the Group may elect to reclassify these
financial assets. Reclassification to loans and receivables is
permitted when the financial assets meet the definition of
loans and receivables and the Group has the intent and ability
to hold these assets for the foreseeable future or to maturity.
Reclassification to the held-to-maturity category is permitted
only when the Group has the ability and intent to hold until the
maturity date of the financial asset.

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-sale
category, the fair value carrying amount at the date of
reclassification becomes its new amortised cost and any
previous gain or loss on that asset that has been recognised in
equity is amortised to profit or loss over the remaining life of
the investment using the effective interest rate. Any difference
between the new amortised cost and the maturity amount is
also amortised over the remaining life of the asset using the
effective interest rate. If the asset is subsequently determined
to be impaired, then the amount recorded in equity is
reclassified to income statement.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
derecognised when:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

o the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a
third party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and
either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of
the asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FESFBREE ()

POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risk and
rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is
recognised to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement
in the asset. In that case, the Group also recognises an
associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated
liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Group could be required to
repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a
group of financial assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only
if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one
or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the
asset (an incurred “loss event”) and that loss event has an
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset
or the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.
Evidence of impairment may include indications that a debtor
or a group of debtors is experiencing significant financial
difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation and observable data indicating
that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future
cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions
that correlate with defaults.
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POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first
assesses individually whether objective evidence of impairment
exists for financial assets that are individually significant, or
collectively for financial assets that are not individually
significant. If the Group determines that no objective evidence
of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial
asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a
group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics
and collectively assesses them for impairment. Assets that are
individually assessed for impairment and for which an
impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognised are not
included in a collective assessment of impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been
incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not yet been incurred). The present value of the estimated
future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed
at initial recognition). If a loan has a variable interest rate, the
discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the current
effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of
an allowance account and the loss is recognised in the income
statement. Interest income continues to be accrued on the
reduced carrying amount and is accrued using the rate of
interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose
of measuring the impairment loss. Loans and receivables
together with any associated allowance are written off when
there is no realistic prospect of future recovery and all
collateral has been realised or has been transferred to the
Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is increased or reduced by
adjusting the allowance account. If a write-off is later
recovered, the recovery is credited to the income statement.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FESFBREE ()

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group assesses
at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that an investment or a group of investments is
impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount comprising
the difference between its cost (net of any principal payment
and amortisation) and its current fair value, less any
impairment loss previously recognised in the income
statement, is removed from other comprehensive income and
recognised in the income statement.

In the case of equity investments classified as available for
sale, objective evidence would include a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment below its
cost. The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged”
requires judgement. “Significant” is evaluated against the
original cost of the investment and “prolonged” against the
period in which the fair value has been below its original cost.
Where there is evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss —
measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and
the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that
investment previously recognised in the income statement —
is removed from other comprehensive income and recognised
in the income statement. Impairment losses on equity
instruments classified as available for sale are not reversed
through the income statement. Increases in their fair value
after impairment are recognised directly in other
comprehensive income.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities within the scope of HKAS 39 are classified
as loans and borrowings. The Group determines the
classification of its financial liabilities at initial recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in
the case of loans and borrowings, net of directly attributable
transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include accounts payable, other
payables and accruals, finance leases payable and amount due
to a non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary.
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POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends
on their classification as follows:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, financial liabilities are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate
method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial,
in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are
recognised in the income statement when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate
method amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are
an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in finance costs in the
income statement.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms
of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the
difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the income statement.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if
there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FESFBREE ()

POLICIES (continued)

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are traded in active
markets is determined by reference to quoted market prices or
dealer price quotations (bid price for long positions and ask
price for short positions), without any deduction for transaction
costs. For financial instruments where there is no active
market, the fair value is determined using appropriate valuation
techniques. Such techniques include using recent arm'’s length
market transactions; reference to the current market value of
another instrument which is substantially the same; a
discounted cash flow analysis; and other valuation models.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short
maturity of generally within three months when acquired, less
bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the statement of financial position, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks,
including term deposits, which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end of
the reporting period of the future expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted
present value amount arising from the passage of time is
included in finance costs in the income statement.
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POLICIES (continued)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or l0ss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior
periods are measured at the amount expected to be recovered
from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries in
which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

. when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FESFBREE ()

POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can
be utilised, except:

° when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss; and

° in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future and taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at
the end of each reporting period and are recognised to the
extent that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a
legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to
the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.
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POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recoghition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be
measured reliably, on the following basis:

(@ from the trading of bullion, forex, securities, futures and
options contracts, on the following basis:

(i) floating gains and losses on bullion, forex, futures
and options contracts on all open contracts existing
at the end of each reporting period are recognised
by translating the contract amounts at the prices
ruling at the end of each reporting period and
unrealised gains and losses on securities with
reference to the prices ruling at the end of each
reporting period;

(i) profits and losses on trading in bullion, forex,
securities, futures and options contracts are
recognised on the trade date basis;

(b)  premium income and expense on dealing in bullion and
forex contracts are recognised on the trade date basis;

(c) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of
the financial asset;

(d) dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to receive
payment has been established; and

(e) other services income, when the services are rendered.

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group's operations. Employees
(including directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the
form of share-based payments, whereby employees render
services as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-
settled transactions”).
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FESFBREE ()

POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payments (continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for
grants is measured by reference to the fair value at the date at
which they are granted.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised, together
with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period in
which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled.
The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled
transactions at the end of each reporting period until the
vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has
expired and the Group’s best estimate of the number of equity
instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the
income statement for a period represents the movement in the
cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end of
that period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately
vest, except for equity-settled transactions where vesting is
conditional upon a market or non-vesting condition, which are
treated as vesting irrespective of whether or not the market or
non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all other
performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a
minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not
been modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In
addition, an expense is recognised for any modification that
increases the total fair value of the share-based payments, or
is otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the
date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it
had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not
yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately. This
includes any award where non-vesting conditions within the
control of either the Group or the employee are not met.
However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled
award, and is designated as a replacement award on the date
that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as
if they were a modification of the original award, as described
in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings per
share.
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POLICIES (continued)

Other employee benefits

Pension scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the "MPF Scheme”)
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
all of its employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF
Scheme. Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries and are charged to the income
statement as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are
held separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest
fully with the employees when contributed into the MPF
Scheme, except for the Group’s employer voluntary
contributions, which are refunded to the Group when the
employee leaves employment prior to the contributions vesting
fully, in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in
Mainland China are required to participate in a central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government. These
subsidiaries are required to contribute 32% or 37%, depending
on the location of the subsidiaries, of their payroll costs to the
central pension scheme. The contributions are charged to the
income statements as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the central pension scheme.

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they
are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other
costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of
funds.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency.
Each entity in the Group determines its own functional
currency and items included in the financial statements of
each entity are measured using that functional currency.
Foreign currency transactions recorded by the entities in the
Group are initially recorded using their respective functional
currency rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the functional currency rates of
exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period. Differences
arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are
recognised in the income statement.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

24 FESHBEME ()

POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair
value was determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of
a non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in line
with the recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value
of the item (i.e. translation difference on the item whose fair
value gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive
income or profit or loss is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).

The functional currency of certain overseas subsidiaries is
currency other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the end of the
reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities are
translated into the presentation currency of the Company at
the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period
and their income statements are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.
The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in the income
statement.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation
and any fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities arising on acquisition are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at the
closing rate.
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84

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group'’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and their accompany disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the
assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Impairment of financial assets

The Group has to exercise judgement in determining whether
an asset is impaired or the event previously causing the asset
impairment no longer exists, particularly in assessing: (i)
whether an event has occurred that may affect the asset value
or such event affecting the asset value has not been in
existence; (i) whether the carrying value of an asset can be
supported by the net present value of future cash flows which
are estimated based upon the continued use of the asset or
derecognition; and (i) the appropriate key assumptions to be
applied in preparing cash flow projections including whether
these cash flow projections are discounted using an
appropriate rate. Changing the assumptions selected by
management to determine the level of impairment, including
the discount rate or the growth rate assumptions in the cash
flow projections, could materially affect the net present value
used in the impairment test.

Long service payments

The Group and the Company had contingent liabilities in
respect of possible future long service payments to employees
under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. Management
has to consider whether it is appropriate to recognise the
provision for long service payments.

3.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Judgements (continued)

Long service payments (continued)

In making this judgement, the Group considers (i) the number
of current employees who have achieved the required number
of years of service to the Group and the Company, at the end
of the reporting period, in order to be eligible for long service
payments under the Employment Ordinance if their
employment is terminated in the circumstances specified; (ii)
the average age of those employees; (iii) the turnover rate of
employees; and (iv) the possibility of the termination of
employment of those employees that meet the circumstances
specified in the Employment Ordinance based on the relevant
economic and other factors.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below:

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on
an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value in use
of the cash-generating units to which the goodwill is allocated.
Estimating the value in use requires the Group to make an
estimate of the expected future cash flows from the cash-
generating unit and also to choose a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value of those cash flows. The
carrying amount of goodwill at 30 April 2013 and 2012 was
approximately HK$21,442,000 and HK$1,498,000 respectively.
Further details are given in note 14.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Impairment of intangible assets

Determining whether trading rights allocating to the cash-
generating unit of broking of securities and futures are
impaired requires an estimation of the value in use of the
broking of securities and futures cash-generating unit. The
value in use calculation requires the Group to estimate future
cash flows expected to arise from the cash-generating unit and
a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value.
The discount rate represents rate that reflects current market
assessments of time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset for which the future cash flow estimates have not
been adjusted. Where the actual future cash flows are less
than expected, a material impairment loss may arise. As at 30
April 2013 and 2012, the carrying amount of trading rights
allocated to the cash-generating unit of broking of securities
and futures was approximately HK$2,350,000. Details of the
recoverable amount calculation are disclosed in note 16.

Impairment of loans and accounts receivable

The Group reviews its loans and accounts receivable portfolio
to assess impairment on a regular basis. In determining
whether an impairment loss should be recorded in the income
statement, the Group makes judgement as to whether there is
any observable data indicating that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a portfolio of
loans and accounts receivable before the decrease can be
identified with an individual account receivable in that portfolio.
This evidence may include observable data indicating that
there has been an adverse change in the payment status of
borrowers in a group, or national or local economic conditions
that correlate with defaults on assets in the Group.
Management uses estimates based on historical loss
experience for assets with credit risk characteristics and
objective evidence of impairment similar to those in the
portfolio when scheduling its future cash flows. The
methodology and assumptions used for estimating both the
amount and timing of future cash flows are reviewed regularly
to reduce any differences between loss estimates and actual
l0sS experience.

3.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 3. EXETHETRME (E)
AND ESTIMATES (continued)
Estimation uncertainty (continued) fEET T EE (#)
Deferred tax assets BEHEEE
Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the {215 7] B & 5 A JE AR T i A1 LA K S5 750 T 1
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available BZBRT  FERBRDAHIEBEE
against which the losses can be utilised. Significant HZRETHIBERE - EEE A THER
management judgement is required to determine the amount ERIEEE SRR AREBA 2R
of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the KRR FERT R M) 2 K FER R RBLIEET &
likely timing and level of future taxable profits together with K - WIEHEEEEE 6 -

future tax planning strategies.

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4., REIWER

For management purposes, the Group is organised into REREHNME  AEEZREERRRS

business units based on their products and services and has BIDEKEN  WHUTNETE2HESE

Six reportable operating segments as follows: par -l

(@) the securities segment represents the broking and () BHE® BNEHES - HERHE
dealing of securities, futures and options contracts, the BRZEEREE  REFERE
provision of margin financing, advisory on corporate hERERERE  BEETERREE
finance, asset management and insurance consultancy MR - ARIREZEREBEEEES
services, and results of investment holding and TEE
proprietary trading of securities;

(b)  the bullion segment represents the broking and dealing ) EBEE®K ARBEEaNI&8LENR
of bullion contracts; B

(©) the forex segment represents the broking and dealing of € HNEET - BIEEINES L &8 K&
forex contracts; i

(d) the money lending segment represents provision of loan d (EEXED AESREERRE
financing;

(e) the pawn loan segment represents provision of pawn () HEERER INSREHAZER
loan services; and HE@"% P

(f  the corporate and other segment includes corporate H BEREMSE  BECGEWRAKLH
revenue and expenses and results of unallocated SARAKRDBLETG 2 54 o
operations.
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4.

88

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions
about resources allocation and performance assessment.
Segment performance is evaluated based on reportable
segment profit/(loss), which is a measure of adjusted profit/
(loss) before tax. The adjusted profit/(loss) before tax is
measured consistently with the Group's loss before tax except
that fair value loss on convertible notes designated as at fair
value through profit or loss, loss on disposal of available-for-
sale equity investments and finance costs are excluded from
such measurement.

Segment assets exclude available-for-sale equity investments
and convertible notes designated as at fair value through profit
or loss as these assets are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude tax payable and deferred tax
liabilities as these liabilities managed on a group basis.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference
to the selling prices used for sales made to third parties at the
then prevailing market prices.
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. REIWER (&
(continued)
(a) Business segments (@) %X%2E
The following tables present revenue and results for the TREJINFNEESEFHDBEHET
years ended 30 April 2013 and 2012 and certain assets, —=ER-E-—_FMHA=+HIF
liabilities and expenditure information for the Group's EZWAREEUNARZE—=FK
business segments as at 30 April 2013 and 2012. The —E-—ENA=t+HZETEE "
comparative figures have been re-presented to conform BERAZER - LBREFEEHRZ
with the current year's presentation. WWARFEARFEZZ25AR -
Year ended 30 April 2013 BE-Z—=FWA=+tHLEE
Money Corporate
Securities Bullion Forex  lending Pawnloan and other Total
#5 Ee INE BFE AEER OERHEM @t
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000
TR TER TR TR TER TR TR
Segment revenue: AEUWA
Revenue from exteral RENRER ZBA
customers 38,512 1,503 2,206 42,740 10,461 136 95,558
Otherincome and gains or g A\ B Ifas ok
losses, net BEFE 877 77 (48) 104 751 (945) 816
Revenue A 39,389 1,580 2,158 42,844 11,212 (809) 96,374
Segment results AREE (12789)  (18086) ~ (9.415) 27,985 5841 (44815  (51.279)
Fair value loss on EEARRLTETA
convertible notes Bakz Rk
designated as at fairvalue  E 7 AFEER
through profit or loss (3,833)
Finance costs HEER (71)
Loss before tax BisaEE (55,183)
Income tax expense FiEiA® (1,674)
Loss for the year FEER (56,857)
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. REIWER(E)
(continued)
Business segments (continued) (@) E¥2E(E)
Year ended 30 April 2012 BEZZT——FHUA=THLFE
Money  Corporate
Securities Bullion Forex lending  and other Total
E5 =5 HNE BE PEREM &5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T FHEL T T T T
Segment revenue: PERA
Revenue from external RENREP ZIA
customers 63838 9,184 4,820 60,156 - 137,998
Other income and gains or EE L ON e
losses, net BEE 1927 (12) 4 - 27 1946
Revenue N 65,765 9,172 4,824 60,156 27 139,944
Segment results TEREE (2,155) (28,045) (11,679) 0416 (28,043) (27,506)
Fair value loss on convertible 38 At AT E:F A
notes designated as at fair BREITHRREE
value through profit or oss AFERE (13,222)
Loss on disposal of avallable- &R fEH & 7 FARKE
for-sale equity investments b - (1,557)
Finance costs BEER (119
Loss before tax BREAIEE (42,404)
Income tax expense FEREY (685)
Loss for the year FEER (43,089)
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)
(a)

As at 30 April 2013

Business segments (continued)

4. BEeIFER (R

(@) =¥2E(RE)
®

—g-=£mA=+A

Money Corporate
Securities  Bullion Forex  lending Pawn loan and other Total
E% S HNE fRE HEER C¥EREM @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
TExT TEx TEx TEx TEx TEx TEx
Segment assets PEEE 295,465 19,526 47,759 215667 96,789 567,158 1,242,364
Convertible notes EEARATE
designated as at fair SABREZ
value through profitor ~ F[#EREHE
loss 93,230
Available-for-sale equity  ATHEZ
investments R 78,555
Total assets EERE 1,414,149
Segment liabilities PEER 161,031 6,704 22,921 16,558 762 5686 213,662
Tax payable FeIHE 694
Deferred taxiabilites ~ EEHBEMRE 80
Total liabilities BEEE 214,436
Other segment HttpBER
information:
Depreciation nE 4,022 203 486 - 43 1,146 5,900
Provision/(reversal) for ~ EZRIENERT
impairment of loans WERE/ (BE)
and accounts i
receivable, net 2,310 (12) - 13,000 - - 15,298
Loss on disposal of items ~ HE#% « FE R
of property, plant and REEEZER
equipment 1,166 286 318 - - - 1,770
Capital expenditure* BARY * 362 1 3 - 442 1,082 1,890
* Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, * BEAATBREAEVE BERR

plant and equipment and other long term assets. HUAREMREEE -

Annual Report 2012/2013 « —B——/ “ZE— =445 91



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B A Y

30 April 2013 = —=FMA=+H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. REIWER(E)
(continued)
(@) Business segments (continued) (@) E¥2E(E)
As at 30 April 2012 R-E——FWA=+H

Money Corporate

Securities Bullion Forex lending  and other Total
&7 B% HhEE BE CEREM @t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
TAT TARL TAT THEL TATL TATL

Segment assets TREE 333,285 10,75 66,460 485,287 116,006 1,011,794
Convertible notes designated ~ EEARAFEA
asatfairvalue through profit BB 7 THRR2E

or loss 247,063
Available-for-sale equity ez RALE

investments 120,000
Total assets BELA 1,378,857
Segment liabilities 2EER 185,351 17,051 29,650 9,990 10,573 252,615
Tax payable FERHE 685
Deferred tax liabilities EEHEEE 80

Total liabilities BE8T 253,380

Other segment information: Et2EEH

Depreciation e 4,265 410 631 - 1,017 6,323
Provision forimpairmentof R REKEZAE

loans and accounts BT

receivable, net 71 4,572 - 13,801 - 18,444
Loss/(gain) on disposal of items  HEWZ - BE R

of property, plant and REEE 2

equipment B/ (k) 676 1 % - (5,437) (4,724)
Capital expenditure* BEARS* 1438 309 316 - 1,794 3,857
* Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, * BEXARXBREAEVE  BELR

plant and equipment. e
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4., REPBER(E)
(continued)
(b) Geographical information (b) HEER
(i)  Revenue from external customers (i) XKREIEEFZYA
2013 2012
=F-= —TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Hong Kong &5 84,962 137,998
Mainland China A [ A dth 10,596 -
95,558 137,998
The revenue information above is based on the Lt AE R T AR F FrfE
locations of the customers. AYE o
(i) Non-current assets (i) FFBEE
2013 2012
—E-= —E—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Hong Kong B 9,976 16,350
Mainland China A [ A it 19,508 -
29,484 16,350
The non-current asset information above is based FRERBEEEARTINEE
on the locations of the assets and excludes e BER I A EES T
financial instruments. Ao
(c) Information about major customers (c) FHEXEEFEFzEH
During the year ended 30 April 2013, the Group had BEZZ—=FMA=1THILFE"
transactions with two customers (2012: Nil), each of AEEHEEEHAEERATRBAR
which contributed over 10% of the Group's revenue. The 0% CMEBERFE(ZE——F : #)#
total revenue earned from these customers amounted to 1IR5 - REZERFZBRALE
approximately HK$30,920,000 (2012: Nil). 30,920,000 (B ——4 : &) o
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5.

94

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS OR 5.
LOSSES, NET

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents (i)
fees, commission and premium income from securities,
bullion, forex, futures and options contracts broking; (i) gain or

loss on trading of securities, bullion, forex and futures
contracts; (iii) interest income and handling fee income from

loan and margin financing activities; and (iv) service income

from asset management, advisory and consultancy services
provided.

An analysis of revenue, other income and gains or losses, net
is as follows:

WA - B AU R U 2 R 1R R AR

WATBIAREBEZ 225 BROES
= HME - IE RSO L I WE
MelaBRANEEES &% 4
EREIE A K 2 WA sEIE ; (i) BRI
EBREZHZMBMARFEERA X
(V) Friett EEE 2 - B Nk AR 2 IR
BEYA -

WA~ E A U A % s ol 85 18 0% 58 5 AT 40
T

2013 2012
—E-—= —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Revenue A
Fees, commission and premium income, #3% - =4 ~ JME - HIE &
net, from securities, bullion, forex, S NS L WE
futures and options contracts broking e FaBUWAFE 29,010 45,824
Trading (loss)/gain on securities, bullion, &% - &4  INERHIEAH
forex, and futures contracts, net X5 (E18),WaF58 (5,030) 3,385
Interest income from loan and margin ERRAFEREES 2 FBWA
financing activities 61,140 66,308
Handling fee income FEBWA 426 2,024
Other service income E AR IS A 10,012 20,457
95,558 137,998
Other income and Hg A R U %5 s g5 18 R 5
gains or losses, net
Bank interest income FRITF BN 178 34
Foreign exchange differences, net EH ZR S5 (1,091) (54)
Others Hip 1,729 1,966
816 1,946
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6.

LOSS BEFORE TAX

The Group's loss before tax is arrived at after charging/

BRBE

AIER

AEB 2 BEATBEE MR, (GFA) T3

(crediting): I8
Group
AEE
2013 2012
—E—= —E—_F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5E FET FiET
Depreciation e 13 5,900 6,323
Minimum lease payments under HERANEYE
operating leases on rental of KEAARERS
office premises 19,488 20,535
Write-off of loans and T8 B 3 R P AR X
accounts receivable 30 -
Auditor’s remuneration ZHA S 1,290 1,100
Employee benefit expenses EERMNMAX
(excluding directors” and chief (TBEREEEIERS
executive’'s remuneration (note 8)): TTBAEME (B15E8)) ¢
Salaries and other benefits* e RHEAER > 53,159 52,971
Pension scheme contributions RN E B
(defined contribution scheme)** (EEEMHRRETE) ** 1,977 2,017
Write-back of provision for REARTS S B
long service payments, net B O558 31 (875) (1,431)
Provision for annual leave F R 213 610
54,474 54,167

* Approximately HK$164,000 (2012: HK$1,269,000) was included in
"Brokerage and commission expenses” in the consolidated

income statement.

** At 30 April 2013, the Group had approximately HK$406,000 (2012:
HK$43,000) forfeited contributions available to reduce its
contributions to the pension schemes in future years.

* %

#1164,0007% 7T ( = F — — 4 : 1,269,000
AT B ARG RERZ [BRERAE
Bzl A e

R-ZB-—=FmA=+0 ~"EEHEELH
406,000 7T, ( == — Z—4F : 43,0007 71 )
SR FAT B LA S AR R F B 2 iR S R

PR
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7.

96

FINANCE COSTS AEE A
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: BHEERSTOT :
Group
AEH
2013 2012
—E—= —E—_F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FH&TT
Interest on bank loans and overdrafts RITEFREZ L - 7
Interest on finance leases BREFRL 2 FIE 71 12
71 119
DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S ESRERTHRAEMSE

REMUNERATION

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year,
disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules and Section 161 of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, is as follows:

FR - RELETRAIREER

EHEBIZE 161

FRE2EERERTRASMEMT

Group

AEH
2013 2012
—E-= —T——fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHEIT
Fees e 2,745 2,372

Other emoluments: Hibh B4 -

Salaries and other benefits e kEmfs 876 73
Pension scheme contributions RIREETEIME R = -
876 73
3,621 2,445
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 8. EERBRSTBAEMS (&)
REMUNERATION (continued)
(a) Independent non-executive directors (@) BIUFHITES
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors FRINTEIIFNTESZ 2SN
during the year were as follows: AN
Group
rEE
2013 2012
—E-= —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Mr. Zhu Chengwu RAR T 210 210
Mr. Li Haifeng (resigned on 9 April 2013) Z=3G#l 5t 4
(R=ZE—=FWANBET) 169 180
Mr. Choi Man Chau, Michael BXMEE(R=ZE—=F
(resigned on 19 December 2012) +Z A+ BEE) 133 210
Mr. Yeung Siu Keung BBt (R ——F
(appointed on 19 December 2012) TZATNWBEZE) 44 -
556 600
There were no other emoluments payable to the FRWEEMEN B IENTEE 2
independent non-executive directors during the year e (ZT——4F: &) -
(2012: Nil).
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8.

98

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 8.
REMUNERATION (continued)
(b) Executive directors and the chief executive

EERESTHRAEME (F)

(b) BITEERRSTHRAER

Salaries Pension
and other scheme Total
Fees benefits  contributions  remuneration
e Bihe
e RE MR ATt Wens
HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TEL TEL THL
2013 —2-=F
Mr. Fu Jiwen [EETE 1,080 - - 1,080
Mr. Ji Xiao Bo (resigned EREE(R-2—=F
on 6 February 2013) ZANBE) 1,109 876 - 1,985
2,189 876 - 3,065
2012 —E-—F
Mr. Fu Jiwen BEEE 1,080 - - 1,080
Mr. Ji Xiao Bo (appointed on RERLE(R-Z—F
28 November 2011) T-AZ+\BEZA) 612 73 - 685
Mr. Sun Da Rui (resigned on BRAERERZE—F
30 December 2011) TZAZ+AHER) 80 - - 80
1,172 73 - 1,845

Apart from the directors, the Group has not classified any
other person as a chief executive during the years ended
30 April 2013 and 2012. There was no arrangement under
which a director or the chief executive waived or agreed
to waive any remuneration during the year (2012: Nil).

Simsen International Corporation Limited  X{TEIE (3Z1R) BR QT

BREEI AEEREBEE-_T—=F
k- =1+H It EERE
BEREMA LD EARSITHRA
8 -FAMEEENIZSTHRAES]
NEHRESRERETAMNE (=
T—ZF )



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S R A B

30 April 2013 = —=FPA=+H

9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 9. EEEREFEE
The five highest paid employees during the year ended 30 April HE_T—=FWA=1TAHLFE A&
2013 included one director (2012: Nil), details of whose BEeHEERRIE—RER (2T —=F:
remuneration are set out in note 8 above. Details of the ') HEMEFIEE N EXXMizEs o HeRm
remuneration of the remaining four (2012: five) non-directors, HZ(ZE—ZF - AR)BRRHHFEFES
highest paid employees for the year are as follows: REEZMESFEET
Group
AEH
2013 2012
—E—= —EF——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Salaries and other benefits e REAMF = 10,606 6,645
Pension scheme contributions RIS ET B 367 235
10,973 6,880
The number of non-directors, highest paid employees whose BRTIFHMER 2 ESHHEEFREEA
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows: Hr

Number of employees

EEA"
2013 2012
—E—= —E—_F
HK$1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001 77T 2 1,500,000 7 7T = 3
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 78 7T 2= 2,000,000 7 7T - 2
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 % 7 & 3,000,000 7% 7T 4 -
4 5
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10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
(2012: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in
Hong Kong during the year. Taxes on profits assessable
elsewhere have been calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in
the jurisdictions in which the Group operates.

10.

EBimx

FRN - REBREUZ BT RS IR
E165% (ZF——F : 16.5%) sHZ BB
SRR E - i@ ERTEF 2 BB T
BEAEELEMEa AR BAME

.
=14
u+7—v— ©

2013 2012
—F-= —TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Group REH
Current charge for the year BIEAFE S
— Hong Kong — &8 9 685
— Elsewhere — Efhit[@ 1,665 -
Total tax expense for the year FEMEMRS A5 1,674 685

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to loss before tax
at the statutory rate of Hong Kong, where the Company is
headquartered, to the tax expense is as follows:

BARRREMERETE EEREFTE
Z B BLAT B R PTE AR S BB BRI IA
P 2 $IRRIAT -

Group

REE
2013 2012
—E-= —EF——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Loss before tax bR AT E R (55,183) (42,404)
Tax at the statutory tax rate of 16.5% A E16.5%TH 2 FiIE (9,105) (6,997)
Income not subject to tax AT 2 WA (12,763) (1,655)
Expenses not deductible for tax NATHIF 2 B2 14,414 6,551
Tax losses utilised from previous periods — &h/H i@+ #ARS 2 FH I8 &8 (854) (4,769)
Tax losses not recognised RER 2 FIBEIE 9,902 7,555

Difference in tax rates of subsidiaries REMBEREEE L MWBARZ

operating in other jurisdiction TR &= 80 -
Tax expense HIEMAX 1,674 685
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11.

12.

LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE 1. ARREBEAEBEEE
COMPANY

The consolidated loss attributable to owners of the Company HEZZT—=—FOA=THIEFE &2
for the year ended 30 April 2013 includes a gain of AEB AEGEEEBEEBERARANE
approximately HK$28,485,000 (2012: loss of approximately HFTANEE 7 W55 4928,485,0008 L (=ZF
HK$5,103,000) which has been dealt with in the financial — 4 : [E518495,103,000787T) °

statements of the Company.

A reconciliation of the amount of consolidated profit/(loss) for RARBMEHREANER 2 ARRER A
the year attributable to owners of the Company dealt within FEEEESAEN,(BE)SmERD T
the financial statements of the Company to the Company’s FEBEZEERNT ¢

loss for the year is as follows:

2013 2012
—E—= —E——4F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FH&T
Amount of consolidated profit/(loss) RARB]MIEHRERANRIEZ
for the year attributable to owners RAREER NEIHFEELLE
of the Company dealt within the wmA (R &8
financial statements of the Company 28,485 (5,103)
Waiver/(write-off) of amounts e, (M) rex, (W)
due to/(from) subsidiaries L i)=WNCI B 40,105 (80)
Impairment loss of amounts due JE WY B8 & B SR IA 2 BB B 18
from subsidiaries (108,216) -
Company's loss for the year (note 34(b)) 7N B4 [Z &8 (i 5% 34(b)) (39,626) (5,183)
LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO 12. ARRAEEREZRRELCSR
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE B8
COMPANY
The calculation of basic and diluted loss per share amount is BRERNREEFEBEDIBREBEARGLBR
based on the loss for the year attributable to ordinary equity 1 2 % BR FE A 4F 52 15 48 49/ 56,901,000 7 7T
holders of the Company of approximately HK$56,901,000 (2012: ZE—ZF : E51E%43,044,0008 L) K&
loss of approximately HK$43,044,000) and the weighted FREETE MR INRE T 19 8727,821,000
average number of ordinary shares of 727,821,000 (2012: Ba (== — =4 : 451,415,000 % (A€ E751))
451,415,000 (restated)) in issue during the year, as adjusted to FEKARURBAFEET RO E
reflect the consolidation of shares and the rights issue during PR - EF 2 BREAREERN S
the current year. The basic and diluted earnings per share BEERAE  URMAFEETZRDE
amount for the prior year has been adjusted to reflect the P R AR -
consolidation of shares and the rights issue during the current
year.
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12. LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO

ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY (continued)
No adjustment has been made to the basic loss per share
amounts presented for the years ended 30 April 2013 and 2012
in respect of a dilution as the impact of the warrants
outstanding had an anti-dilutive effect on the basic loss per
share amounts presented.

The calculation of basic and diluted loss per share is based on:

NN
EE()

BRESRRELAESR

HRAKREREE_Z—=FR-F—=
FOA=1+HIEFE M ARTTEZ BB E

HERI BREABREBARBEY
8 BARAZEFEMEINZBRER
ERSBEHETRE -

BREANEEERDRBEATEEREGTE

2013 2012
—E—=F —E——4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FH&T
Loss: 58
Loss attributable to ordinary FA1Es “hﬂxgzﬁ)&%&?ﬁfﬂ%z
equity holders of the Company, VIN/NETR- S
used in the basic and diluted loss H&%Eﬁfﬁﬁéﬁ?ﬁ
per share calculation (56,901) (43,044)
Number of shares
g2 4=
2013 2012
—E—= —E2——F
‘000 ‘000
F A& Fhx
(Restated)
(FeE5)
Shares: R4 :
Weighted average number of ordinary FAEstE SR ER L EER
shares in issue during the year used ZARFEBEITERR
in the basic and diluted loss per share nEFHE - Bt
calculation as adjusted for the rights TE-ZFNA -+ RNEEKZ
issue which was completed on HBENRE (2 ——F
26 April 2013 (2012: as adjusted forthe  BEo Rl —Z——F \A++H
rights issue which were completed on F=ZFE—=FPMA-1+/<H
17 August 2011 and 26 April 2013 and TERZER R ZE——F
the share consolidation which became WA+ BEHRZ KD
effective on 12 April 2012) BPHELAE) 727,821 451,415
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. W% BERRE
Group Zs &£
Leasehold
land and Furniture,
buildings under equipment
medium term Leasehold and motor
leases* improvements vehicles Total
FERA
HEL#H R Bh R
REF MEHE RrAE o
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T THEL TiEn
30 April 2013 ZE-ZENA=1AH
cost: PXAME :
At 1 May 2012 WZE-ZFRA—H = 11,909 18,945 30,854
Additions nE - 268 1,450 1,718
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 35) I B A E (fi1E35) - - 38 38
Disposals/write-off HE /s - (2,624) (1,068) (3,692)
Exchange realignment i 5 R - 2 6 8
At 30 April 2013 R-Z-=FEMA=1AH = 9,555 19,371 28,926
Accumulated depreciation and impairment; ZEERE
At 1 May 2012 N_E-—FERF-H = 7,029 12,223 19,252
Depreciation provided during the year FRERRE - 2,780 3,120 5,900
Disposals/write-off HE /s - (1,455) (463) (1,918)
AL 30 April 2013 R-Z-Z4MA=+A - 8,354 14,880 23,234
Net carrying amount at 30 April 2013 RZZ-=FMA=TAZEEEE - 1,201 4,491 5,692
30 April 2012 i U e
Cost: PXAE -
At1May 2011 R-E-——FhnA—H 3,365 12,254 19,421 35,040
Additions NE - 2460 1,397 3857
Disposals/write-off e /i (3,365) (2,809) (1873) (8,043)
At 30 April 2012 RZE-—#NA=+H - 11,909 18,945 30,854
Accumulated depreciation and impairment; ZIERAE
At1May 2011 AF-——FHA-H 706 6,458 10,487 17,651
Depreciation provided during the year FRNERE 112 2,956 3,255 6323
Disposals/write-off HE /i (818) (2,385) (1,519 4,722)
At 30 April 2012 RZ-——&MA=1AH - 7,029 12,223 19,252
Net carrying amount at 30 April 2012 RZZ-—EMA=TAZERFE - 4,830 6,722 11,602
# As the prepaid land lease payments cannot be allocated reliably # ARFEM LS RERTSED ALK
between the land and building elements, the entire lease BFHMD - BIEEAGHENE 17594
payments are included in the cost of land and building as # 2EEEF AL REFTRAE - 5l
finance leases in property, plant and equipment in accordance TEYIZE - RE R < BRETRAY -

with HKAS 17 Leases.
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13.

14.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)

The net carrying amount of furniture, equipment and motor
vehicles of the Group included in the total amount of
approximately HK$141,000 (2012: HK$240,000) in respect of
assets held under finance leases.

13. 3% - BB RHRE (&)

AEERM KERREZEREFERE
REBERLNFE 2 EELEL 141,00078
TT(ZF—_4% : 240,000 7T) o

GOODWILL 14. B8
Group
TEE
2013 2012
—E—=F —E——4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FH&T
Cost and net carrying amount AAME & BREFE 21,442 1,498
Cost at beginning of year, REXZAE
net of accumulated impairment BEFTRE 1,498 1,498
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 35) W BB R B 2 7] (B 3£ 35) 19,944 -
Cost and net carrying amount RELZKAENREFE
at end of year 21,442 1,498
Impairment testing of goodwiill EEZRENR

Goodwill acquired through business combinations has been
allocated to the following cash-generating units for impairment
testing.

—  forex cash-generating unit;

— asset management cash-generating unit;
—  pawn loan cash-generating unit; and

— loan financing cash-generating unit

Forex cash-generating unit

The recoverable amount of the forex cash-generating unit has
been determined based on value in use calculation using cash
flow projections based on financial budgets covering a five-
year period approved by the directors. The discount rate
applied to the cash flow projections is 5% (2012: 5%) and cash
flows beyond the five-year period are ignored.

RETRENR  BRXBAFEREZSE
BEOBEEATREELSN -

—  SMNERBELFEM

— REEEBRSELASBM:
— HEEFREELBM K
— EFRERSELBM

IEREELEN

SMNER S EA B2 WIS (RERE
EREEE) DIRERIEZ AFHBTE
BEEEMRRLREVUEE - BARRE
MEBRAZFRERSN (T ——F:
5%)  MAEFHU EZRESREBTT&
& o
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14. GOODWILL (continued) 14.
Impairment testing of goodwill (continued)
Asset management cash-generating unit

The recoverable amount of the asset management cash-
generating unit has been determined based on value in use
calculation using cash flow projections based on financial
budgets covering a five-year period approved by the directors.
The discount rate applied to the cash flow projections is 10%
and cash flows beyond the five-year period are ignored.

Pawn loan cash-generating unit

The recoverable amount of the pawn loan cash-generating unit
has been determined based on value in use calculation using
cash flow projections based on financial budgets covering a
five-year period approved by the directors. The discount rate
applied to the cash flow projections is 18% and cash flows
beyond the five-year period are ignored.

Loan financing cash-generating unit

The recoverable amount of the loan financing cash-generating
unit has been determined based on value in use calculation
using cash flow projections based on financial budgets
covering a five-year period approved by the directors. The
discount rate applied to the cash flow projections is 18% and

mE (&)

BmEZEENR (&)
BEEEERCELEN
BEEBReESLBM 7 IHOEHE(RE
REBRIETE) DRERIEZ HFH
AR ERBEERERAET - BAR
fﬁéﬁ%ﬁxﬂﬂZ?ﬁﬁ%%W% ’ ﬁﬁﬁg,ﬁﬁ

NEZBREREMNTTFE -

74

BEBNBELELEN
MEERREEESEM 2 TREERE (RE
}fﬁfg BEREEGE) MIRESEHAEZTFHY
BEEEARSREBANETE - BAR
B mETRR 2 HTIREZ18% + i AL FH
NEZBRESREATTEE -

EXMERSES BN 2 T REIERE (RE
REEREAAE) DRESHEZTFH
PHEEERRSRERMNETE - AR
ReERBRBAZIMRER18%  MAFH
NEZBREREMN A TFHE - HRAEHE

cash flows beyond the five-year period are ignored. No growth RAEREREAISZNE  WRFAERS
rate has been taken into account in the cash flow projections T TR B A IR R o
as the Group considers that the growth rate cannot be reliably
measured.
The carrying amount of goodwill allocated to each of the cash- SREEERSEABMN CHEREDENT
generating units is as follows:
2013 2012
—E—=F —E—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Carrying amount of goodwill EEREE
— forex — HNE 1,498 1,498
— asset management —BEER 1,100 -
— pawn loan — Eiil?.?%f K 16,653 -
— loan financing EREE 2,191 -
21,442 1,498

Discount rates used are before tax and reflect specific risks
relating to the relevant units.
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15. OTHER LONG TERM ASSETS 15. HERHBEE
Group
AEH
2013 2012
—E—= —E— 4
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FH&TT
Deposits with The Stock Exchange of BEEBEZHFBR AR
Hong Kong Limited (the “SEHK"): ([BEBZF)Ee
Compensation Fund EEEE 293 293
Fidelity Fund ERE® 250 250
Admission fee paid to Hong Kong NFEBFREEBRATZ
Securities Clearing Company Limited ANZB 250 250
Contribution to the Guarantee Fund MR EE R RE
of the Central Clearing and Settlement REESIEE ZHR
System 261 250
Deposit with the Reserve Fund of BB S S
SEHK Options Clearing House Limited ERABIZFEHESES 1,547 1,544
Deposit with the Reserve Fund of EEHELEERR AT
Hong Kong Futures Exchange Clearing ZiFEeES
Corporation Limited 1,674 1,516
4,275 4,103
16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 16. B EE
Group
rEH
Trading rights
BEEE
2013 2012
—E-=fF —ZT——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Cost: KANME -
At beginning and end of year RF ] J FF 4% 20,171 20,171
Accumulated amortisation and impairment: &t 4 X IRE ¢
At beginning and end of year E R F 42 17,821 17,821
Net carrying amount at end of year RFELRZREFE 2,350 2,350
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16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

17.

Intangible assets comprised the eligibility rights to trade on or
through the SEHK and Hong Kong Futures Exchange Limited.
The trading rights have no foreseeable limit to the period over
which the Group can use to generate net cash flows. As a
result, the trading rights are considered by the management of
the Group as having indefinite useful lives because they are
expected to contribute to net cash inflows indefinitely. The
trading rights will not be amortised until their useful lives are
determined to be finite. Instead, they will be tested for
impairment annually and whenever there is an indication that
they may be impaired.

The recoverable amounts of the cash-generating unit of
broking of securities and futures have been determined based
on a value in use calculation. That calculation uses cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a five-year period, and a pre-tax
discount rate of 10% (2012: 10%). The cash flows beyond the
five-year period are ignored.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND DUE
FROM/(TO) SUBSIDIARIES

16.

17.

BREE (&)
BUEBEBRNIELEEBBIMLER
HERXGMERRBETRIZAERE
Mo REBERNEEREREFR RS
BAZABEAMRES - At AEEE
BERR ARBEHEEXZERIKAR
BEREREFR  WREARERAER
FH - BEEEAERAFHMKERSERA
BERAX BB THE  EBEFEIM
BRI - AFFEE B RER A 8 H R
Ao

EELMERLTBIRCELSEM 2K
EEROZERBENE - ZBEFENE
NEREMEZ DFRMBEEERRS
MEFRNEE  MEAFTRERI10%(=F
—ZF10%) c EFHNALEZRESRER
AFEtE -

REBARZRER Y (EX)
B 8 2 R RKOR

Company
RKAF

2013 2012
—E—= —E——4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FETT
Unlisted shares, at cost JE LR - REANE 41,511 41,510
Due from subsidiaries Al NG O] 1,831,757 1,887,265
Provision for impairment* B ERE (1,191,320) (1,083,104)
640,437 804,161
Due to subsidiaries N ENGIE L] (26,056) (81,875)

# An impairment was recognised for certain amounts due from
subsidiaries with carrying amounts in aggregate of
approximately HK$1,413,742,000 (before deducting the
impairment loss) (2012: approximately HK$1,178,213,000)
because these subsidiaries have insufficient assets to be
realised to recover the Company's interests therein.
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# BN ERENT B AR FTIE Al IR EET BIA
BRERARBZHE  MERETERA
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17.

18.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND DUE 17. RHBARZREREW (FEX)
FROM/(TO) SUBSIDIARIES (continued) Bt A RIFRIE ()
The amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries are unsecured, B JRE LS BT JB8 /2 R RUIB £ 211,698,000 7T ( =
interest-free and have no fixed terms of repayment, except for T — —4F : #9500,389,0007 I ) =B T &
amounts due from subsidiaries of approximately BEEMENIESE THEEFEFOSE
HK$211,698,000 (2012: approximately HK$500,389,000) which ETESN . Rt (R BB A R 58
is interest-bearing at the Hong Kong dollar prime rate plus 3% HRERR 2 RERETERE -
or Hong Kong dollar prime rate minus 0.5%.
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are set out in note 42 to FEWBR A2 BN S REMTEL2 o
the financial statements.
CONVERTIBLE NOTES DESIGNATED AS AT 18. EEABEAFEFABREKRZTIR
FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS RE
Group Company
TEH FIN/NE
2013 2012 2013 2012
—Eg-=F T EBE-=§f —ZT——-F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FET FTERT FET
Convertible notes AHRER 93,230 247,063 - 119,599

Oon 21 March 2012, the Group acquired zero coupon
redeemable convertible notes with an aggregate principal
amount of HK$289,205,000 issued by King Stone Energy Group
Limited (“King Stone”) on 21 December 2009, at a cash
consideration of approximately HK$260,285,000. The ordinary
shares of King Stone are listed on the SEHK. These convertible
notes have a maturity term of five years, however, King Stone
has the right at any time after three years of the issuance date
to redeem in whole or in part the convertible notes at par.
These convertible notes can be converted into ordinary shares
of King Stone at any time after 12 months of the issuance date
at the conversjon price of HK$1.25 per share. The conversion
price is subject to usual anti-dilution adjustments.

As at 30 April 2013 and 2012, the convertible notes held by the
Group are with maturity of over one year and are therefore
classified as non-current assets on the consolidated statement
of financial position.
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18. CONVERTIBLE NOTES DESIGNATED AS AT

FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
(continued)
These convertible notes were designated as financial assets as
at fair value through profit or loss with gains or losses on
changes in fair value recognised in the income statement in
the year in which they arise. The methods and assumptions
applied for the valuation of these convertible notes were as
follows:

(a)

(b)

Valuation of debt component

The fair value of debt component of approximately
HK$104,057,000 (2012: approximately HK$258,648,000)
was calculated based on the present value of
contractually determined stream of future cash flows
discounted at the required yield, which was determined
with reference to the estimated credit rating of the
convertible notes issuer and remaining time to maturity.
The effective interest rates of the debt component of the
convertible notes at 30 April 2013 and 2012 were 19.36%
and 4.31%, respectively.

Valuation of conversion option element

The fair value of the conversion option of approximately
HK$3,136,000 (2012: approximately HK$35,005,000)
embedded in the convertible notes at the end of the
reporting period is determined by the directors of the
Company with reference to a valuation performed by an

18.

EERRAFEFARBRZTE
REE (&)

ZEA MR RIREETE RIRAFERF AR
BRZEMEE MEAFEZHWES

BRAINELFERERERER

o hZE

AR SRR E R Z%fﬁﬁi&fﬁj“ﬁDT

(@

(b)

BB 2HE
B2 D 2 A {8 49 104,057,000 7
ﬁ(:%—:fﬁ : #9258,648,00078 7T)
BHBEEZAKRRSRBIZHAT
u&*f?ﬁfﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁi KFBER
T2 E AR E R HTT AME AT
i&&ﬁ%TﬂF,ﬁZHTFﬁﬂﬁ?ﬂm o A[ A
BEEEHBIN_TE—=FR=_F
—ZFMA=ZTRAZERFES A

19.36% . 4.31% °

iR s 24 E

ATRAR IR PR R IR S B T

4R 7 N F{EA3,136,0008 T (==

—:¢ © #935,005,00078 7T ) B A
NABEEELEBUAERBEMBE

LA HTE — FRAT e EER

independent qualified professional valuer, using Black- FRETIHERERE - 2B 2B AH
Scholes Option Pricing model. The inputs into the model BT
were as follows:
2013 2012
—E-=F —E——F
Stock price f&(E HK$0.36558 T  HK$0.60/% 7T
Conversion price Hia(E HK$1.2578753t  HK$1.258 7T
Volatility g 74.64% 72.2%
Option life HA % 4F HA 1.64 years®&  2.64 years
Risk-free rate 42 [ B 1| =R 0.17% 0.33%
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18. CONVERTIBLE NOTES DESIGNATED AS AT 18.
FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
(continued)
The difference between the fair value at initial recognition (i.e.
the transaction price) and the value that would have been
derived had valuation techniques used for subsequent
measurement been applied at initial recognition, less
subsequent releases during the year, is as follows:

EERBRAFEFARBRZATE
REE (&)

NEHERE 2 2 AR ZER) BERE
MRS RBERTERMMBMEEN X
AESHZEBEMERZZRRFARR
BEEFEAT

Group
TEE
2013 2012
—E—=F —E——4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Carrying amount of deferred gain REYL/ WSR2
at beginning of year/at initial EEW s REE
recognition 46,590 48,524
Amortised to profit or loss 418 % AR 8 (32,627) (1,934)
Carrying amount of deferred gain at RER 2 EE W &= FEHEE
end of year (which is yet to be (BRI RER)
recognised in the income statement) 13,963 46,590

For the year ended 30 April 2013, a total principal amount of
HK$150,000,000 of the convertible notes held by the Group
was redeemed by King Stone (2012: Nil). During the year, a loss
on change in fair value of convertible notes designated as at
fair value through profit or loss amounting to approximately
HK$3,833,000 (2012: a loss of approximately HK$13,222,000),
including amortisation of deferred gain of approximately
HK$32,627,000 (2012: approximately HK$1,934,000) as per
above, was recognised by the Group in the consolidated
income statement.
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19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE EQUITY INVESTMENTS 19. AIHEZRAERE

Group and Company
AEBRAAR

2013 2012
—E—= —E—_F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHIT
Listed equity investments, at fair value: AR AIEE » A F(E -

Hong Kong BB 78,555 120,000
During the year, the gross loss in respect of the Group’s FR - ASEATHDE ZBRAEEMR
available-for-sale equity investments recognised in other Eth 2 E W s TR 2 42 E B 40 7 62,889,000
comprehensive income amounted to approximately BL(ZZ —ZF : 0% #973,540,000 %
HK$62,889,000 (2012: gain of approximately HK$73,540,000, of 7T EFR#9340,000 R EM 2 WS E
which approximately HK$340,000 was reclassified from other FofElER)
comprehensive income to the income statement).

The market value of the Group’s and the Company’s listed AREBEARR ETRAIEERZETE
equity investments at the date of approval of these financial WRENEE B Z M EL B 62,475,000%8
statements was approximately HK$62,475,000. JC °

The above investments consist of investments in equity M ERERAFLSZIRE  EWIETE
securities which were designated as available-for-sale financial RAMHE B EE - B EETE 3
assets and have no fixed maturity date or coupon rate. HtZEE X -
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20. LOANS AND ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

20. ERREWERMR

Group
AEE
2013 2012
—E-= —E—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHIT
Loans and accounts receivable: ER M EWERR
— from securities, futures, options, —FH - H‘ﬂf g =52
bullion and forex dealing services RAOME B B R7% 107,220 139,637
— from money lending operations %E%jﬂ 235,730 483,678
— from pawn loan services mE B ARTE 37,325 -
— from trading operations —BEEH 160 160
— from corporate and other operations — — 1% [ B fth 275 4,308 3,044
384,743 626,519
Provision for impairment: TRE R
— from securities, futures, options, — %5 HE HR =
bullion and forex dealing services KAONE B B R (7,555) (5,479)
— from money lending operations — EEEG (27,376) (14,376)
— from trading operations —BEEED (160) (160)
— from corporate and other operations — — 13 [ Ho{th 275 (222) -
(35,313) (20,015)
349,430 606,504
Analysed as: IR
Current loans and accounts receivable mEBER REWIER 348,854 606,504
Non-current loans and FERBE R M EUBRTK
accounts receivable 576 -
349,430 606,504
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20. LOANS AND ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 20.

(continued)

Securities, futures, options, bullion and forex
dealing services

The Group allows a credit period of up to the settlement dates
of the respective securities, futures, options, bullion and forex
transactions or a credit period mutually agreed with the
contracting parties. Each customer has a maximum credit limit.
The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding
receivables so as to minimise credit risk. Loans for margin
financing are secured by the pledge of customers’ securities as
collateral. The amounts of credit facilities granted to them are
determined by the discounted value of securities accepted by
the Group. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by
management. In view of the aforementioned and that the
Group’s accounts receivable relate to a large number of
diversified customers, there is no significant concentration of
credit risk. Overdue accounts receivable bear interest with
reference to the Hong Kong dollar prime rate.

Money lending operations

The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding
loans receivable so as to minimise credit risk. The granting of
loans is subject to approval by the directors of the Company
and/or its subsidiary, where appropriate, whilst overdue
balances are reviewed regularly by senior management.
Certain loans receivable are secured by listed securities
provided by the customers. Loans receivable are interest-
bearing at rates mutually agreed with the contracting parties,
ranging from 12% to 36% per annum.

EREEWARR (8)

#BE HE B EERIEEE
AR %

AEBERTHERE@ES B8 B
B MINERHRWBBIEZEER %
WMOBETHEBEZEEN BR2FFPY
ERREERE - AREBIRKEER
WORR R M 1S B IR B » ISR E & AR
ERE - FRBEEEBEMETFPES
ERERRERER REBRZEERE
SRIVBRBAEEMZAZE R ZHREE
BT BHASRAEEET IR - ERN
EAEIE - N EAEERKERTS K EA
RAZDHERP BT FEEERARBEE
ShzBER - BREKRRSRETRE
BMEGE -

BEXK
AEBBAORKREEREERERFBEBE
- BREEERRBERE - REER
REFARE R/ RENBAR (MER) 2
BEEHETIEE MBBREBRASRE
BEFE SR - B TRKRERTDUEPH
RELETHESERR - RRERZRBNE
THREBEZFFERGFE  MF12EE36
&g o

Pawn loan services HEGMRRS
The pawn loans to customers arising from pawn loan business MEEREBEEAZMBEFPAEER 2T

had average loan period of 30 days. The loans provided to
customers bore fixed interest rate at 0.46% per month during
the year and were repayable according to the loan agreements.
Included in the balances are loans of approximately
HK$23,029,000 as at 30 April 2013 secured by real estate in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") and approximately
HK$14,280,000 as at 30 April 2013 secured by personal
properties held by individuals.
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20. LOANS AND ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 20.
(continued)
An aged analysis of the Group's loans and accounts receivable
at the end of the reporting period, based on the settlement due
date and net of provision for impairment, is as follows:

EREEWARR (8)

REEZERREBEER(HNBRRERE)
RS TAERREEIHAZER Y
HaE -

Group

AEH
2013 2012
—E—= —E——4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Current to 1 month BEfZE—{E A 199,094 379,653
110 3 months —Z=={f A 6,753 325
3 months to 1 year —EAE—%F 129,596 226,026
Over 1 year —F P 13,987 500
349,430 606,504

The movements in provision for impairment of loans and
accounts receivable are as follows:

BN EWRFURER B HE AT

Group

AEH
2013 2012
—E—=F —E——4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FH&TT
At beginning of year REFEH] 20,015 1,571
Impairment losses recognised BRERREGE 23,314 18,444
Impairment losses reversed [REIEDEREY FE (8,016) -
15,298 18,444
At end of year RELR 35,313 20,015

Included in the above provision for impairment of loans and
accounts receivable is provision for individually impaired loans
and accounts receivable of approximately HK$35,313,000
(2012: HK$20,015,000) with carrying amounts before provision
of approximately HK$53,670,000 (2012: HK$24,567,000). These
individually impaired loans and accounts receivable relate to
customers that do not have sufficient amount of collateral at
the end of the reporting period and are not expected to be fully
recoverable.
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20. LOANS AND ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
(continued)
The aged analysis of the loans and accounts receivable that
are not individually nor collectively considered to be impaired

20.

EREEWARR (8)

b {8 5 3 H B AR A IRE 2 B R R B IR
R ZPRE DTN

is as follows:

Group

AEH
2013 2012
—E-—= —E—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
Neither past due nor impaired REERTRARBE 141,711 428,120
Less than 1 month past due B HAS B —1E A 52,749 7,000
1 to 3 months past due BHl—Z==EA 6,753 58,402
3 months to 1 year past due BEI=EAZE—F 129,398 107,930
Over 1 year past due BE—F P 462 500
331,073 601,952

The directors of the Company are of the opinion that no
provision for impairment is necessary in respect of those
receivables that were past due but not impaired as there has
not been a significant change in credit quality or listed
securities of clients are held as collateral against certain
receivables and thus the balances are still considered fully
recoverable.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s loans and accounts
receivable are denominated in the following currencies:

RRABEERR  HZFCBHERRE
ZEWEFME  ARNEEERYJEEK
BRHRBFAEEPZ LTEAERE TRK
BB ZFERDERR/TEH
Yl - B AL VR DR E R -

AR B2 B R M RS R 873 3 T 5
A -

Group

AEH
2013 2012
—g—= —EF-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FiET
Hong Kong Dollar BT 301,197 593,624
United States Dollar (“USD") Ex(ZExT)) 7,184 12,376
Renminbi (“RMB") ARE(TAR]D 41,049 -
British Pound Sterling (“GBP") e ([5EEE]) = 132
Euro ("EUR") BT (M8t )) = 372
349,430 606,504
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21.

22.

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

21.

BANFRE - s REBERRR

Group Company
biN | AT

2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-=F —T-F —E-=F —T-F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FHT FTET FAT
Prepayments BIRIE 2,719 1,829 365 1,038
Deposits HEA 7,793 7,406 4,080 3,156
Other receivables Ho fE R 3R 99,896 58 97,049 -
110,408 9,293 101,494 4,194

At 30 April 2013, the other receivables mainly consist of rights
issue proceeds receivable from underwriter of HK$96,956,000
(2012: Nil).

EQUITY INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

22.

R-ZBE-—=FmA=+H HEMEKEX
TERERKBHEEm 2 ERATE RE
96,956,000/ 0 (= F——4F : &) -

BAFEFABERZKREARE

Group

TEE
2013 2012
—Eg—= —EF——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT

Listed equity investments, at market value: F & ZA38& - #HmE :

Hong Kong BB 1,599 843

The above equity investments at 30 April 2013 and 2012 were
classified as held for trading.

The market value of equity investments at fair value through
profit or loss at the date of approval of these financial
statements was approximately HK$1,555,000.
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23.

24.

BANK TRUST ACCOUNT BALANCES

The Group maintains segregated trust accounts with licensed
banks to hold clients” monies arising from its normal course of
business licensed by the Securities and Futures Commission
(the "SFC"). The Group has classified these clients” monies as
bank trust account balances under the current assets section
of the consolidated statement of financial position and
recognised the corresponding amounts payable to the
respective clients on the ground that it is liable for any loss or
misappropriation of these client’s monies. The Group is not
permitted to use the clients’” monies to settle its own
obligations.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGED
BANK DEPOSITS

23.

24.

RITEERF &R
AEERFRBITHRBLERRP - A
FHRERETEESRMEEHEREZR
e((REGDERXBZEREKBIET
EEZEFPFIEA - AEERREEF KA
JIEGR A MBARNKR 2 RBEER T 2R
TERERPES  URBEARTFHKIEA
ZEMEARBAA LETZERMEER
N THBEP ZHAERE - AEETF
NEFPRERBITEART ZEME -

RERREEEEAURFEMRR
TR

Group Company
TEH KAT
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-=F —T-CF —E-=F —T—-F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FEx FET
Cash and bank balances ¥4 RiR{T4 570,119 215,272 353,609 93,144
Pledged bank deposits BHEARIRITIER 5,000 10,000 - -
575,119 225,272 353,609 93,144
Less: Pledged deposits i : $R1TiES A
for bank overdrafts IRTER
(note 27) (PBiF7E27) (5,000) (10,000) = -
Cash and cash equivalents 14 KIRE&EEIER 570,119 215,272 353,609 93,144

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances
of the Group denominated in RMB amounted to approximately
HK$57,490,000 (2012: HK$284,000). The RMB is not freely
convertible into other currencies, however, under Mainland
China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange
RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct
foreign exchange business.
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24.

25.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGED
BANK DEPOSITS (continued)

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for
varying periods of between one day and three months
depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group,
and earn interest at the respective short term time deposit
rates. The bank balances and pledged deposits are deposited
with creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

An aged analysis of the Group’s accounts payable at the end of
the reporting period, based on the settlement due date, is as
follows:

24.

25.

ReRRLEERAURBEMAR
THEX(E

FRIBTZRSRBIERTE BFRFIRH
BZEBFE - BEAEEUREFERZE
O EHERERCERENF—BE
SEATE - A5 BIRAARIE S B 5K
R IR B - $RITRE I R BRI R
FRLEEE TR AEERIFZRIT -

FEAY BR X
AEERMNERN RS HETERIZEER
BEIR 2R DOMTIATE -

Group
REH
2013 2012
—E-= —E—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FiET
Current to 1 month BNEiZ=—1{&E A 185,100 220,123

The accounts payable are unsecured and repayable on the
settlement date of the relevant trades or upon demand from
customers.

As at 30 April 2013, accounts payable with carrying amount of
approximately HK$111,498,000 (2012: HK$161,812,000) are
interest-bearing at Hong Kong bank deposit saving rates.

Included in the Group's accounts payable as at 30 April 2012
was an amount of approximately HK$15,000,000 due to a
director of the Company, which represented the balance of the
director’s personal securities trading account maintained with
a subsidiary of the Company. The corresponding amount of the
account balance was pooled with other client monies and
deposited in the segregated bank trust accounts.
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26.

27.

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 26. HinESERAKRETEH
Group Company
i | biNNE
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-=F —E——F —E-=F —E--F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FHET TERT FHET
Other payables H A ERERR 18,341 11,303 483 73
Accruals FEFTE R 7,175 12,330 3,674 3,217
25,516 23,633 4,157 3,290
Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an average HEMEMERETTE  FHXNHAE=
term of three months. @A -
INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS 27. FFERITEE

As at 30 April 2013, the Group has overdraft facilities which are
secured by pledge of the Group's time deposits with carrying
amount of approximately HK$5,000,000 (2012: HK$10,000,000)
(note 24). None of which the Group has utilised these overdraft
facilities at the end of the reporting period (2012: Nil).

In addition, the Company has provided corporate guarantees in
respect of the Group’s banking facilities to the extent of
HK$40,000,000 (2012: HK$60,000,000). None of which the
Group has utilised these banking facilities at the end of the
reporting period (2012: Nil). In the opinion of the directors of
the Company, no material liabilities would arise from the above
corporate guarantees which arose in the ordinary course of
business and the fair values of the corporate guarantees
granted by the Company were immaterial.
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28. FINANCE LEASES PAYABLE 28.

The Group leases certain of its property, plant and equipment
for its business operations. These leases are classified as
finance leases and have a remaining lease term of 18 to 20
months (2012: 2 to 32 months).

At 30 April 2013, the total future minimum lease payments
under finance leases and their present values were as follows:

EARERLY
FEBEREXEBEERRETYVE  BE

BB EMOLEARERLY - Tt
BN F18E20R®MA(ZZE—=F: 2%
REA)TE -

RZZ—=FMA=+H8" mEALOZX
REEEHSEEIHARENT :

Group
EE
Present value of

Minimum lease payments minimum lease payments

REHEE BEHESRE
2013 2012 2013 2012
—Eg-=F —ZET-——fF —E-=F —E-F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT FET FEx FET
Amounts payable under RERERLER
finance leases: TR 2 15,2 B -
Within one year —FR 154 21 121 141
In the second year EF 90 154 83 119
In the third to fifth years, EZERF
inclusive (BREEEMT) - %0 - 85
Total minimum finance lease ~ HEMEENTAL L5
payments 244 455 204 345
Future finance charges RRRBEEA (40) (110)
Total net finance leases payable FE{< & & M 47485 58 204 345
Portion classified as current FVERBIBEZE D
liabilities (121) (141)
Non-current portion FERNEREE 7 83 204

29. DUE TO A NON-CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER  29.

OF A SUBSIDIARY

As at 30 April 2012, the amount due to a non-controlling
shareholder of a subsidiary was unsecured, interest-free and
had no fixed terms of repayment.
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30. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

The movements in deferred tax liabilities during the year are as

30. EEERIEAE

BEERARBERNFRNZEEIT

follows:
Group
AEE
Depreciation allowance in
excess of related
depreciation
MERBRLHERENE
2013 2012
—E-—= —E——4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
At beginning and end of year RE R G 48 80 80

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of approximately
HK$293,159,000 (2012: HK$264,006,000) that are available
indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable profits of the
companies in which the losses arose. The Group also has tax
losses arising in the Mainland China of HK$5,842,000 (2012: Nil)
that will expire in one to five years for offsetting against future
taxable profits. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised
in respect of these losses as they have arisen in subsidiaries
that have been loss-making for some time and it is not
considered probable that taxable profits will be available

against which the tax losses can be utilised.

At 30 April 2013 and 2012, there was no significant
unrecognised deferred tax liability for taxes that would be
payable on the unremitted earnings of the Group’s subsidiaries
as the Group has no liability to additional tax should such

amounts be remitted.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the

payment of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

REE B S B EEIEEB4293,159,000
BEIL(ZF— T4 1 264,006,000 7T) ¢ A
ERIAERBEELEBIBAR 2 RRER
FismF) o NEE AR BEAMINELETIES
1858420008 T (=T ——F : &) HRN
—ZRFANEM > AR EE R ERR
EH c BRZEBERCHEEIE B
MZWBRARESLE  WRABTKAIEEE
RBRA AT HRIKE R IEEE - KRB MZ
EEIBHREERBEE -

RIE—ZFR-_FE——FWNA=+H"
WEEAAREEFMME QR ZRELBMNE
EZEMAEEmNHEREERRERELRE
aE REARAEZSHEEL AEHE
INMBEREREINHIERT ©

AR B 1A EL R BROIR AN 2 B B 36 8 B 7 ]
FR1STER °
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31. PROVISION FOR LONG SERVICE PAYMENTS 31. REBRKSRE
Group Company
N | AT
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-=F —E—-F —E-=F —T-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET TET FAT
At beginning of year NG 1,564 2,995 - 15
Write-back of provision, B E# @ #5E
net (875) (1,431) - (15)
Amounts utilised during  FEREBEEE
the year (112) - = _
At end of year NS 577 1,564 - -
The Group provides for the probable future long service AEEFEF BETRBRBEBERK
payments expected to be made to employees under the Hong PIENTREZRBRGSELEE - B
Kong Employment Ordinance. The provision is based on the AREDRBEERRIERAEEER
best estimate of the probable future payments which have SHMTAERERDMATRBRZERIEM
been earned by the employees from their services to the ENERZ A

Group to the end of the reporting period.
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32. SHARE CAPITAL 32. B
2013 2012
—E—= —E——4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHIT
Shares % 12
Authorised: SETE
1,000,000,000,000 ordinary 1,000,000,000,000 A5
shares of HK$0.001 each SFRMEEO0.001 B Tz EilmAik 1,000,000 1,000,000
Number
of shares  Total value
B A wiE
‘000 HK$'000
TFh% FHIT
At 1 May 2011 R-ZE——FHA—H 50,000,000 500,000
Additions during the year F RN (5T 32())

(note 32(a)) 50,000,000 500,000
Share subdivision (note 32(d)(i) A& #R 48 (B 5 32(d)(ii)) 900,000,000 -
At 30 April 2012, 1 May 2012and R ZZE——-FMWAB=+H -

30 April 2013 “E-——FRAHEK

—E-=FHA=+H 1,000,000,000 1,000,000
2013 2012
—E—= T
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHIT
Issued and fully paid: ERITRERE :
2,542,691,520 ordinary shares of  2,542,691,520 i &% E{&0.001 7 T2

HK$0.001 each (2012: EAT (= — —F : 545,598,480 fi%

545,598,480 ordinary shares FIXEE0.001 8 T2 EifRAk)

of HK$0.001 each) 2,543 546

Annual Report 2012/2013 « —B——/ “ZE— =445 123



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B A Y

30 April 2013 = —=FMA=+H

32. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

32. RA&(&)

Number
of shares  Total value
BE A wiE
‘000 HK$'000
TFh% FHIT
At 1 May 2011 RZE——FHA—H 1,083,044 10,830
Issue of new shares by way of BB EETHR (MI5E32(0)
placing (note 32(b)) 216,000 2,160
Issue of new shares by way of BB TIR (F5E32(C)
rights issue (note 32(c)) 25,980,880 259,809
Share consolidation (note 32(d)(i))  M&{n& B (I FE32(d)(0)) (26,734,326) -
Capital reduction (note 32(d)(ii) A AS L (B 5 32(d) (i) Bz (v)
and (iv)) - (272,253)
At30 April2012and 1 May 2012 RZ-ZE——FWA=+HE
—T——H#FHA—H 545,598 546
Issue of new shares by way of FiBBLEFEI TR, (MIEE32()
placing (note 32(f)) 90,000 90
Issue of new shares by way of FBHARFITIRGD (MIFE32(8)
rights issue (note 32(g)) 1,907,019 1,907
Issue of new shares by way of FIEITHERIEE TR (B 5E32())
warrants exercise (note 32(e)) 75 -
At 30 April 2013 R-Z—=9MWA=+H 2,542,692 2,543

Notes:

GEE

@)

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed by the Company's
shareholders on 6 July 2011, the authorised share capital of the
Company was increased from HK$500,000,000 divided into
50,000,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each to
HK$1,000,000,000 divided into 100,000,000,000 ordinary shares
of HK$0.01 each by the creation of an additional 50,000,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each.

In May 2011, the Company issued 216,000,000 ordinary shares
of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the Company at a price
of HK$0.185 per share by way of placing to independent
investors, giving rise to gross proceeds of approximately
HK$39,960,000.

In August 2011, the Company issued 25,980,880,000 ordinary
shares of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the Company at a
price of HK$0.03 per share by way of rights issue on the basis of
twenty rights shares for every one existing share held by
qualifying shareholders, giving rise to gross proceeds of
approximately HK$779,426,000.

(0)
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32. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes: (continued)

@

Pursuant to the ordinary resolutions and special resolutions
passed on 12 April 2012, a capital reorganisation (the “Capital
Reorganisation”) was implemented by the Company which
involved:

(i) the consolidation of every fifty (50) issued existing shares
of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the Company into
one (1) consolidated share of HK$0.5 each;

(i) the round down of the total number of consolidated
shares in the issued share capital of the Company to the
nearest whole number and reduction of issued share
capital of the Company by cancelling the paid-up capital
of the Company to the extent of HK$0.499 on each of the
issued consolidated shares such that the nominal value of
each issued consolidated share was reduced from HK$0.5
to HK$0.001,

(i) the subdivision of each authorised but unissued existing
share into 10 shares of HK$0.001 each; and

(iv)  the transfer of the credit arising from the capital reduction
of approximately HK$272,253,000 to the contributed
surplus account of the Company.

During the year ended 30 April 2012, the Company made a
bonus issue of warrants (the “Warrants”) on the basis of one
Warrant for every five rights shares taken up, resulting in the
issue of 5,196,176,000 Warrants. Each Warrant entitled the
holder thereof to subscribe for one ordinary share of HK$0.01
each in the capital of the Company at an initial subscription price
of HK$0.03 per share, payable in cash and subject to
adjustments, from the issuance date to 21 August 2012. As a
result of the Capital Reorganisation (note 32(d)), the subscription
price for the Warrants has been adjusted to HK$1.5 per share
and the subscription right of one Warrant has been adjusted to
0.02 new share of HK$0.001 each.

With the capital structure of the Company at 30 April 2012, the
exercise in full of the subscription rights attaching to the
5,196,176,000 Warrants outstanding at 30 April 2012 would
result in the issue of 103,923,520 ordinary shares of HK$0.001
each in the capital of the Company.

During the current year, the Company issued approximately
75,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.001 each in the share of capital
of the Company upon exercise of approximately 3,750,000
warrants, giving rise to gross proceeds of approximately
HK$112,000.
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32.

33.

SHARE CAPITAL (continued)
Notes: (continued)

() In July 2012, the Company placed, through the placing agents,
90,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.001 each in the share capital
of the Company to independent investors at a price of HK$0.156
per share for a total subscription price of HK$14,040,000. Details
of the placing are disclosed in the Company’s announcement
dated 7 June 2012.

® In April 2013, the Company issued 1,907,018,640 ordinary shares
of HK$0.001 each in the share capital of the Company at a price
of HK$0.095 per share by way of rights issue on the basis of
three rights shares for every one existing share held by
qualifying shareholders, giving rise to gross proceeds of
approximately HK$181,167,000.

All shares issued during the year rank pari passu with the then
existing ordinary shares in all respects.

Share options
Details of the Company’s share option scheme are included in
note 33 to the financial statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations.

Under the Scheme adopted on 4 March 2002 (the "Old
Scheme”), the directors of the Company may grant options to
eligible participants, including the Company's directors, other
employees of the Group, suppliers of goods or services to the
Group, customers of the Group, and any non-controlling
interests in the Company's subsidiaries. The Old Scheme will,
unless otherwise cancelled or amended, remain in force for 10
years from the date of adoption. No options have been granted
under the Old Scheme since its adoption (2012: Nil).

The directors of the Company consider that it is important to
continue to provide eligible participants with an additional
incentive by offering them an opportunity to obtain equity
interest in the Company and to reward them for contributing to
the long-term success of the business of the Group.
Accordingly, pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the
annual general meeting held on 9 September 2011, a new
share option scheme (the “New Scheme”) was adopted to
replace the Old Scheme and the Old Scheme was terminated
with effect from 9 September 2011. The New Scheme became
effective on 9 September 2011 and, unless otherwise cancelled
or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from that date.

32.

33.
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33. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 33. EBR#EsE (&)

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the New Scheme and any other share
option scheme of the Company must not exceed 10% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any time. The maximum
number of shares issuable under share options to each eligible
participant in the New Scheme within any 12-month period is
limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at the
exercise date. Any further grant of share options in excess of
this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in a general
meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of their
associates, are subject to approval in advance by the
independent non-executive directors of the Company.

In addition, any share options granted to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive director of the
Company, or to any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any time or with an
aggregate value (based on the price of the Company’s shares
at the date of grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any
12-month period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in
advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within
21 days from the date of offer, upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise
period of the share options granted is determinable by the
directors of the Company, and commences after a certain
vesting period and ends on a date which is not later than 10
years from the date of offer of the share options.

The subscription price of the share options is determinable by
the directors of the Company, but must be at least the higher
of (i) the SEHK closing price of the Company’s shares on the
date of offer of the share options which must be a business
day, and (i) the average SEHK closing price of the Company's
shares as stated in the SEHK's daily quotations sheets for the
five trading days immediately preceding the date of offer.

No option has been granted or outstanding under the New
Scheme during the years ended 30 April 2013 and 2012.
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34. RESERVES

(a)

(b)

Group

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the
movements therein for the current and prior years are
presented in the consolidated statement of changes in

34. #E

@

AEH

AEBRANEE QAT FE 2 FBR
REREBH2INGARREEE -

equity.
Company (b) &AF
Available-
for-sale Retained
Share investment profits/
premium  Contributed  revaluation (accumulated
account surplus reserve losses) Total
nthEr  RERR/
RAEER BABH REEMRE (RHER) ag
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEL FEL FEL FEL FEL
At 1 May 2011 RZE——%1A-H 186,689 - - 29,544 216,233
Loss for the year FEER - - - (5,183) (5,183)
Qther comprehensive income for the year: & 2t 2E K4 -
Changes in fair value of avallable-for-sale ATt EE 7 RAKEZ
equity investments ATEEE - - 73,200 - 73200
Total comprehensive income/(expense)  FEZ2EME/(Fx%)@%E
for the year - - 73,200 (5183 68,017
Issue of new shares by way of placing FREERTHRN
(note 32(0)) (PzE32(0)) 37,800 - - - 37,800
Issue of new shares by way of FBERBTIHRG
rights issue (note 32(c)) (F3E3200)) 519,617 - - - 519,617
Transaction costs attributable toissue B/ 7HRAEE S BHA
of new shares (17,038) - - - (17,038)
Transfer of credit arising from the capital ~ BERRASHE T
reduction in relation to the Capital BB mES 28R
Reorganisation (note 32(d)(ii) and (iv)) (BEE 32d) i) B () - 272,253 - - 272,253
At 30 April 2012 RZE-—FMA=1H 727,068 272,253 73,200 24,361 1,096,882
Loss for the year FEER - - - (39.626) (39.626)
Other comprehensive expense for the year: /8 £ 2 E -
Changes in fair value of available-for-sale AL E 2 RARE 2
equity investments ATEEE - - (62,942) - (62,942)
Total comprehensive expense FERERXER
for the year - - (62,942) (39,626) (102,568)
Issue of new shares by way of placing BBREERTHRG
(note 32(f)) (FzE320)) 13,950 - - - 13,950
Issue of new shares by way of BBHBRBTHRN
rights issue (note 32(g) (M3 329) 179,260 - - - 179,260
Isse of new shares by way of BROTEARERRTIRE
warrants exercise (note 32(e)) (FzE3260)) 112 - - - 112
Transaction costs attributable toissue BT HRMDEER BHKA
of new shares (@.973) - - - (4.973)
At 30 April 2013 RZZ-=FEMA=1AH 915,417 272,253 10,258 (15,265) 1,182,663

Under the Companies Act of Bermuda, the Company’s
contributed surplus is distributable to shareholders under

certain circumstances.
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35. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES 35. WIBKME

On 17 May 2012, the Group acquired the entire equity interest
of Simsen Asset Management (HK) Limited (“Simsen Asset
Management (HK)") (formerly known as “Broadwood Asset
Management Limited”) at a total consideration of
HK$1,250,000. Simsen Asset Management (HK) is engaged in
the provision of asset management services to professional
investors.

On 25 September 2012, the Group acquired the entire equity
interest of Concord Capital Investment Limited (“Concord
Capital”), at a total consideration of HK$82,207,000, which is
principally engaged in the provision of pawn loan services in
the PRC.

On 10 April 2013, the Group acquired the entire share capital of
Beijing Yuedetong Financial Consulting Company Limited
(“Beijing Yuedetong”) at a consideration of HK$20,956,000,
which is principally engaged in the provision of medium and
short term financing services, including personal loans,
entrusted loans and financial consultation services in the PRC.

Annual Report 2012/2013 ¢ —F—=—/ —Z— =%

RZZT——FRAT+EH RAEBKEX
TEEER(BB)BERAA(IXRITEAEE
B( & % )1 (Al [ Broadwood Asset
Management Limited]) & 5k A i a5 - 48
RER1,250008L KITEEER(H
BN EMEXEREERMEETERY -

R-EBE——FHNA-+HE  KEBE
BAEARBRATR([REER]) 2HRR
W25 #AR (B A82,207,0008 7T ° %A A
FERFBENERHEAZERRS -

R-ZBE—=FWATH AEBWEILR
AR BEEER QR (LR ER])
2 ERIR AR - R 1B /520,956,000 T © & A
BAEERNPEEEREPIEHRE R -
BREANER  ZRER LM BERRY -

129



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B A Y

30 April 2013 = —=FMA=+H

35. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 35. WEBKHE AR (&)
The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Simsen RITBEEER(BHB)  BEEARRIERRK
Asset Management (HK), Concord Capital and Beijing ER A HREENBEAFENT ¢
Yuedetong were as follows:

Simsen Asset

Management Concord Beijing
(HK) Capital Yuedetong Total
RTEEER
(B8) MEER LFREE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THET FET FET
Net assets acquired of:  FU &&= FE -
Property, plant and ME - BEREE
equipment (note 13) (BI3E13) - 29 9 38
Loans and accounts B e AR 3R
receivable - 25,787 1,266 27,053
Prepayments, deposits  FEfEIE ~ 5] K
and other receivables H At fE U ER 3N - 109 75 184
Cash and cash RekRe
equivalents F{EIRE 150 40,305 17,458 57,913
Other payables and Hib AR R
accruals E:tER - (214) 43) (257)
Tax payable JERFIIE - (462) - (462)
150 65,554 18,765 84,469
Goodwill arising on WEBEL 7 /e
acquisition (note 14) (MIzE14) 1,100 16,653 2,191 19,944
Satisfied by cash NRE X 1,250 82,207 20,956 104,413
An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the acquisition of BREWBMBARIZ AT RESITWT
subsidiaries is as follows:
HK$'000
FHET
Consideration paid in cash NS ZRE (104,413)
Less: Cash and cash equivalent B TR KR e SEIE R &R
balances acquired 57,913
Deposit paid 2REI £ 900
Net outflow included in cash flows from st AREEH 2 BEHE 2w HIERE
investing activities (45,600)
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35.

36.

37.

38.

39.

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
Since the acquisition, Simsen Asset Management (HK), Concord
Capital and Beijing Yuedetong contributed approximately
HK$10,617,000 to the Group's turnover and profits of
approximately HK$4,223,000 to the consolidated results for the
year ended 30 April 2013.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS

Major non-cash transactions:

During the year ended 30 April 2012, the Group disposed of
items of property, plant and equipment by discharging the
finance lease arrangements of approximately HK$40,000.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

Details of the Group’s bank loans and overdrafts, which were
secured by the assets of the Group, are included in note 27 to
the financial statements.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
At the end of the reporting period, contingent liabilities not
provided for in the financial statements were as follows:

35.

36.

37.

38.

WEBHIE A R (&)

HRETIHE  RTEEEE(FE) &
AEARIEFABBAANEEEEEER
4910,617,0008 L WMEE T —=F
MA=+TRHLEFEZHEAGEETERNEFL
4,223,000 7T °

RERERERME

FEFRERS :
BE_ZT——_FMA=THILFE X%

BiEBEEBREBOLZHEMHERED
40,000/8TT 2% - BB MRIBEE -

BEHEE
AEBMARBEFEAZRITERR
ZFHBEN M ISR M T 27

KB

HREE
RRE R TEN  RERBRRIRAE
Bz RARAENT :

Company
N
2013 2012
—E-= —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FH&T
Guarantees given to banks in connection  FtM B A &R LA
with facilities granted to subsidiaries AIERTTIEL Z R 40,000 60,000

At 30 April 2013 and 2012, none of the banking facilities
granted to the subsidiaries subject to guarantees given to the
banks by the Company were utilised.

OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

The Group leases certain of its office properties and office
equipment under operating lease arrangements. Leases for
properties are negotiated for terms ranging from one to four
years (2012: one to three years), and those for office equipment
are for terms of five years (2012: five years).
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39. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

40.

(continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group and the Company
had total future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases falling due as follows:

39. WEHENZH (R

AEBRARRNHEMETERRET
FIHAR R H 2 AR REE SN AN Z
ARFEHSLBWAT

Group Company
rEE AT
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-=5F —E——fF —E-=F —E-CfF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT THET FTER FET
Within one year —FR 18,599 15,931 9,755 4,149
In the second to F-RERF
fifth years, inclusive (BHEEERMT) 10,529 5,845 5,435 -
29,128 21,776 15,190 4,149
COMMITMENTS 40. 7&IE
(@) In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed (@) BRA £ SCRIsE39FF i 2 48 & FH 49 7%
in note 39 above, the Group had at the end of the Eh - RIREHRTER - AEER
reporting period commitments of approximately AEEBBREFIV2EATEES
HK$20,675,000 (2012: HK$32,164,000) in respect of net EHORIINEEHN Z2EEDRNN B
open position of bullion contracts and approximately 20,675,000 t( — & — = F:
HK$1,270,000 (2012: HK$122,084,000) in respect of net 32,164,0007% 7T ) & 491,270,000 7T
open position of forex contracts undertaken in the (ZZF—=F : 122,084,000 7T) °
ordinary course of the Group’s business.
(b) capital commitments (b) EREE

Capital expenditures contracted, but not provided for at
the end of the reporting period are as follows:

R E PR TAERERTNERERE
BARRSWMT

Group
TEE
2013 2012
—E-= —E-CfF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB MR 444 -
Acquisition of a subsidiary Wi — I B A A = 350
444 350

At the end of the reporting period, neither the Group nor
the Company had any other significant commitments.
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41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(@ During the year ended 30 April 2013, the Group acquired
49% equity interest of AST 3G LIMITED from
non-controlling shareholder for a consideration of

42.

HK$6,552,000.

4. EREALXRS

The transaction constituted a connected party
transaction as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules, details of which are set out on the announcement
of the Company dated 12 October 2012.

@)

BE_Z—=-—FNA=1+HLEFE"
A E B[ OEERBKRREKSE
AST 3G LIMITED 2 49% f& #E - (KB A&
6,552,000 7T ©

BARXSHEK ETRAUE1VAZRR
TEZREEBEBATRS  BRAFBEEHRAE
NEIRHA-_Z——E#+A+=-H2

D -

(b) Compensation of key management personnel of the b AEEXFZEEBABZME :
Group:

The emoluments paid to the directors of the Company, MARARES(PAEEFEEEA
who are the key management personnel of the Group, B)X 2 Bl e A SRR LS -
are included in note 8 to the financial statements.

(c)  Save as disclosed above and elsewhere in these financial © BEXRZSVEEmEAMIBD A5
statements, the Group did not have any material BEN AEEREE-ZT—=FK
transactions with related parties during the years ended —E——FNA=Zt+HIFETEE
30 April 2013 and 2012. BEEATETENEARS -

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 42. FEMB AR ZFHE

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at the end R EETER  ARAEENBAF

of the reporting period are as follows: BT

Nominal value
Place of of issued and
incorporation/ paid-up ordinary Percentage of
establishment and share capital/ equity attributable
Name operations registered capital to the Group Principal activities
MR/ BT BEERTRAREBR rEEELES
£8 REEWE  REA/EMEAZEE BAl TEER
2013 2012
—B-zZfF CZZE-ZF
Excel Vision Development Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000 100 100 Provision for sub-leasing
FRERBRAF 55 1,000 arrangement
RO AL
Firstmount International Limited (note (i) British Virgin Islands/ US$1 100 100 Investment holding
Firstmount International Limited (Fff 3 () Hong Kong 1% REER
RERTHS/BA

Simsen Asset Management (Asia) Limited Hong Kong HK$15,000,000 100 100 Investment holding

RTEEER (M) ERAF 0 15,000,000 T REER

Simsen Asset Management (HK) Limited Hong Kong HK$150,000 100 - Provision of asset

(note (i) Bk 150,000/ T management services

RTEEER(BE)BRAR (M) REEEEERY

Simsen Capital Finance Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000 100 100 Money lending

R BREBRAR BE 1,000/ 7T B
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42. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 42. FEMER R ZF1E (&)

(continued)
Nominal value
Place of of issued and
incorporation/ paid-up ordinary Percentage of
establishment and share capital/ equity attributable
Name operations registered capital to the Group Principal activities
MR/ BT ERTRAREER AEBELER
A% REEWE  REA/EMEAZEE B TEEH
2013 2012
“B-=f %%

Simsen International Financial Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 100 Management and
Group Limited B 10,000%7T secretarial services
AMTEReREEFRAR ERRUERS
United Simsen Securities Limited Hong Kong HK$60,000,000 100 100 Securities and futures
ATBAREBR A &5 60,000,000 7T contracts broking and
trading and provision of
corporate finance
advisory services
ErRkEsansek
BEURRECERE
BRI RIS
Simsen Financial Services Limited Hong Kong HK$5,000,000 100 100 Insurance broking and
XIEBRBER AR B% 5,000,000 consultancy services
REEE RERERS
United Simsen Bullion Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 100 100 Metal broking and trading
RiTa e $BRAT 0 1,000,00077C tEERREE
United Simsen Forex Dealers Limited Hong Kong HK$100,010,000 100 100 Forex contracts broking
RTHEEEBRAA EE 100,010,000 7 and trading
NESHBLKREE
Beijing Yuedetong Financial Consulting The People’s Republic RMB15,000,000 100 - Provision of medium and
Company Limited (notes (i), (ii) and (iv) of China ARH15,000,0007 short term financing
ERRERYBERABRA hEARAME services and financial
(B i)~ i) B2 (v) consultation services
REFEHRERER
BB ERERS
Beijing Wanrong Pawning Company The People’s Republic RIVIB40,000,000 100 - Provision of pawn
Limited (notes (i), (iii) and (iv) of China AR 40,000,00075 [oan services
IRERAZERELAR hEARHEAE RIUEEERRS

(BEE (i) ~ (i) B2 (v))
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42. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

42. EEMEBRR2FHE (&)

(continued)
Nominal value
Place of of issued and
incorporation/ paid-up ordinary Percentage of
establishment and share capital/ equity attributable
Name operations registered capital to the Group Principal activities
MR/ BT ERIRAREER AEBESER
&% REEWE  RA/EMEAZEE BAL TEER
2013 2012
“B-Zf %%
Shanghai Xingrong Pawning Company The People’s Republic RMB10,000,000 100 - Provision of pawn
Limited (notes (i), (iii) and (iv)) of China ARH10,000,0007C loan services
LEERRE AR AE (FE) - )&M) HEAREAE REAZETRYE
Solomon International Leasing (Tianjin) The People’s Republic 1S$10,000,000 100 51 Provision of finance
Co, Ltd (notes (iii) and (iv) of China 10,000,000 ¢ lease services
REMBERHEE (X2) BB HE AR £AE REBERORSE
(B3 i) B2 (v))
Notes: BisE

(i) The subsidiary is directly held by the Company.

(i) The company was newly acquired by the Group during the year.

(i) The unofficial English translations or transliterations of Chinese

names are for identification purpose only.

(iv)  The company is registered in form of wholly foreign owned

enterprise.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in
the opinion of the directors, primarily affected the results for
the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of
the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the
opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excess length.
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43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

43.

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
instruments at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

ZERBS 2 EMTA
EER S MI AR BE WAL 2 BE
T

2013 Group
—E2—= REH
Financial assets SREE
Financial Available-
assets at fair for-sale
value through Loans and financial
profit or loss receivables assets Total
BAFEFA
BiRERZ ERE AHEEZ
CREE FE W BR X CREE At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FTEx FTER FTERT
Other long term assets Hin REEE - 4,275 - 4,275
Convertible notes BEABAFEA
designated as at fair BREzBRREg
value through profit or
loss 93,230 - - 93,230
Available-for-sale equity Rl HE Z R AR E
investments - - 78,555 78,555
Loans and accounts B R
receivable - 349,430 - 349,430
Financial assets included 5t AFE{FZIA -
in prepayments, deposits 54 K H 4 fE i
and other receivables ERCemEE = 105,567 = 105,567
Equity investments at fair R AFEETA
value through profit or BaE 2 BRARE
loss 1,599 - - 1,599
Bank trust account RITEERP &R
balances - 172,049 - 172,049
Pledged bank deposits BEFRITIFH - 5,000 - 5,000
Cash and cash equivalents R4 MIRE&ZEEH - 570,119 - 570,119
94,829 1,206,440 78,555 1,379,824
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43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

43. BEH B 2R T A ()

(continued)
Financial liabilities A=y =Ni
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
R ARSI BR
e 5=
HK$'000
FET
Accounts payable FERTBR IR 185,100
Financial liabilities included in other s AE A R R BT B
payables and accruals ZaRAats 24,638
Finance leases payable FERT R E LY 204
209,942
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43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 43. BEREszeMTI A (&)
(continued)
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial FHEREeMTERRERRATET CRE
instruments at the end of the reporting period are as follows: BT - (&)
(continued)
2012 Group
=% REH
Financial assets TRIEE
Financial Available-
assets at fair for-sale
value through Loans and financial
profit or loss receivables assets Total
BATFERA
Bakz Enk AEHE s
TREE FEUBR TR TREE BEt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET TET FET
Other long term assets HibREEE - 4,103 - 4,103
Convertible notes EBERERATE
designated as at fair FPABERZ
value through profit or ABRBEEE
l0ss 247,063 - - 247,063
Available-for-sale equity ~ AIftHE Y
investments BAIEE - - 120,000 120,000
Loans and accounts B FEUER R
receivable - 606,504 - 606,504
Financial assets included st AFEfTFIE -
in prepayments, 2l REAER
deposits and other B eREE
receivables - 7,044 - 7,044
Equity investments at fair A TEE A
value through profit or BaER2BRARE
loss 843 - - 843
Bank trust account RITEFRP &8
balances - 149,429 - 149,429
Pledged bank deposits BEARRITER - 10,000 - 10,000
Cash and cash equivalents 4 RIRE&EEIER - 215,272 - 215,272
247,906 992,352 120,000 1,360,258
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43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(continued)
Financial liabilities

43. BEH B 2R T A ()

Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
REESE A AN F) R

ZEEAaE

HK$'000

FHT

Accounts payable FERTBR IR 220,123
Financial liabilities included in other A A ET R

payables and accruals ErrERAzemBaE 20,717

Finance leases payable FER R E LY 345
Due to a non-controlling shareholder R—ERB AR —%

of a subsidiary IEIERR A R 2 FRIE 5,850

247,035
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43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 43. BEREszeMTI A (&)
(continued)
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial FEemTANRRERETER CRA
instruments at the end of the reporting period are as follows: BT - (&)
(continued)
2013 Company
—2—= FiN/NCT|
Financial assets SHEE
Financial Available-
assets at fair for-sale
value through Loans and financial
profit or loss receivables assets Total
BAREFTA
BiRk2 EXE AHEEZ
CREE FE U BR 3R CREE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FET FHT
Available-for-sale equity — AIHtH & 2 IR E
investments - - 78,555 78,555
Financial assets included £t AFE{ 2B -
in prepayments, Fle REAM
deposits and other FEUER R
receivables JERBE - 101,036 - 101,036
Due from subsidiaries i NG - 640,437 - 640,437
Cash and cash equivalents R4 MRS ZEIEH - 353,609 - 353,609
- 1,095,082 78,555 1,173,637
2012 —E-CF
Financial assets TREE
Convertible notes EEREATE
designated as at fair s ABER
value through profit or 2B E R
loss 119,599 - - 119,599
Available-for-sale equity — rIftHE Z IR AR E
investments - - 120,000 120,000
Financial assets included st AFE{S 1A -
in prepayments, e REA
deposits and other JRE U R 3R
receivables ZEMEE - 3,155 - 3,155
Due from subsidiaries JE Uz B 8 7 B 5K 38 - 804,161 - 804,161
Cash and cash equivalents 324 RIES%EIER - 93,144 - 93,144
119,599 900,460 120,000 1,140,059
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43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 43. RERE S z2EeMI A (&)
(continued)
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial BHEMEBITARRSHRETAER ZRE
instruments at the end of the reporting period are as follows: BT - (&)

(continued)

Financial liabilities cHas
Company
RAF]
2013 2012
Financial Financial
liabilities at liabilities at
amortised amortised
cost cost
—_E2—= —E—_F
bi7&: Fi10% LR SHR AR
S8R 2 HIBR 2
cmEE TREBE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Financial liabilities included in other SFAEMERIRE &

payables and accruals ErERzSmMAaE 3,840 2,993
Due to subsidiaries RSB A FIFRIA 26,056 81,875
29,896 84,868
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44. FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 44.
The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining and
disclosing the fair values of financial instruments:

Level 1: fair values measured based on quoted prices
(unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities

Level 2: fair values measured based on valuation
techniques for which all inputs which have a
significant effect on the recorded fair value
are observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3: fair values measured based on valuation
technigues for which any inputs which have a
significant effect on the recorded fair value
are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs)

DFEEBR
AREFANTEAEERHESBIA
Z AT -

$—E:  REERAENAENEE
i HIE CREEE) i &
ATE

$-E:  REGHERFEGEATE

& B ES T S AT ac 8k
ZRAFEEEERTEZM
B8 ARG A B K%

B=E: RB[HERMTERFE
A B8 ik B+ iy o Y P Rc 8%
IRV EEEBERTZEZM
BRARBYIFRETES
ISR (T A BR AR

%)
Assets measured at fair value: BAFEFEZEE
Group rEH
2013 —E-=
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
el -y E=E Fo
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FTERT FET FET
Convertible notes designated as  8E AR A FE A
at fair value through profit or BREzBaKkEE
loss - - 93,230 93,230
Available-for-sale equity AREEZRARE
investments 78,555 - - 78,555
Equity investments at fair value &z A FERF AiE& R
through profit or loss 2R E 1,599 - - 1,599
80,154 - 93,230 173,384

142 simsen International Corporation Limited ¢ X{TEIR () GRAH



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S R A B

30 April 2013 = —=FPA=+H

44. FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY (continued) 44. PFEER(E)
Assets measured at fair value: (continued) BATEFEZEE  (B)
Group (continued) KEF (&)
2012 —E——fF
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—E EE E=E et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FHET FHET

Convertible notes designated #EE AR AF(ET A

as at fair value through BREZTREEE
profit or 10ss - - 247,063 247,063
Available-for-sale equity AR E 7 RAKRE
investments 120,000 - - 120,000
Equity investments at fair AT ET A BRER
value through profit or loss 7 JEZR#&& 843 - - 843
120,843 - 247,063 367,906
During the years ended 30 April 2013 and 2012, there were no HE_Z—=FK_Z-—_FMOA=+H
transfers of fair value measurements between Level 1 and EFE WEFEF-EHEE_EsA2AF
Level 2. Ert 22 8E% -
The movements in fair value measurements in Level 3 during FRN - B=ERAVEFEZZHNOT :
the year are as follows:
2013 2012
—E—= —E——F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Convertible notes designated as at T AE AT ERABRIR
fair value through profit or loss: ACIE Y&
At the beginning of the year/on NEL,/ N HEREE
initial recognition 247,063 260,285
Loss for the year recognised in the R RER 2 FEBE
income statement (3,833) (13,222)
Redeemed during the year FAEMD (150,000) -
At the end of the year RFR 93,230 247,063
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44. FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY (continued) 44. AEEEH (&)
Assets measured at fair value: (continued) BRALEHEZEE : (&)
company P
2013 —g2—=
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—E E_E BE=E @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTART FTAERT FTHER FTAERT
Available-for-sale equity AREEZRARE
investments 78,555 - - 78,555
2012 —EF——F
Level1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—[E E_E F=[E “Er
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHETT FET FHET

Convertible notes designated 15 AR AT EE A

as at fair value through Bk THRREE

profit or loss - - 119,599 119,599
Available-for-sale equity AEHE ZBRARE

investments 120,000 - - 120,000

120,000 - 119,599 239,599

During the years ended 30 April 2013 and 2012, there were no HE-_T— =G _ZFT——-FMNA=+H
transfer of fair value measurements between Level 1 and Level tEE TES-—EBURSE-_BIEIAT
2. BFtE 28R -
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44.

45.

FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY (continued)

Assets measured at fair value: (continued)
Company (continued)

The movements in fair value measurements in Level 3 during
the year are as follows:

. D EER (R

BRAVEAEZEE  (8)
Apal (&)
FN - BEZEATVENEZEHNT :

2013 2012
—g—= —EF-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FiET
Convertible notes designated as at fair BE AR AT EF ABTR
value through profit or loss: Z AR R
At the beginning of the year/on initial RER,/ 1) W R
recognition 119,599 126,000
Gain/(loss) for the year recognised in EA%Z SRERZFE
the income statement Wz, (&) 20,401 (6,401)
Redeemed during the year FRER (140,000) -
At the end of the year REFK - 119,599
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 45. BIBRABEE 2 BERBER

AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments include available-
for-sale equity investments, equity investments at fair value
through profit or loss and convertible notes designated as at
fair value through profit or loss, loans and accounts receivable,
cash and cash equivalents and accounts payable. Details of
these financial instruments are disclosed in the respective
notes.

The main risks arising from the Group'’s financial instruments
are foreign currency risk, equity price risk, interest rate risk,
credit risk and liquidity risk. The board of directors reviews and
agrees policies for managing each of these risks and they are
summarised below.
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 45. BERERE 2 BERBEK (&)
AND POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency risk SN L B

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the value of an asset and SNERBIEUAINESHECEERBEEE
liability denominated in foreign currency will fluctuate because [ 5N FE BB == 5t 8 if IR R Bh 2 AR x‘i
of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Group's foreign EriERkEEzEZRARNKEE
currency risk primarily arises (i) from sales or purchases by uumuzmab‘b%wrz&%&na; '
operating units in currencies other than the units’ functional (i) EAE AR 2N 2575 K (iii) 12 & SNEI A B AR
currency, (i) from its leveraged foreign exchange business and 7o

(iii) from investing in equity shares of foreign companies.

Foreign currency risk associated with the leverage foreign HERRIMNEXB BB 2 INER R B E R
exchange business are managed and monitored by the BFTEBENREEE WERAZW -

relevant department and reported on a daily basis.

Details of financial assets and financial liabilities denominated N EEBAINEEB AN INEHEZ
in foreign currencies, other than the functional currency of eMEEREBRABENRENEATERZ
each operating unit at the end of the reporting period were as B
follows:
Foreign
currency 2013 2012
Shik “E-=F T ——F
$'000 $'000
Fx Tt
Loans and accounts receivable B3k R FEUEE K usb =TT 924 1,567
Prepayments, deposits and FERIE - FJe &k
other receivables H A IR BR X RMB AR = 34
usD ETT 200 -
Cash and cash equivalents HeMReEEER usD e 13,171 3,157
HK$ BT 4,128 -
RMB AREE 1,046 1,225
Accounts payable JETER K RMB AR (42) (30)
Usb ESSH (4) -
Due to a non-controlling R—TEHEA
shareholder of a subsidiary —ZIEE Hxﬂxiz %18 USD ETT - (750)
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currency risk (continued)
As USD is pegged to HKS, the Group does not expect any
significant movement in the USD/HK$ exchange rate. The
following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of the
reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the RMB
exchange rate, with all other variables held constant, of the
Group's loss before tax and the Group’s equity.

45.

MEEREE B ERBK (&)

S mB (48)

MR EITEETTANE - AN BIRHIE T
RAETZEXRWEEMERNES - TRE
TRIR R BT ST AR RS E PR HL B R
TEZEAT  AEBERHAERRANE
BREGZHARBERT 2 EEBEESH IH

2013 —E-= Decrease/
increase Increase/
in loss decrease
before tax in equity
RREL RIS 18 R
WK ®m, w
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET FET

If Hong Kong Dollar weakens/ ERBTHAREIZE,FHES%

strengthens against RMB by 5% 64 64

2012 —ET——fF Decrease/
increase Increase/
inloss decrease
before tax in equity
bR 7% Al B 18 T
A, 10 =, m A
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHIT FHIT

If Hong Kong Dollar weakens/ AEATHAREREFHES%

strengthens against RMB by 5% 76 76
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 45. MBEMRERE 2B ERBER ()

AND POLICIES (continued)

Equity price risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair value of equity securities
decreases as a result of changes in the levels of equity indices
and the value of individual securities. At 30 April 2013, the
Group is exposed to equity price risk arising from the
convertible notes designated as at fair value through profit or
loss, available-for-sale equity investments, and equity
investments at fair value through profit or loss.

The convertible notes held by the Group are required to be
recognised at fair value at the end of the reporting period.
Changes in fair value are recognised in profit or loss as long as
the convertible notes are outstanding. The fair value change
will be affected either positively or negatively, amongst others,
by the changes in share price and share price volatility of the
convertible notes issuer.

The directors of the Company manage the exposure by closely
monitoring the portfolio of equity investments at fair value
through profit and loss and available-for-sale equity
investments.

During the year ended 30 April 2013, the Group’s listed
investments are listed on the SEHK and are valued at quoted
market prices at the end of the reporting period.

The market equity index for the following stock exchange, at
the close of business of the nearest trading day in the year to
the end of the reporting period, and their respective highest
and lowest points during the year were as follows:

R EE R
BREEBEBRERARESF 2 A FERRSE
BEUKFRERNEHEERLREFH MK
ZRBR - RZZE—Z=ZFWA=1+H K&
BEAXRIETEREAFEFABRRERZA
BERE  IHEEZRARERZEQF
EFff ARG ZBEAREMEL ZRRE
RER -

AEBRFAIRBRRBEANBREHETH
Rz EER - RETBRBRERIDART
£ EAVEESe —ERNBakER -
NHEZFHZ (AP ERE) REZEH LA
BIREIBEITAZRERE BRI ER K
BmEEE -

AARERZBBEINERZ AN FENAE
HEZEABRERAIHEHE ZRARER
AEERE -

HE " T—="FNOA=1tBHILFE &X&
Bz EMRERB BB M LW > AR
SHE AR RmERE -

SN RE MR TER RO Z X EFER
ZEEERHERE  THRBHEZXZMZ
BETSEBAREEBZ2FARSH M
REEOT

30 April High/low 30 April High/low
2013 2013 2012 2012
—E-=f& —E-=F - —E--F
MA=+H &/ 1B mMA=+H =/ K2
Hong Kong 5
— Hang Seng Index —BEEH 22,737 23,822/18,186 21,094 23,721/16,250
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45.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 45. BKEKRERE 2 BERBER (&)
AND POLICIES (continued)
Equity price risk (continued) i R EE R ()
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to every 5% TRETEMRBEMMEBRFIE B KRG
(2012: 5%) change in the fair values of the equity investments BEMMRIBEZER  ERXBRAEERRS
and 5% (2012: 5%) change of share price of the convertible M AR 2 EEE  RARERAFES
notes issuer for the convertible notes, with all other variables 5% (ZF—Z4F : 5%) 8 R MR ER 2
held constant and before any impact on tax, based on their MR EREITAREBEES%(ZE—=F -
carrying amounts at the end of the reporting period. 5%) BB 2 GURIE o
2013 —E-=F Decrease/
increase Increase/
Carrying in loss decrease
amount before tax in equity
MR AT 1R R
BREE R/ #m,/ wmd
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FTET FHERT
Investments listed in: RT5IthEE E 2188
Hong Kong — Held-for-trading BE—HIEEE 1,599 80 80
— Available-for-sale — At E 78,555 - 3,928
Convertible notes designated as & AR A FE A
at fair value through profit or loss #8587 Al R 2 93,230 416/419 416/419
2012 —E——F Decrease/
increase Increase/
Carrying inloss decrease
amount before tax in equity
PR R ES R e
REE ol 2,/ m
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FHET FET
Investments listed in: R E LT RE
Hong Kong — Held-for-trading BEE—HEEE 843 42 42
— Available-for-sale —AEE 120,000 - 6,000
Convertible notes designated as 8 F AR A FET A
at fair value through profit or loss  18% 8k 2 Al AR EZ1E 247,063 3,378 3,378
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 45. MBEMRERE 2B ERBER ()

AND POLICIES (continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to (i) the risk of changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to the Group's interest-bearing
financial assets and liabilities and (i) fair value interest rate risk
relates primarily to convertible notes designated as at fair value
through profit or loss. Interest-bearing financial assets are
mainly loans receivable and deposit with banks whereas the
interest-bearing financial liabilities are mainly accounts
payable. Interests on deposits with banks and loans receivable
are principally based on deposits rates offered by banks in
Hong Kong and fixed rates, respectively.

For short term floating rate bank loans, the principal risk lies
with the interest rate difference between the interbank rate
and the best lending rate. The Group mitigates the risk by
monitoring the interest rate gap between the short term bank
loans and margin financing facilities and revises the margin
financing rate if necessary. Substantially most of the Group’s
loans receivable are fixed interest rates and short in duration
with maturities in range of 1 to 6 months. The Group prices
these loans receivable strategically to reflect market
fluctuations and achieve a reasonable interest-rate spread.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on
the exposure to interest rates for (i) non-derivatives
instruments and (ii) convertible notes designated as at fair
value through profit or loss. The analysis is prepared assuming
the financial instruments outstanding at the end of the
reporting period were outstanding for the whole year. A 50
basis point (2012: 50 basis point) increase or decrease is used
when reporting interest rate risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in interest rates.
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AND POLICIES (continued)

Sensitivity analysis (continued)

() If interest rates had been 50 basis points (2012: 50 basis
points) higher/lower and all other variables were held
constant, the Group's post-tax loss for the year ended 30
April 2013 would decrease/increase by approximately
HK$3,487,000 (2012: approximately HK$3,727,000). This is
mainly attributable to the Group’s exposure to interest
rates on its variable-rate interest-bearing loans
receivable, deposits with banks and accounts payable.

(i If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/lower
and all other variables were held constant, the Group'’s
post-tax loss for the year ended 30 April 2013 would
decrease/increase by approximately HK$466,000 (2012:
approximately HK$1,235,000), as a result of change in fair
value of convertible notes designated as at fair value
through profit or loss.

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event of
the counterparties’ failure to perform their obligations in
relation to each class of recognised financial assets is the
carrying amount of those assets as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position. In order to minimise the credit
risk, the board of directors of the Company has delegated a
team responsible for determination of credit limits, credit
approvals and other monitoring procedures to ensure that
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition,
the Group reviews the recoverable amount of each individual
receivable at the end of each reporting period to ensure that
adequate impairment provision for losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors of the
Company consider that the Group's credit risk is significantly
reduced.

At 30 April 2013, the Group has concentration of credit risk
arising from its holding of the convertible notes issued by King
Stone with principal amount of HK$139,205,000 (2012:
HK$289,205,000). Other than that, the Group had certain
concentration of credit risk as 49% (2012: Nil) of the Group’s
loans and accounts receivable were due from three customers,
within the money lending segment.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to
credit risk arising from loans and accounts receivable are
disclosed in note 20 to the financial statements.

45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 45. MBEMRERE 2B ERBER ()

BRBRED W (&)

() fWARIREN SRLOBEES(ZF
— 4 50EEE) - MATAEMmE
HRETE  AAEEBEE-_T—=
FHA=THIEFEZRIEBIER
S /18N 493,487,00058 L ( = =
— 4 1 493,727,000 7T) ¢ kT E
BHNAEBGZESFIRERER -
SRITIE 0 S B BR HURCSE F R B B P
g( °

(i) ARG AN A S0 E B - i AT
BHMEHRFBTE  AAEEES
TE-—FNA=TRIFEZERH
& BB ISR L G I # 466,000 7 TT
(ZZ— —4F : 41,235,000 7T)
SEANETE BIEATESABREEY
RBRRE 2 ATEED -

FERRE

AEERSBORRAEREEAZZEE
RBREARZXZEF I REBTETME &
BEBEENGRE MBIRARMIZEE
EZEREE - RBEERRRERE K
RREFEERE-HKEAEEEERE -
FEEEMREMERERFZEK  BRIR
BIBWIERF AR DB EERR - 1hoh - A&
7 25 3R B o A B A R % (B B R MR
Az AT El e FE - AR BT AT U [El € R
EHRAZBEEERE - Bitms - &
RAEEBR/AKREZEERRD KER

Ao

R-Z-—Z=FMA=+0 A&EEHEKEF
@ 1L P8 1T 2N & 58 /3 139,205,000 % 7T ( =
T — 4 : 289,205,000/ 7T ) 2 Al # Ak R
BEMAZEERTRAR - FRILZI K&
EEETEEETER AR EAEER
ERREUEERE R A9%( T ——F : &)
RERBESERT=RFF ZKA -

AEERBERREUERZEERRZ
FAIE(CBIEN M TR ML 20 95 -
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 45. MBEMRERE 2B ERBER ()

AND POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk

Internally generated cash flows and bank borrowings are the
general sources of funds to finance the operations of the
Group. Majority of the Group's banking facilities are subject to
floating rates and are renewable annually. The Group regularly
reviews its major funding positions to ensure it has adequate
financial resources in meeting its financial obligations and
compliance with the statutory requirements applying to various
licensed activities. The Group aims to maintain flexibility in
funding by keeping committed credit lines available and
sufficient bank deposits to meet its short term cash
requirements. The Group's liquidity risk management includes
making available standby banking facilities and diversifying the
funding sources.

The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities at the end
of the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted
payments, is as follows:

NEELEZRERERBITEERAEER
HEES 2 —RIIR - REBABDRIT
MERFHMNEABARGFER - K&
EERRSEETRESNN - UERER
RAMBERENENBEERETER
REBREEHOEEER - AREEHE
BERERTIHBBZCAREERRRER
ZRITFEFRRBESZ2BEEMN - AEN
RHREHRE - AEBZREERRERE
BREZFREERRTRERIBESRR
R o

REBEFTORFTRENFGE - ARERRK
SHRTERE 2 SBAEZRBMBERNT

Group r5E 2013
—E-=F
3to
Less than less than 1t05 Over
Ondemand 3 months 12 months years 5 years Total
SR =z
BEX =f8A +=EA —-Z5EF AELE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TEx TR TR TR TR
Accounts payable EfTERR 184,311 789 - - - 185,100
Other payables and HiENER L
accruals fEztE A - 24,638 - - - 24,638
Finance leases payable  FEfTERETRS - 38 116 90 - 244
184,311 25,465 116 90 - 209,982
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (continued)

45. BHEARERE 2 BBRREE (&)

Liquidity risk (continued) BN R ()
Group pi-3=] 2012
—E—CF
310
Less than less than 1105 Over
On demand 3months 12 months years 5 years Total
DR =z
RER =fdR +Z{EA —EhF RENE w5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL THL THET THL FHL THL
Accounts payable FERERTR 219,908 215 - - - 220,123
Other payables and HibEESRR
accruals EEE R - 20,717 - - - 20,717
Finance leases payable B EEES - 58 153 244 - 455
Due to a non-controling  x—FIMBAF
shareholder of a —EIFERRE
subsidiary 7B 5,850 - - - - 5,850
225,758 20,990 153 244 - 247 145
Company bA/NG| 2013
—E-=F
3to
Less than less than 1to Over
Ondemand 3 months 12 months 5 years 5 years Total
DR =F
REX =fEA +=EA —Z0EF AEHE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TERT THT THT THET THET
Other payables and Hi MR R
accruals it EA - 3,840 - - - 3,840
Due to subsidiaries R BARFIE 26,056 - - - - 26,056
26,056 3,840 - - - 29,896
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 45. MBEMRERE 2B ERBER ()

AND POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued) D B ()
Company AN 2012
T F
310
Less than less than 1t05 Over
On demand 3months 12 months years 5years Total
DR =z
REK =R +=f&A —EhF AFUE Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TAET THT THT THT THET
Other payables and HivEHERR
accruals FEEE R - 2,993 - - - 2,993
Due to subsidiaries RIEARFIE 81,875 - - - - 81,875
81,875 2,993 - - - 84,868
Capital management BEARER

The primary objectives of the Group's capital management are
to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its
business and maximise shareholders’ value. In addition, certain
subsidiaries of the Group licensed by the SFC are obliged to
meet the regulatory liquid capital requirements under the
Securities and Futures (Financial Resources) Rules (“FRR").

The Group manages its capital structure to maintain a balance
between the higher shareholder returns with higher levels of
borrowings and the security afforded by a sound capital
position, and make adjustments to the capital structure in light
of changes in economic conditions. For licensed subsidiaries,
the directors of the Company and the corresponding
responsible officers closely monitors their liquidity position to
ensure each of them maintain liquid capital level adequate to
support the activities level with sufficient buffer to
accommodate the increase in liquidity requirements arising
from potential increases in business activities. No changes
were made in the objectives, policies or processes for
managing capital during the years ended 30 April 2013 and
2012.
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 45. MBEMRERE 2B ERBER ()

AND POLICIES (continued)

Capital management (continued)

The Group monitors capital using a net debt-to-adjusted capital
ratio, which is net debt divided by adjusted capital. For this
purpose, The Group’s policy is to maintain the net debt-to-
adjusted capital ratio below 50%. Net debt includes finance
leases payable and due to a non-controlling shareholder of a
subsidiary, less cash and cash equivalents and pledged bank
deposits. Adjusted capital comprises all components of equity,
less unaccrued proposed dividends. The net debt-to-adjusted
capital ratios as at the end of the reporting period were as

EXEE (&)

AEBRBEBFEHLABRERLE (R
B FERACHEEARE) EIFER -
UM S ARBEZRRE EEFERF
BHKRAEEAR L RESOB AT « BERF
BEEENRERANER —HEHRBAR—
FIRERBRZFOR - BREREEREEEE
HB A RBEBRITER - CRAEELRE
ERERZFTAARED  BABREZER
B RmERMTER  ERFRELH

follows: BEARLEFMT
Group KEH
2013 2012
—E-= —E—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FH&TT
Finance leases payable FERTRE ALY 204 345
Due to a non-controlling shareholder K —FE M B AR
of a subsidiary —Z IR AR R 2 FE = 5,850
Less: Cash and cash equivalents and B RE MRS EEIER
pledged bank deposits AR B EIRIRITER (575,119) (225,272)
Net debt B8 - -
Equity attributable to owners of the RRATHER NEGER
Company 1,199,713 1,125,522
Less: Proposed dividends o EERE - -
Adjusted capital RSN 1,199,713 1,125,522
Net debt-to-adjusted capital ratio B F R CHEE R X 0% 0%

Annual Report 2012/2013 ¢ —Z——/ —Z—=H45% 155



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B A Y

30 April 2013 = —=FMA=+H

46. EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING
PERIOD

@)

On 1 May 2013, Simsen Capital Finance Limited as the
lender (an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company) entered into the loan agreement with the
borrower, pursuant to which the lender has agreed to
provide the loan of HK$82 million to the borrower subject
to the terms and conditions of the loan agreement.
Details of which were set out in the announcement of the
Company dated 1 May 2013.

On 1 May 2013, Key Gains Investments Limited (“Key
Gains”) as the subscriber (a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company), entered into the subscription agreement
with Million Wealth Capital Investment Limited (“Million
Wealth") as the issuer and Pure Profit Holdings Limited as
the guarantor of Million Wealth, pursuant to which Key
Gains has conditionally agreed to subscribe for and
Million Wealth has conditionally agreed to issue the
Million Wealth senior notes in the principal amounts of
HK$80 million at the subscription price of HK$80 million.
Details of which were set out in the announcement of the
Company dated 1 May 2013.

On 3 May 2013, the Company acquired for an additional
100,000,000 ordinary shares of Hao Tian Resources
Group Limited at the total consideration of approximately
HK$43 million (excluding transaction costs), equivalent to
approximately HK$0.43 per share. Details of which were
set out in the announcement of the Company dated 3
May 2013

46. HEMRETHRER

@)
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46. EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING
PERIOD (continued)

(d

On 8 September 2011, Simsen Capital Finance Limited,
an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company as
lender entered into a loan agreement with Profit Port
Investments Limited (“Profit Port”) as borrower and the
ultimate beneficial owner of Profit Port as guarantor in
relation to the provision of a loan of HK$100,000,000
("Profit Port Loan Agreement”). On 12 April 2012, the
parties to the Profit Port Loan Agreement agreed to
extend the repayment date of the Profit Port Loan to 10
August 2012, which is subject to agreement between the
parties thereto for a further extension of 120 days. On 9
May 2013, the parties to the Profit Port Loan Agreement
conditionally agreed to extend the repayment date of the
Profit Port Loan to 9 May 2014, subject to Profit Port
having repaid all the accrued interests of approximately
HK$10.95 million on the Profit Port Loan up to 9 May
2013. Details of which were set out in the
announcements of the Company dated 8 September
2011, 12 April 2012 and 9 May 2013.

On 13 June 2013, King Stone served on the Company a
notice of redemption of the King Stone convertible notes
held by the Group with a principal amount of
HK$100,000,000. At the request of King Stone, the
redemption took place and completed immediately after
the service of the redemption notice. After the
redemption, the outstanding principal amount of the King
Stone convertible notes held by the Group is
HK$39,205,000. Details of which were set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 13 June 2013.
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46. EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING
PERIOD (continued)

47.

*

()

In December 2012, the Company announced that the
Group entered into a sale and purchase agreement (the
“Sale and Purchase Agreement”) in respect of the
acquisition of the entire share capital of Beijing Dong
Fang Hui Investment Consulting Co., Ltd* (“Beijing Dong
Fang Hui"), which is engaged in the provision of medium
and short term financing services in the PRC, at a
consideration of HK$314,362,500. Details of the
acquisition are disclosed in the Company'’s
announcement dated 24 December 2012 and circular
dated 12 March 2013. The Company announced that all
the conditions precedent as set out under the Sale and
Purchase Agreement have been fulfilled and completion
of the acquisition has taken place on 20 June 2013.
Details of which were set out in the announcement of the
Company dated 24 December 2012.

On 21 June 2013, Beijing Dong Fang Hui, an indirectly
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into
the loan agreement with Mr. Gong Hongwei (“Mr. Gong").
Pursuant to the loan agreement, Beijing Dong Fang Hui
has agreed to grant a guaranteed loan in the amount of
RMB50,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$63,000,000) to Mr. Gong. Details of which were set
out in the announcement of the Company dated 21 June
2013.

On 27 June 2013, Beijing Dong Fang Hui entered into the
loan agreement with Mr. Guan Shijun (“Mr. Guan”).
Pursuant to the loan agreement, Beijing Dong Fang Hui
has agreed to grant a guaranteed loan in the amount of
RMB50,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$63,000,000) to Mr. Guan. Details of which were set
out in the announcement of the Company dated 27 June
2013.

On 8 July 2013, Beijing Dong Fang Hui entered into a loan
agreement with Ms. Guo Yuexin (“Ms. Guo”). Pursuant to
the loan agreement, Beijing Dong Fang Hui has agreed to
grant a guaranteed loan in the amount of RMB46,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$57,960,000) to Ms. Guo.
Details of which were set out in the announcement of the
Company dated 8 July 2013.

COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS
Certain comparative amounts have been restated to conform
with current year's presentation.

For identification purpose only

46. BEHETHREEH)

47.
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
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A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non- AEERBERETBREEZEEAREE - 8
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years, as & M IFERAR RAERZ M E it a0 T2 2 528

extracted from the published audited financial statements. R -
RESULTS E
Years ended 30 April
BEMA=THLEE
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
—E-=f —E-CF —T——F —T-TF “TTNE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET THT THT
Turnover: R
continuing operations FREIEEES 95,558 137,998 162,587 205,307 13112
Discontinued operations BRIEEEER - - 2,513 9,824 18,705
95,558 137,998 165,100 215,131 31,817
(Loss)/profit before tax: BB (B18),/ %Al
Continuing operations BRCEER (55,183) (42,404) 71,484 9,474 (179,773)
Discontinued operations BRIEE=ER = - 5511 (11,013) (33,251)
(55,183) (42,404) 76,995 (1,539) (213,024)
Income tax (expense)/credit s (Rx)/ £k (1,674) (685) 392 294 21)
(Loss)/profit before BRI AR RIS A
non-controlling interests (B518),/ &7 (56,857) (43,089) 77,387 (1,245) (213,045)
Non-controlling interests JEPERR R R (44) 45 - (2,449) (1,422)

(Loss)/profit attributable to AREEBAEE
owners of the Company (B18),/ % (56,901) (43,044) 71,387 (3.694) (214,467)
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ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON-CONTROLLING BE BERFEBRBRRES
INTERESTS
As at 30 April
REA=+H
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
~¥-=f ZF-Zf ZF—% IT-TF ZTTNF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FEr TEL TEL TEL
Non-current assets FRBEE 206,120 387,516 27,465 86,142 132,235
Current assets MENEE 1,208,029 991,341 565,507 597,836 349,085
Total assets BERE 1,414,149 1,378,857 592,972 683,978 481,320
Current liabilities mEaE (211,431) (250,432) (302,129) (470,470) (259,410)
Non-current liabilities FREEE (3,005) (2,948) (4,865) (4,839 (5,203)
Total liabilities BEEE (214,436) (253,380) (306,994) (475,309) (264,613)
Non-controlling interests IR R - 45 - - (10,342)
1,199,713 1,125,522 285,978 208,669 206,365
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